
 GLADSTONE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
CIVIC CENTER COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

June 9, 2020 – 6:30 PM  
 

 
6:30 p.m.  
CALL TO ORDER  
ROLL CALL 
  

Per the Governor’s Executive Order 20-16, regarding compliance with Oregon’s public meeting laws, this 
meeting will be held electronically by telephone.  The call-in number is:  
  

425-436-6307 

                  Access Code: 479242 

Members of the City Council, staff and public have access to this call. 
 

If members of the public would like to comment on an agenda item, please email your comments to 
bannick@ci.gladstone.or.us prior to 12:00 p.m. (noon) on June 9, 2020.   
 
The City Council will also have Business From the Audience at the end of the meeting. To speak during this 
time, please email bannick@ci.gladstone.or.us prior to 12:00 p.m. (noon) on June 9, 2020 with your topic of 
discussion and telephone number.  

 
AGENDA ADDITIONS OR CORRECTIONS 
 
PROCLAMATION – Gladstone High School Senior Class of 2020 Graduation 

 

CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
1. Approval of March 10, 2020 and May 12, 2020 Meeting Minutes 
2. Approval of April Bank Balances 
3. Budget Report for Period ending 04-30-2020 
4. Approval of April Check Register  
5. Legal Costs on Projects 
6. Department Head Monthly Reports for May 2020  
7. Appointment of Michael Milch to the Housing Advisory Committee 
8. Approval of Resolution 1177 – Increase in 2019-2021 Biennial Budget for 2019-2020 Fiscal Year to Facilitate 

the Completion of the Senior Center Roofing Project  
 

CORRESPONDENCE: None 
 
REGULAR AGENDA: 

 
9. APPROVAL OF CONTRACT FOR MELDRUM BAR PARK DREDGING PROJECT 

Consider approving a public improvement contract in the amount $161,075 for dredging at Meldrum Bar Park, 
Willamette River Mile 24.2 to Ross Island Sand & Gravel Co. 
 
 
 
 



10. ORDINANCE 1500 – AMENDING CHAPTER 12.18 OF GLADSTONE MUNICIPAL CODE (GMC) 
AMENDING TITLE AND ADDING LANGUAGE PROHIBITING ROLLER SKATING, 
SKATEBOARDING AND SMOKING IN PUBLIC BUILDINGS OR FACILITIES 
Consider approving Ordinance 1500 – amending Chapter 12.18 of the GMC amending the title and adding 
language prohibiting roller skating, skateboarding and smoking in public buildings or facilities 
 

11. ORDINANCE 1501 – AMENDING TITLE 13 OF THE GLADSTONE MUNICIPAL CODE (GMC) BY 
REMOVING WATER, SEWER AND STORM WATER UTILITY RATE DISCOUNTS AND 
INCORPORATING DISCOUNT REFERENCES INTO THE MASTER FEE SCHEDULE  
Consider approving Ordinance 1501 - removing the Low Income Utility Billing Assistance from Chapter 13.12 
of the GMC and placing it in the Master Fee Schedule 
 

12. RESOLUTION 1178 – ADOPTING A REVISED MASTER FEE SCHEDULE AND REPEALING 
RESOLUTION 1172 
Consider approving Resolution 1178 – Adopting a revised the Master Fee Schedule and repealing Resolution 
1172. 
 

13. POSSIBLE TEXT AMENDMENT TO TITLE 17 
A memo will be provided by the City Attorney and City Administrator as to why a text amendment to Title 17 
is being recommended to the Planning Commission regarding off street parking requirements for the new 
library. 
 

14. DISCUSSION OF APPOINTMENTS TO BOARDS, COMMITTEES, COMMISSIONS 
a. Audit Committee – two vacant positions  
b. Budget Committee – three vacant positions  
c. Library Advisory Board – two vacant positions  
d. Senior Center Advisory Board – one vacant position 
e. Traffic Safety Advisory Board – two vacant positions  

 
BUSINESS CARRIED FORWARD 

 
BUSINESS FROM THE AUDIENCE 
Visitors: This is an opportunity for members of the audience to bring to the Council’s attention any item not otherwise listed on the Agenda. Comments will 
be limited to three (3) minutes per person. Speakers may not yield their time to others and must fill out a speaker card available in the back of the room prior 
to making a comment. 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE COUNCIL -  Council Monthly Activity Reports 
     Preliminary City Council Agenda Planning Document 

 
ADJOURN 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION: ORS 192.660 (2)(d) To conduct deliberations with persons designated by the governing body to 
carry on labor negotiations. The executive session will have a separate conference call-in number. 
 
ADJOURN 

 
Upcoming Meeting Dates: 

 June 23, 2020 - City Council Work Session 5:30 p.m.  
 July 14, 2020 – City Council Regular Meeting, 6:30 p.m. 



 
CITY OF GLADSTONE  

PROCLAMATION  
 

WHEREAS, in March 2020 our country was faced with an unprecedented coronavirus pandemic that 
eliminated the possibility of our amazing seniors to participate in a traditional graduation milestone; and 
 
WHEREAS, June is High School Graduation Month and an excellent opportunity to come together as 
a community and give our 2020 seniors extra recognition on their accomplishment, and  
  
WHEREAS, it is an opportunity for acknowledging the adverse situations being presented to graduating 
seniors and paving the way toward improving the quality of life for young people with a graduation 
diploma, and 
 
WHEREAS, the pandemic has temporarily disrupted their educations and plans for the future, families, 
friends, neighbors, and educators should encourage everyone to focus on the abilities of our young 
people, and honor their hard work, and 
 
WHEREAS, we encourage all citizens to support opportunities for graduating seniors in our community 
that include higher education, housing, employment and recreational activities, and 
 
WHEREAS, the most effective way to honor graduating seniors is through everyone’s active 
participation in community activities and the openness to learn and acknowledge each individual’s 
abilities, talents, and contribution and the importance of education. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Tammy Stempel, Mayor of Gladstone, on behalf of the Gladstone City Council 
and citizens of Gladstone; specifically, the graduating seniors, acknowledge the new uncertainties 
introduced by the pandemic, and hereby proclaim the week of June 8-12, 2020 as  
 

Gladstone High School Senior Recognition Week 
 
within the City of Gladstone.  We encourage all citizens to take time to get to know a graduating senior, 
recognize their aspirations and contributions and honor them and their journey of education. No one 
will ever be able to replace this special graduating class. 
 
  ____________________________________  
 Tamara Stempel, Mayor 
 Date: ___________  
 
 Attest 
 
  ____________________________________  
 Tami Bannick, City Recorder 

Proclamation - 1



Dylan Adolf 
Danny Alejo 
Dessie Alvarado 
Janessa Amato 
Sophia Ameripour 
Jami Anderson 
Kara Archer 
Aaliyah Asad 
Taylor Ashbaugh 
Rose Barbour 
Brock Baseel 
Zachary Bays 
Phoenix Benedetti 
Madison Brady 
Lilly Brazer 
Paige Breuer 
Austin Brewster 
Ethan Bulisco 
Nate Burlingame 
Tyler Butler 
Maia Candia 
Hayden Carey 
Isis Ceaser 
Fatima Chairez 
Malia Chan 
Reanna Charriere 
Paulo Chavarin 
Abby Cole 
Hayden Coy 
Sebastion Cummins 
Andrew Czernik 
Audrey Darus 
Naomi Dehealean 
Alex De-lorme 
Seth Dewall 
Eduardo Diaz 
Marvin Diaz 
Nyaira Dilsaver 
Dilan Dodds 
Riley Doolittle 
Maria Downey 

Chloe Durrin 
Carlos Dzib 
Alexandro Echavarria 
Natasha Engeldinger 
Logan Evans 
Zack Fairfield 
Aaliyah Feinberg 
Benji Fergus 
Jacob Fowler 
Brady Fox 
Paige Frisk 
Evie Garver 
Evan Gassman 
Jenifer Gayner 
Mahad Ghani 
Brenden Gietzen 
Karla Gonzalez 
Andrew Gray 
Logan Greco 
Kiki Green 
Tucker Hall 
Charles Handley 
Eric Hanson 
Blake Harman 
Chad Haugen 
Maia Hawkins 
Kenzie Haws 
Maya Hegedus 
Josh Heywood 
Charlie Hill 
Makenna Hintz 
Jacksen Hunt 
Dylan Huston 
Jaxon Jedrykowski 
Derek Johnson 
Brian Kletecka 
Ally Koff 
Kylee Kupper 
Zora Kurzenhauser 
Sophia Lancaster 
Josie Landrus 

Proclamation - 2



Ellie Lane 
Alma Leal 
Hunter Lehman 
Emily Lind 
Cassidy Madrid 
Joseph Marl 
Berkeley Maxwell 
Liberty McCarthy 
Zoe McCarty 
Isaac Melchor 
Zoey Mertens 
Kiera Meulners 
Hudson Meyer 
Aila Mickels 
Sebastian Mitoma 
Jacob Moore 
Kyle Muir 
Jenna Myers 
Denali Nelson 
Rylee Nordby 
Kallie Obermire 
Brie Olson 
Misael Ordonez Carrillo 
Kalea Ortiz 
Skye Palacios 
Karsyn Parman 
JP Peterson 
Taryn Pinner 
Allyson Pope 
Rachel Powell 
Hayden Pugh 
Kevin Randall 
Morghan Rash 
Emma Reese 
Kirsten Reidsma 
Alden Rivers 
Gwyn Roberson 
Maggie Roberts 

Nick Robinson 
Monica Robles 
Carlos Rodriguez 
Arienne Rowland 
Nelson Salem 
Dayana Sanchez 
Yvonne Schaleger 
Mason Scheehean 
Aly Schlichting 
Frankie Schwartz 
Hannah Shaw 
Claire Shields 
Grant Shrum 
Sierra Shultz 
Kyle Slye 
Kylee Smith 
Stefan Smith 
Ashbie Snowden 
Ashton Snowden 
Parker Spitz 
Tyler Stinson 
Kiza Storer 
Chrysta Stratton 
D'Vyne Thompson 
Simon Tidrick 
Huan Huan Tomaszewski 
Leandro Torres 
Alex Turanski 
Cameron Ulam 
Genae Vanek 
Chloe Villanueva 
Ulysses Vizcaino-Cervantes 
Chael Williams 
Devon Williams 
Katherine Wilmot 
Cameron Wood 
Garrett Wright 
Daniel Zverev 

 

Proclamation - 3









1



GLADSTONE CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES of March 10, 2020 
 
Meeting was called to order at 6:30 PM. 
 
ROLL CALL:                                                                                                                                                                    
Mayor Tammy Stempel, Councilor Ripley, Councilor Tracy, Councilor Reisner, Councilor Mersereau 
 
ABSENT:                                                                                                                                                                                    
Councilor Neace, Councilor Todd                                                                                                                                              
 
STAFF:                                                                                                                                                                                
Jacque Betz, City Administrator; Hayley Kratz, Office Assistant; Joy Fields, Senior Planner; John 
Schmerber, Police Chief; Chad Jacobs, City Attorney 
 
Mayor Stempel called the meeting to order and went over the meeting agenda. 
 
AGENDA ADDITIONS OR CORRECTIONS:                                                                                                                 
Ms. Betz said there was a correction on Item #16 – under “Audit Committee” – Jeremy Riddle has 
withdrawn his application.    
 
PRESENTATION – SWEARING IN OF NEW POLICE OFFICER:                                                                                
Police Chief Schmerber introduced Officer Daniel Winters Jr. and gave some background information.  
Officer Winters was sworn in by City Attorney Chad Jacobs. 
 
PRESENTATION – CITIZEN LIFESAVING AWARD:                                                                                                     
The Citizen Lifesaving Award was presented to Faith Holloway by the Gladstone Fire Department.  On 
November 10th of 2019 Mrs. Holloway, along with a number of first responders, provided assistance to 
Roger Holloway during his cardiac arrest that allowed him to make a full recovery.  Mrs. Holloway 
performed CPR on her husband, with coaching from Dispatcher Schultz, until the Police and Fire 
Departments arrived.                                                                                                                                                                   
 
The following first responders received certificates of commendation: CCOM Dispatcher Victoria Schultz, 
Gladstone Fire Department Engine 391 Crew: Captain Patrick Brost, Firefighter/EMT Jesse Person, and 
Firefighter Austin Krieger; Gladstone Squad 390: Captain Richard Newton and Firefighter/EMT Jared 
Sturzenegger; the AMR ambulance crew: Paramedic Al Bacon and EMT Brian Malden; and Police Officers 
Mark Herkamp and Andy Hutchinson.   
 
STATE OF THE CITIES ADDRESS:                                                                                                                                    
Mayor Stempel said the City has a new Fire Chief and a new Police Chief, along with new Department 
leadership and a K-9 core.  The Senior Center has returned to full operation, continuing as the community 
hub, and will be getting an exterior makeover this year.  They will be expanding the generational programs 
and partnership with the school district.                                                                               
 
The City Council has made communicating with the public a priority.  They are spreading the news to every 
home and business via the City newsletter, newspaper coverage, public open houses, social media, and 
other communications channels.                                                                                                                  
 
The citizens are involved in City business like never before.  Decisions today are not being made in a 
vacuum – they want everyone to be part of the respectful discussion.                                                                    
 

1 - 1



There are many projects underway right now.  The first one is the new Gladstone Civic Center, which will 
be completed in April.  This will house City Hall and the Police Department; replacing the existing building.  
This project is the City’s first to be constructed using the streamline progressive design build approach.  
Funding for this project is through the Gladstone Urban Renewal Agency, along with full faith and credit 
notes and cash reserves.  No additional property tax dollars are required.  The total project cost is 
$13,000,000.  This project was voted on and approved by the citizens of Gladstone.  The building is 
constructed to current seismic standards and that extra margin of safety is critical for our Police force and 
emergency command when a disaster strikes.  The building is the first step in the need for community 
preparedness.                                                                                                                                                   
 
Gladstone’s elected officials are committed to fixing the antiquated and failing infrastructure.  Water, sewer, 
and storm water systems are in poor to desperate condition due to long deferred maintenance and lack of 
timely replacement.  They recently approved a phased in approach to utility rates needed to begin fixing 
the failing pipes, pump stations, and storage tanks.  These investments are needed to maintain reliable water 
and sewer services.  Gladstone received grant funds (CDBG) to completely reconstruct street and utility 
work along a two-block section of E. Clarendon.  The work included demolition and construction of streets, 
sidewalks, ramps, and driveways.  The utility work included installation of new sanitary sewer, storm drain, 
and water system improvements.                                                  
 
The City also executed an agreement with the Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) allowing the 
City to make thoughtful and incremental capital improvements to correct deficiencies and protect the 
environment.                                                                                                                                                                             
 
Their 2020 vision also shows the importance of Gladstone’s connections to our neighboring communities.  
Clackamas County and the City of Gladstone have agreed on a plan to bring a new library to our community.  
The employees have been transferred to the County and a Library Planning Task Force is involved with the 
design and programming phase for a 6,000 square foot library to be constructed where the current City Hall 
sits.  The current building will be torn down.                                     
 
They are updating the IGA’s with Water and Environmental Services and Oak Lodge Water to make sure 
the utility customers get the best, most economical service.  WES also established a Tri-City Good Neighbor 
fund that will help complete projects both in Gladstone and Oregon City that will advance environmental 
restoration, economic development, and community improvement opportunities in a defined area known as 
the Tri-City Waste Water Recovery Region.  The Parks and Recreation Board are actively looking at 
projects that would comply with their requirements.  The outcome of this partnership is to build a greater 
community together through strategically agreed upon projects that support our economy, ecology, and the 
community as a whole.                                                                                                              
 
They have projects on the horizon that will have a positive and significant impact on our citizens.  A 
replacement for the historic Trolley Trail Bridge, allowing pedestrians and bicyclists the opportunity to 
directly connect to our neighbor, Oregon City.  This project will be paid for with Regional Transportation 
funds.  An affordable housing project, which is the first in Clackamas County that is tied to Metro’s $650 
million dollar affordable housing bond, is being built in Gladstone.  The mission for this fund is to house 
people who might otherwise be homeless.  Gladstone’s project will be for senior citizens with a priority 
given to Gladstone residents.  They will continue to finalize the Housing Needs Analysis and create a 
community engagement strategy to find thoughtful solutions for affordable housing.  They have received a 
$350,000 grant that will enable them to dredge the boat launch at Meldrum Bar Park where sand bars have 
made the channel impassable.                                                                                                                
 
They have dreams such as promoting trails and wildlife viewing areas at the Rinearson Creek restoration 
area, Gladstone Nature Park, and along the rivers, revitalizing the downtown core and providing support to 

1 - 2



the existing businesses, enhancing the emergency management roles and engaging the community with its 
preparedness, completing a tourism and branding strategy for Gladstone, and launching a grass roots core 
of community volunteers.  Gladstone’s vision for 2020 and beyond are safe, thriving, healthy, highly 
qualified, engaged, accountable, livable, financially stable, vibrant, and continually improving.                                             
 
Mayor Stempel feels that 2020 will be remarkable and our best ever.  She is passionate about the progress 
we are making and committed to seeing that progress continue.  She is speaking on behalf of the City 
Council and City staff.  They are a team and that team also includes in the citizens of Gladstone.      
                                                                        
CONSENT AGENDA:                                

1. Approval of February 11, 2020 Regular Meeting Minutes 
2. Approval of January Bank Balances 
3. Budget Report for Period ending 1-31-20 
4. Approval of January Check Register 
5. Legal Costs on Projects 
6. Department Head Monthly Reports for February 2020 
7. Approval of Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) between Clackamas County and the City of 

Gladstone relating to Planning Services 
8. Approval of the Gladstone Senior Center Transportation Service Area, formally expanding service 

outside of the City of Gladstone City limits to include the unincorporated parts of Clackamas 
County 

9. Approval of an IGA between the City of Lake Oswego and the City of Gladstone for Warrant 
Confirmation Services 

10. Approval of an IGA between Clackamas County and the City of Gladstone for Fiber Optic Service 
 

Councilor Reisner asked to pull #9 for a question.                                      
 
Councilor Tracy made a motion to approve Consent Agenda items #1 - #8 and #10.  Motion was 
seconded by Councilor Mersereau.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Councilor Reisner asked about page 9-2, paragraph 1, description of services to be provided, the first 
bullet point about an “exhibit A” isn’t included.  Chief Schmerber said this is a generic IGA that Lake 
Oswego did for almost every jurisdiction in Clackamas County.  It is talking about confirming warrants 
for them – it doesn’t include entering property/vehicles/persons into LEDS (Law Enforcement Data 
System).  Ms. Betz recommended striking the last part of that sentence when they approve it and take 
out “as outlined on the attached exhibit A”. 
 
Councilor Reisner made a motion to approve Consent Agenda Item #9, striking out the last part of the 
sentence under paragraph 1, “as outlined on the attached exhibit A” and the next bullet point after 
“as set forth in exhibit A”.  Motion was seconded by Councilor Mersereau.   
 
Discussion:  Councilor Reisner asked if the City Attorney had reviewed this IGA – they had.   
 
Motion passed unanimously.     

 
CORRESPONDENCE:                                                                                                                                                            

11. Anonymous letter questioning voting history of elected official.                                       
 
Mayor Stempel wanted everyone to understand that in order for their correspondence to be considered in 
the current Council packet it must be received no later than the Tuesday before the meeting.  Anything after 
that will not be considered this month, but will be included in the next month’s packet.  They want to be 

1 - 3



sure to have enough time to consider all the documents supplied and receiving them at the last minute 
doesn’t allow them to do that.                                                                                                           
 
Mayor Stempel read the letter aloud:                                                      
 
“Gladstone Council,                                                                                                                                                                    
 
I was watching video of the council meetings and saw that mayor Stempel is not voting.  In October a 
second vote was held because a first vote had been unanimous.  Was it really unanimous if the mayor didn’t 
vote?  We’re concerned about this because we think the mayor and councilmembers should be voting or 
else they’re not representing us.  I’ve noticed that the mayor sometimes looks down at her papers during a 
vote so that she can’t be seen not voting.  My husband and I want to be anonymous because the mayor’s 
large men friends are known to show up uninvited at peoples houses to argue which is scary.  We don’t 
want those kinds of problems at our home.”        
      
Mayor Stempel wanted to comment on the letter.  She said she is not going to change the way she runs the 
meetings because of an anonymous letter.  When she votes no she makes a point of doing a roll call vote 
most of the time so that it’s clear how everyone voted.  If she didn’t vote yes on something when the minutes 
came out at the next meeting she would be the first one to ask for a correction.  She looks at her papers in 
order to stay on top of things during the meetings so she is not being sneaky.                    
 
Councilor Ripley asked the City Attorney what constitutes a vote – does not saying anything count as a 
yes?  Mr. Jacobs said typically speaking you need to make an affirmative action to vote yes on something 
or a negative reaction to say no on something.  If you want to abstain you would typically state that.  When 
you are doing a voice vote any type of acknowledgement constitutes the affirmative vote.  When the Mayor 
asked for “opposed” and there is no response that clarifies for the most part that everyone was presumed to 
be in favor.  If someone is truly not voting and staying silent all the time then that is an issue that the Council 
could address but he hasn’t noticed that going on here.  Councilor Tracy said he has heard the Mayor vote, 
but sometimes you get sidetracked and you may not say “yes” as loud or as quickly as possible.  He doesn’t 
see this as a concern and feels they have spent way too much time on this.  Councilor Mersereau said as 
being a Mayor or a Chair in the past for quite a few meetings, one thing he didn’t like about being Mayor 
was that he couldn’t participate in the meeting as much as he would have liked – he was more worried about 
facilitating the meeting.  Ms. Betz said that some cities only have the Mayor vote in a tie situation.    
                                                                       
REGULAR AGENDA                  

 
12. PUBLIC HEARING:  ORDINANCE 1499 – AMENDING CHAPTERS 17.10 AND 17.12 

(R-5 AND       R-7.2 ZONING TEXT AMENDMENTS) OF THE GLADSTONE 
MUNICIPAL CODE (GMC) – ACCESSORY DWELLING UNITS (ADU’S) – TO 
BECOME COMPLIANT PER HOUSE BILL (HB) 2001:                                                                         
Ms. Betz introduced Joy Fields.  Ms. Fields went over the staff report.  The GMC has provisions 
in the residential zoning districts for allowing accessory dwelling units for primary residences to 
have a smaller detached or attached accessory dwelling unit on the same parcel of land.  In 2017 
Senate Bill 1051 was adopted by the State Legislature and it required that municipalities within 
urban growth boundaries allow ADU’s for every primary dwelling that is there and that regulations 
pertaining to housing were clear and objective or have a clear and objective pathway.  Senate Bill 
1051 allowed local jurisdictions to have reasonable regulations pertaining to ADU’s.  In 2019 HB 
2001 passed and it determined that requiring an additional parking space for ADU’s and requiring 
owner occupancy for either the primary dwelling or the ADU were not reasonable regulations, 
therefore they are not allowed by local jurisdictions.  This came into effect in January.  The 
Planning Commission reviewed Chapters 17.10 and 17.12 related to residential zoning districts 

1 - 4



and they considered a lot of options.  Ms. Fields went over those options.  They determined that 
an in-depth review of the code would be necessary and that it would be beneficial to have public 
engagement, model code, and thorough/comprehensive look at housing if any further changes 
were going to be made to these sections.  On February 18th, 2020 they recommended removing 
the requirement that ADU’s have an additional parking space and have an owner occupancy deed 
restriction on the books unless they are used as vacation rentals.  This was added to the end of the 
section of Chapter 17.10 and 17.12 related to ADU’s.  Staff would be looking at site plans and 
determining if the ADU’s have the additional parking space and deed restriction of owner 
occupancy at the time they are being used as vacation rentals.  Since February 18th the City 
Attorney provided comments that it appeared to be appropriate, but “vacation rentals” was not 
defined.  City Council will need to discuss whether a definition for vacation rentals would be 
something they would want to look at tonight or if it would be something they would like the 
Planning Commission to consider and bring back later.                                                                                              
 
Staff recommends that City Council accepts the recommendation from the Planning Commission 
that is focused on the amendments related to parking and owner occupancy for ADU’s in the R-5 
and R-7.2 residential zoning districts.  There is also a slight change to a title:  The code currently 
has the building code as the “Uniform Building Code” – that title is no longer what is used for the 
building code requirements for residential units.  Now it is the “Oregon Residential Specialty 
Code” that is used when the Building Department reviews any changes to a residential structure.  
She wanted the Council to know there are changes that are needed in addition to these and they 
will see those changes to the code related to housing and ADU’s.     
 
Ms. Betz said they are recommending doing these proposed changes now to get us current with 
HB 2001.  They are working on the Housing Needs Analysis and the code audit and the DLCD 
will have a model code out at the end of this year so the Planning Commission can go through the 
comprehensive review.                                                                                                                 
 
Councilor Tracy asked for clarification on changing the code.  Ms. Betz said tonight they can 
approve the ordinance and they can deal with the definition as they do a comprehensive review.   
Mayor Stempel opened the public hearing at 7:25 p.m. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS:                                                                                                                                        
None. 
 
Councilor Tracy made a motion to close the public hearing.  Motion was seconded by Councilor 
Reisner.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Councilor Mersereau said he attended the Planning Commission meeting and they had many 
questions regarding what they were looking at.  He recommends approving the changes.              
Councilor Ripley asked what happens if you build a little house on your property and then a year 
later decide you don’t want a vacation rental and want to turn it into a rental house.  Ms. Betz said 
on a vacation rental the owner has to have a business license and they can collect the transient 
lodging tax.  The purpose of this law is to allow more affordable housing opportunities.  Mr. 
Jacobs added that if you had a long-term rental you do not have the restrictions you have with 
vacation rentals (deed restriction and off-street parking requirement).   
 
Councilor Tracy made a motion to approve Ordinance 1499, an Ordinance amending Chapter 
17.10 and 17.12 of the Gladstone Municipal Code removing owner occupancy and parking 
requirements for accessory dwelling units (ADU’s) as required by House Bill (HB) 2001.  Motion 
was seconded by Councilor Reisner.  Ms. Kratz took a roll call vote:  Councilor Ripley – yes.    

1 - 5



Councilor Tracy – yes. Councilor Reisner – yes.  Councilor Mersereau – yes.  Mayor Stempel – 
yes.  Motion passed unanimously.   
 
Second Reading:    
 
Councilor Reisner made a motion to approve Ordinance 1499, an Ordinance amending Chapter 
17.10 and 17.12 of the Gladstone Municipal Code removing owner occupancy and parking 
requirements for accessory dwelling units (ADU’s) as required by House Bill (HB) 2001.  Motion 
was seconded by Councilor Tracy. Ms. Kratz took a roll call vote:  Councilor Ripley – yes.    
Councilor Tracy – yes. Councilor Reisner – yes.  Councilor Mersereau – yes.  Mayor Stempel – 
yes.  Motion passed unanimously.   

 
13. RESOLUTION 1174 – DESIGNATING TRUCK ROUTES FOR GLADSTONE:                                            

Police Chief Schmerber said this is to amend Resolution 718, designating truck routes within the 
City of Gladstone.  They are focusing on preventing through truck traffic also.  This was a 2019 
goal of the Traffic and Safety Advisory Board.  They are asking to maintain I-205 from 82nd Drive 
down to 99E/McLoughlin Blvd. within the City limits as a truck route and also designate 
99E/McLoughlin Blvd. a truck route from the north City limits to the south City limits and prevent 
through truck traffic throughout the middle of the City with the exception of local deliveries only.  
He sees this as a safety concern and doesn’t believe that tractor trailers need to come through the 
City from I-205 to 99E/McLoughlin as a short cut unless there is a reason for them to get there.  
They have stopped several trucks recently after receiving complaints that they have been using 
Arlington Street very early in the mornings.  There will need to be signage posted before they can 
enforce this.  He is recommending Option 3, which authorizes the designation of both I-205 and 
99E/McLoughlin to include no through traffic within the City except for local deliveries.  ODOT’s 
definition of a truck is a vehicle with gross vehicle weight of 10,000 pounds or more that is 
required to have a commercial driver’s license or vehicle markings by ODOT.  Chief Schmerber 
said they are looking at tractor trailers and typically not box trucks.                                                                           
 
There was discussion regarding mapping apps that indicate truck routes. 
 
Councilor Reisner made a motion to approve Resolution No. 1774, a resolution amending 
Resolution No. 718, to designate a portion of Interstate 205 between the interchanges of 
Gladstone/82nd Drive, and Oregon City/McLoughlin Boulevard and McLoughlin Boulevard from 
the south City limits to the North City limits as the designated truck route for the City of Gladstone 
and prohibiting through truck traffic within the City with the exception of local deliveries.  Motion 
was seconded by Councilor Ripley.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 

14. REGIONAL WASTEWATER SYSTEM COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT:                                                     
Mayor Stempel said this was the first thing she started doing when she became Mayor because the 
wastewater agreement was falling apart.  This agreement allows an elected official from Gladstone 
to serve on an advisory body and to participate in the discussions.  There is no cost impact.  It will 
be reviewed in a year.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS:                                                                                                                                             
Steve Johnson said this IGA does nothing and changes nothing.  He said the City of Gladstone 
will have no more say in the rates of the WES service area or the cost of expansion than it does 
right now through existing advisory committees.  The sewer district is governed by the Clackamas 
County Commission and with one possible exception none of the Commissioners live in the WES 
service area.  Their final decisions do not effect them personally.  He feels this is wrong.  The 
Clackamas County Commission previously merged our sewer district with one that serves Happy 

1 - 6



Valley and Milwaukie without our consent.  He said the merger diluted and minimized our 
financial investment in the processing plant in Oregon City.  It has also resulted in a larger 
processing plant that emits more odors, specifically the ammoniated odors that occasionally waft 
over Gladstone.  The only way to change this and to make final decisions as part of an actual 
governing body is to change state law.  He is disappointed that our City has not lobbied our state 
representatives in this regard.  He knows firsthand that they are open to discussing this issue with 
Gladstone.  He would like to ask that the Council not approve this IGA until it is clearly stated 
that all final decisions related to the governance of the WES service district are made by the 
Clackamas County Commission.  This fact is nowhere to be found in the IGA that is before the 
Council.  He said there is absolutely no reason to hide it.  
 
Councilor Reisner made a motion to approve the Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) between 
Water Environmental Services (WES) and the City of Gladstone related to the Regional 
Wastewater System Cooperative Agreement.  Motion was seconded by Councilor Tracy.   
 
Discussion:  Councilor Mersereau said in relation to WES that it appears that all of the information 
is not given out.  He believes that if you have people in the discussion you can improve things and 
this could be a start to asking questions.  Councilor Reisner agreed and feels they should approve 
this and maybe we can get things changed in the future.  Mayor Stempel said that now Gladstone 
is represented at the table, along with all of the cities that are in the Tri-City Sewer District.   
 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 

15. APPOINTMENTS TO BOARDS, COMMITTEES AND COMMISSIONS:                                                      
a) Audit Committee:                                                                                                                             
One application received for two vacant terms.  The applicant has withdrawn his application. 
b) Library Advisory Board:                                                                                                                         
One application received for two one-year terms.                                                                                 
c) Traffic Safety Advisory Board:                                                                                                           
One application received for two vacant terms. 
 
Councilor Ripley feels they should have a better evaluation process on people who are applying.  
He feels that if you know someone on the Council you have a chance to get appointed, but if you 
didn’t know a Councilor you wouldn’t have a chance.  Councilor Reisner said that previously the 
Library Board did interview prospective applicants but it was discussed and revamped two years 
ago.  He said they have been struggling with getting people to volunteer at all.  Mayor Stempel 
said she would like to see an interview process.  Councilor Tracy agreed with Councilors Reisner 
and Ripley.  He feels the process needs to be slowed down a little bit.  He likes the idea of vetting 
people.  He feels they should put together another process for the future.  Councilor Mersereau 
said they could call and interview applicants if they desire.                                                                                        
 
Councilor Ripley made a motion to hold this over and come up with a more defined process.  
Motion was seconded by Councilor Tracy.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS:                                                                                                                                     
Michael Milch said that in recent years they have had fewer applicants than vacant positions and 
that was often the reason given for postponing the appointments.  He said in December they had 
a sitting member of the Library Board whose term was to end in December of 2019 who applied 
to renew his term but when the Council decided to postpone appointments to the Library Board 
that person’s application was not considered at that time.  He said there was a similar situation 
with the Audit Committee.  He wants to be sure that if they give an extension to these applications 

1 - 7



that they have some understanding of whether citizens who applied are still under consideration 
or if their applications are deemed to be no longer valid.  He favors acting on the two applications 
tonight. 
 
There was discussion regarding the application from Dr. Bryce Colson. 
 
Motion passed unanimously.     
 
It was agreed to discuss this at next month’s meeting. 
                                                                                                           

16. DISCUSS CITY BANKING SERVICES:                                                                                                                
Councilor Reisner said for many years they had at least two banks in town that the City used for 
their banking.  Currently there is only one commercial bank in town.  He said there are credit 
unions close by (CFCU and OnPoint).  He belongs to both and he knows the good things they do 
for the community.  He feels that the credit unions answer to the membership and monies go back 
into membership whereas U.S. Bank is a commercial bank.  He would like to ask staff to look into 
switching to a credit union that is more community based.                                                    
 
Mayor Stempel said if the Council agrees this would have to go out for an RFP process.  Ms. Betz 
said she put together some procurement of banking services requirements because they can’t just 
choose a bank - it’s a comprehensive process that takes approximately six months.  She said that 
staff agrees with him that the City has not gone out and done a request for qualifications in a very 
long time.  Councilor Mersereau said this is not just a staff thing – it can effect all or half of the 
City’s employees.  He recommends that they look at this next year as part of the strategic planning 
meeting.                                                                                                            
 
Ms. Betz suggested having the Audit Committee or Budget Committee assist them with this.  
Councilor Tracy asked if we would be able to call for a local investment portfolio for each of these 
banks – Ms. Betz said they could consider that as part of the RFQ or RFP.  She said this is one of 
her reasons that she will be coming to the Council as to why they need to hire a Finance Director 
– so they have someone with that level of expertise to help do this kind of work for the City.                           
It was agreed to hold this over until the strategic planning meeting in January.              
 

17. REVIEW DRAFT PROCESS FOR PROCESSING CORRESPONDENCE MATERIALS 
AND COMPLAINTS ON ELECTED OFFICIALS:                                                                                              
 
Correspondence:                                                                                                                                           
Ms. Betz said they are attempting to formalize a process so that at each Council meeting they are 
not trying to figure out what to do with correspondence.  She is asking for guidance regarding the 
handling of correspondence and to have a different formalized process for handling complaints 
that come with elected officials.  According to City Council Rules correspondence is included in 
the meeting agendas.  She is asking if the Council still wants to have correspondence on the 
agenda.  Currently, when they receive correspondence (mail or email) they are able to get it to the 
Council quickly via email (it would be available to the public).  Councilor Tracy wanted to clarify 
that there will still be Public Comments on the agenda and anyone can send correspondence to the 
City.  Ms. Betz said that if someone sends correspondence regarding an agenda item that would 
be put in the packet under that agenda item.                                                                                                                
 
There was discussion and it was agreed that the Council Rules should be amended and 
correspondence will not be included in the meeting agendas. 
 

1 - 8



PUBLIC COMMENTS:                                                                                                                                         
Bill Osburn said he hopes this will do away with a lot of squabbling and a lot of the stuff that 
results in anonymous letters.  He agrees that if the correspondence has to do with an agenda item 
then maybe it’s worth reading into the record.  He feels that the anonymous letters don’t do 
anybody any good.  Regarding complaints he hopes that as elected officials if there are complaints 
that could either be done in the open or using a third party investigator.  He feels that if there is a 
complaint it should be looked at seriously and impartially and if there is an issue there it is 
addressed and then we move on.  He appreciates the Council doing this – he has been asking for 
it for a while.   
 
Process to Address Complaints Against Elected Officials:                
Ms. Betz went over what they have currently in the City Council Rules under Section G, “Council 
Member Conduct”.  She said they have had complaints but the Council has not made a decision 
on whether or not they wanted to use this section.  She gathered information from other 
jurisdictions regarding their rules/process.  She is asking if the Council wants to continue with 
what is currently in the City Council Rules and use them or if they want to adopt something 
separate, like Exhibit A in her staff report.  She went over Exhibit A.  Any complaint to be 
investigated has to be in the form of a written and authored complaint.  She is asking if they want 
the City Administrator or another elected official not affiliated with the alleged violation to be part 
of it.  Mayor Stempel thinks this is a great idea – that way they are not in the middle of it and it’s 
not on their shoulders to make these decisions because it’s an uncomfortable place to be to censor 
one of their own.  Councilor Tracy would like to table this – there is some language he would like 
to discuss and get more information on.  He thinks it’s a good direction.  Ms. Betz clarified that 
tonight they are only having a conversation and she would bring something back at a later date for 
the Council to adopt.  She needs direction to move forward on the highlighted areas of her staff 
report.  It was agreed to table this and put it on the agenda for the May Council meeting.  
Councilors will provide feedback to Ms. Betz prior to the May Council meeting. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS:                                                                                                                                            
Natalie Smith said if they are doing policies for Council Rules she thinks it’s important to consider 
that there should be some guidelines for people who get up and address the City Council because 
as observers and audience members they should speak to them with respect and any criticism 
should be done in an appropriate manner.  She hopes that when they look at setting policy that it 
is important to look at how elected officials are spoken to.   
  

BUSINESS CARRIED FORWARD:                                                                                                                                      
Mayor Stempel said the intersections at the end of Max Patterson Park on Cornell/Exeter/Fairfield are 
currently two-way stops.  Four-way stops were recommended by both the Traffic Safety Advisory Board 
and the Parks & Recreation Board and approved by the City Council but they were told they needed a traffic 
study in order to add the additional stop signs.  She has an issue with that because there are no sidewalks in 
that area, cars are parked along all the streets and pedestrians are walking in the middle of the street.  There 
are three times during school hours where the intersections are incredibly busy.  In the summer it’s also 
very busy because of the park.  She feels that traffic has to be slowed down and this is the simplest and 
easiest way to do that.  She could not find any federal rules preventing this.  Councilor Reisner said the stop 
signs at E. Clarendon/Chicago have not been replaced.  Ms. Betz said they will look into this further to see 
what other steps they could take.  
 
Mayor Stempel said some business owners have talked with her and Councilor Tracy about the two-hour 
versus four-hour parking signs on Portland Avenue.  The question is why there is a four-hour zone in the 
business district.  The business owners want a two-hour zone so they can have the stop and go business 

1 - 9



trade that they need.  Ms. Betz said this is a good time to look at this issue and parking enforcement in 
that area. There are also recommendations in the Downtown Revitalization Plan about parking. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS:                                                                                                                                                           
Lisa Westapher lives on Clarendon – she said they have been waiting for the stop sign to go back on Chicago 
after the construction and it has not.  She said cars are speeding down the street now because there is fresh 
blacktop and no stop signs.  She is hoping to get the stop sign back.   
                                                                                                                                                                                                     
BUSINESS FROM THE AUDIENCE:                                                                                                                                
Les Poole has had concerns about the Webster Road property in the past:  its legal status and conflicting 
resolutions.  He expressed some of those concerns again when the IGA was approved with the County for 
the library.  He recently discovered some anomalies and questions arose.  He came across a letter that talks 
about ORS Chapter 35 and what you do if for some reason you want to disperse property that you’ve 
condemned.  He said there are a lot of restrictions on the use of that property. He believes we have some 
legal exposure in this community because of the vagueness of interpretation of a stipulated judgement and 
some of the designations that property has received.  It is currently four tax lots.  By resolution it’s all a 
library site.  That resolution circumvented the 2007 resolution that established the nature park in the spirit 
of the taking and the resolution of necessity.  When property is taken there’s a resolution of necessity – that 
means you’re taking it for that and that only.  He is very concerned about what’s going to happen in the 
future and if we are going to face legal ramifications for moving the library downtown and continuing to 
resolve that that property there is all a park.  He said the letter is very specific in how you treat property 
that is taken.  His question is:  If a member of the gentleman’s family were to show up in downtown 
Gladstone three or four years from now and there was a library here and that person asked if they took that 
property for parks and a library what is the library doing downtown?  He asked an attorney for his opinion 
and he said obviously the first thing that former property owner would do would be to contact an attorney.  
He hopes they all go back and look at the 2007 Gladstone Nature Park resolution which refers to 1.27 acres 
for a water tower.  He would like a response to some of his concerns and he will be emailing them tomorrow.                           
Councilor Reisner asked what he wants the City to do.  Mr. Poole said he wants them to clarify the legal 
status of the property.  He would like to see a purchase and sale agreement, which is a requirement in the 
State of Oregon.  He has requested it over and over and has never seen one.  Ms. Betz said she has sent that 
twice, it’s the Oberson Report, and she has copied the City Council. 
       
BUSINESS FROM THE COUNCIL: 
 
Councilor Reisner:                                                                                                                                                               
He asked why agenda item #13 was pulled.  Ms. Betz said she thought she was making an appropriate 
interpretation with the parking and after discussing it with the City Attorney she did not have the authority 
to make that interpretation.  She has the authority to initiate the Planning Commission to make an 
interpretation so they removed it from the agenda and they are going to work with Clackamas County and 
the Planning Commission for them to handle the parking. 
 
Mayor Stempel:                                                                                                                                                                   
Councilor Mersereau said he would like to attend the Willamette Falls Locks Commission meetings.  Mayor 
Stempel said they are open to the public.  She pointed out that we do not hold a seat at the Commission – 
we are just a non-participatory audience member.  She said this is a structural impediment that is owned 
and operated by the U.S. Army Corps and they are trying to transfer ownership to a public corporate entity 
to take it over so there is a lot of legalese involved.  They sent a $7 million request to the State for funding 
to repair the locks – it went all the way through, almost to a second reading, and our legislative session 
abruptly stopped.  If it does not go through during an executive session or a special session it will have to 
wait until the next session.  Councilor Mersereau said that when he said he wanted someone to be involved 

1 - 10



in the meetings he meant at the table.  Mayor Stempel said she gets the agenda and minutes from the 
meetings.  She said this is going to be an amazing project that’s going to really impact Gladstone.   
 
Council activity detail report – she stressed that this was not created by her alone; other cities are heading 
this direction and it’s for accountability and transparency.  It started because she talked to Ms. Betz and she 
was not in the loop as far as what the Councilors were all working on individually so she needs to be 
informed.  Councilor Tracy agreed that they all to be kept in the loop on the things they are working on.  
Citizens were wondering what they were doing and that’s where it all came from.  She feels that it’s 
important that they all understand what they are personally involved with in regard to the City and what 
they are participating in.   
 
She said there seem to be a lot of first amendment rights being thrown around lately and the misconceptions 
have her concerned.  She said just because they are elected officials, board members, or committee 
members, that they still retain their first amendment rights.  Mr. Jacobs confirmed that in their personal 
capacity, that is correct.  Mayor Stempel said they don’t leave those rights at the door; they still have their 
first amendment rights so when they are threatened and intimidated and accused of things they can respond.  
She said that her home and the homes of all the Councilors and volunteers are their homes; they are not 
owned or operated by the City or for the City.  Her home is the place she goes to be that wife, mother, 
daughter, sister; it’s not where she goes to be the Mayor.  She received a threatening letter at her home and 
she received a call from her family asking if they were being sued.  She said this is not acceptable and the 
line has been crossed.  She doesn’t know why it was done.  She spoke with the attorney and it was the 
address that they were given.  She said it was inappropriate and that is off the table. 
 
Tolling of I-205 – at last week’s C-4 meeting the ODOT consultants managing the I-5 Rose Quarter and 
the I-205 Abernethy Bridge Tolling Projects gave a presentation.  She said it was not received very well at 
all.  She said that everyone at the table agreed that this is not right – we are held hostage because that is our 
only way across the river other than going through Oregon City, which is not acceptable.  She said we were 
not represented when House Bill 2017 was approved but our Clackamas County Caucus has been formed 
and they are going to fight it as much as they can.  Locally they are going to create a subcommittee of C-4 
where the mayors and elected officials that want to participate will work on making this right.  ODOT’s 
take on it is that this is what the legislation told them to do so they are not going to change it until they tell 
them otherwise.  She will be keeping everyone updated.   
 
Metro Helping Together Homeless Wraparound Services Bond – it’s $250 million/year for ten years.  If 
you’re a single person making $125,000 or a couple making $200,000 that is where the tax will come into 
play.  Today some legal challenges were filed so it is not a done deal.   
 
She attended the last SERT meeting where the topic was pandemics; specifically, on the COVID-19.  She 
recommends the class for everyone.  They were informed and did not leave panic stricken.  There are 
updates on COVID-19 provided on the City’s website and the County’s website instead of relying on the 
media.                             
 
ADJOURN:                                                                                                                                                                                
Meeting was adjourned at approximately 8:58 P.M.                
  
Approved by the Mayor this ________ day of ___________________________, 2020. 
 
                                                                        ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________                  ______________________________________       
Tamara Stempel, Mayor                                                   Tami Bannick, City Recorder     

1 - 11



GLADSTONE CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES of May 12, 2020 
 
Meeting was called to order at 6:30 PM. – Via Telephone Conference Call 
 
ROLL CALL:  
Mayor Tammy Stempel, Councilor Ripley, Councilor Neace, Councilor Tracy, Councilor Reisner, 
Councilor Todd, Councilor Mersereau 
 
ABSENT:                                                                                                                                                                              
None                                                                                                                                                                                       
 
STAFF:                                                                                                                                                                                
Jacque Betz, City Administrator; Tami Bannick, City Recorder; John Schmerber, Chief of Police; Rick 
Huffman, Fire Chief; Cathy Brucker, Interim Finance Director; Chad Jacobs, City Attorney 
 
Mayor Stempel called the meeting to order.  She said with things changing constantly the best place for up 
to date information is through official channels, and the City’s website is one of those.  She explained that 
per the Governor’s executive order 20-16 regarding compliance with Oregon Public Meetings Law this 
meeting is being held electronically by telephone.  She went over the call-in number and access codes.  She 
went over the meeting agenda. 
 
AGENDA ADDITIONS OR CORRECTIONS:                                                                                                                
None. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:                                

1. Approval of March 23, 2020 and April 27, 2020 Regular Meeting Minutes 
2. Approval of February and March Bank Balances 
3. Budget Report for Periods ending 02-29-2020 and 03-31-2020 
4. Approval of February and March Check Registers 
5. Legal Costs on Projects 
6. Department Head Monthly Reports for March and April 2020 
7. Approval of Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) between Clackamas County Sheriff’s 

Department and Gladstone Police Department for Participation in the Special Weapons and 
Tactics (SWAT) Program                                      

 
Councilor Neace made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda.  Motion was seconded by Councilors 
Ripley and Mersereau. Ms. Bannick took a roll call vote:  Councilor Ripley – yes.  Councilor Neace – 
yes.  Councilor Tracy – yes.  Councilor Reisner – yes.  Councilor Todd – yes.  Councilor Mersereau 
– yes.  Mayor Stempel – yes.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 
Mayor Stempel said for those members of the public who wished to speak the deadline for accepting 
comments was noon today.  They allow three minutes for public comment unless there are special 
circumstances and additional time has been approved beforehand by staff.  She said a few words about the 
role of the City Council.  She feels it is important for everyone to understand their limitations:  they 
represent the citizens of Gladstone and not their own personal agendas and beliefs.  There have been many 
times when a decision being made doesn’t align with what they would like personally, but after hearing the 
citizens’ desires they have sometimes gone a different direction.  That doesn’t mean that their beliefs have 
changed; just that they listened and acted accordingly.  There are laws and rules they have to use as the 
basis of their decisions.  They do not have the luxury of randomly making decisions, but instead have to be 
consistent and take the path that is defensible.  They appreciate everyone’s time in participating in this 

1 - 12



process.  Her goal is to keep the meeting respectful and engaging and she hopes everyone will help her do 
that.        
 
CORRESPONDENCE:                                                                                                                                                            
None. 
                                                                  
REGULAR AGENDA                  

 
8. COVID-19 UPDATES INCLUDING REOPENING PLAN PHASE 1 AND FINANCIAL 

IMPACTS TO CITY SERVICES:                                                                                                                            
Ms. Betz said she will be going over the reopening planning guidelines specifically related to the 
City of Gladstone facilities and the financial impacts to City services due to Covid-10 to date that 
they are aware of.  The documents related to these topics have been posted on the City’s website.  
Since mid-March they have activated their emergency management team, have met on a weekly 
basis and have provided the City Council and the community with weekly situational reports.  Last 
week when the Governor’s office allowed guidance for outdoor recreation organizations they met 
as a team to talk about preparing their reopening phase for City facilities.  They have not included 
Phase 2 or Phase 3 because they would rather focus on those as they get more information from 
the Governor’s office.  Phase 1 is a City facilities document and it is not related to the reopening 
of businesses or establishments in the community.  They would like to open the new City Hall 
lobby on May 18th and enforce social distancing guidelines.  They have utility billing drop off 
boxes located outside and at the lobby window and they will schedule meetings by appointment.  
They will require people that come into the lobby to wear masks and they also have the ability to 
take temperatures.  They will also have the lobby open for Municipal Court and they are working 
with the Judge and court staff to make appointments in the courtroom beginning June 9th.  Once 
they have refined that plan they will share that information.  The Fire Department will remain 
closed to the public and meetings will be by appointment.  The Police Department, which is now 
located in the new building, will also have reception open beginning May 18th and will enforce 
social distancing guidelines as well.  Public Works administration will remain closed to the public 
because they are not able to meet the social distancing guidelines but will continue to have 
meetings by appointment.                                                                                                                                             
 
The parks have always remained open, however, they have closed the playgrounds and the boat 
ramp because of the size of Meldrum Bar Park.  During the Phase 1 plan they will address 
Meldrum Bar Park separately.  During Phase 1 most parks are open to the public (including 
restrooms) but the playgrounds are to remain closed per the Governor’s orders, field reservations 
are canceled, programming and events are canceled, Spray Park will remain closed, and the 
Pickleball/Tennis Courts will reopen if they can keep the number of people assembled under 10 
(per the Governor’s ruling).  For Meldrum Bar Park they would like to remove the barricades 
tomorrow morning and open it up to vehicular traffic and reopen the restrooms.  They are prepared 
to bring on four seasonal employees which will meet the Governor’s requirements.  There will be 
a stronger police presence to assure there are no large social gatherings.  AMR is not going to have 
a lifeguard on duty at High Rocks beginning Memorial Day weekend.  They are working with the 
City of Oregon City to do some social messaging. 
                                                                                                                                                       
The Senior Center will remain closed to the public and will likely not reopen until Phase 3.  
Programming and reservations are canceled.  The manager is working on soliciting a survey to 
implement virtual programs.                                                                                                                              
 

1 - 13



 Mayor Stempel thanked staff for all their work on this.  This has been changing constantly for the 
past two months and they were not able to create their plan until the Governor created hers and 
the County created theirs.                                                                                                              
 
Councilor Tracy asked what precipitous event would cause a closure at Meldrum Bar Park due to 
noncompliance.  Chief Schmerber said that if rules/warnings aren’t adhered to regarding social 
gatherings that would be a decision based on photographs, police officer observation, and his 
observations that he would make a recommendation to the City Administrator and they would go 
from there.  He is hoping that people will adhere to the rules.  He said the police will be frequenting 
the park often to get a good gauge of what’s going on.  Ms. Betz said that they want people to 
have access to these amenities but if they aren’t self-policing then they will come back with a 
recommendation to close the park again.  The City can’t just randomly make these decisions - they 
have to be in compliance with the State and County.                                               
 
Ms. Betz went over the financial impact to City Services.  She and Cathy Brucker, Interim Finance 
Director, considered the following things in the analysis:  accumulating of information received 
from the Oregon Department of Revenue, Clackamas County, the League of Oregon Cities and 
other miscellaneous sources applicable to reduced revenues or increased expenses, a full review 
of actual City revenues and expenditures through April 30, 2020, and estimation of impacts as 
applied to ending balances as of June 30, 2020 and projecting into the first half of fiscal year 
2020/21 ending December of 2020. They identified areas of revenue shortage and expenditure 
savings to help minimize the impact.  They are projecting a revenue shortage of approximately 
$850,000 due to the following reasons:   

 Court fines have dropped over previous years and they have not had court for two 
months now to collect revenues or impose fines 

 Transient Lodging Tax is anticipated to be negligible until the economy rebounds 
 Department of Revenue estimates impacts to state shared revenues, including as taxes in 

the Roads and Street Fund 
 March utility billing – actual revenue loss of $233,000, estimated loss from late charges, 

“Support Local Business” program, etc. of $75,000 
 Other miscellaneous revenues generated from business licenses, building rentals, 

recreation programs, senior programs, etc. 
 
To mitigate the resulting deficit to the biennial budget, the following restrictions have been enacted 
until economic conditions improve:   

 Hiring freezes have been placed on all vacant positions, along with new (unfilled) 
positions that were approved in the biennial budget 

 Part-time positions will not be filled unless absolutely necessary to assist in operations 
 Training opportunities have been frozen (except when mandated in Fire and Law 

Enforcement), along with other related activities 
 Continued evaluation of costs will be ongoing to identify other areas of savings 

 
These reductions will help offset revenues by approximately $425,000 within the same time period.  
The City ending the previous fiscal year in a good position and they have adhered to budget throughout 
the first half of this biennium.  Revenues have been strong to date, allowing the City to be in a relatively 
good position.  Ms. Betz thanked Ms. Brucker for all the work she has done in analyzing the City’s 
financial condition since the onset of Covid-19.   

 
9. DECLARE FIRE DEPARTMENT LADDER TRUCK AS SURPLUS PROPERTY:                                       

1 - 14



Fire Chief Rick Huffman said they purchased the current ladder truck, a 2007 Pierce Velocity 
Quint Aerial Ladder, in 2006 at a cost of $685,525.  They propose to surplus the truck due to the 
financial burden of replacement, the impact to staffing, maintaining training standards, and the 
redundancy of this type of apparatus in our response area.  It is also proposed that any revenue 
generated be deposited into the Apparatus & Equipment Reserve fund.  The benefits to this 
recommendation are the ongoing maintenance fees and funding for replacement will be 
discontinued with a positive influence on the budget, staffing and training impacts will be reduced, 
the effective response force for a structure fire that is dispatched after a 911 call has and will 
continue to include a ladder truck (or multiple ladder trucks) from surrounding fire agencies under 
mutual aid and automatic aid that are staffed 24/7, tall buildings require special fire code 
requirements that help protect occupants and reduce fire spread due to the height or size of the 
building, and available parking space will increase within the fire station apparatus bay.  Chief 
Huffman said that providing an all risk response strategy is difficult at best and unattainable under 
current conditions and for the foreseeable future.                                              
 
Councilor Ripley asked if there was any liability to Gladstone if they sell the truck and it has a 
damaged ladder.  Chief Huffman said to his knowledge the Fire Department had not taken 
possession of that ladder truck until it was reviewed by Underwriters Laboratory and the ladder 
manufacturer who stated that it was repaired in better condition than when it was initially 
manufactured.  They received unofficial estimates on the value of the truck being at least $350,000 
in its current condition.  Mr. Jacobs said as long as they make full disclosure to any potential buyer 
that absolves the City from any potential liability.                                                           
 
Councilor Neace made a motion to approve the surplus of the Gladstone Fire Department Ladder 
Truck and the resulting revenue be placed in the Apparatus & Equipment Reserve fund.  Motion 
was seconded by Councilor Reisner.   
 
Discussion:  Councilor Ripley said when they sold equipment in the past the money did not go 
into the Apparatus & Equipment Reserve fund.  Ms. Betz said they are asking that the money go 
into that fund so that when they go through the next biennium budget process the Budget 
Committee can help allocate those funds.         
 
Ms. Bannick took a roll call vote:  Councilor Ripley – yes.  Councilor Neace – yes.  Councilor 
Tracy – yes.  Councilor Reisner – yes.  Councilor Todd – yes.  Councilor Mersereau – yes.  Mayor 
Stempel – yes.  Motion passed unanimously.  
                                                      

10. LOW INCOME UTILITY BILLING ASSISTANCE PROGRAM: 
Ms. Betz said that Ms. Brucker has done a comprehensive review of the City’s Low Income Utility 
Billing Assistance Program.  They surveyed five other entities, including WES, then compared 
the income qualification guidelines and other requirements to what the City of Gladstone has been 
utilizing for years.  They found out that there are three qualifiers in use, which are all federal or 
state established.  Staff would like to go with the HUD very low income level for the 
Portland/Hillsboro area – it would be far more reflective of cost of living in this area than the one 
they are currently using and give families a better chance of qualifying based on the incremental 
levels from 1-8 family members.  This should make the program accessible to more residents.  If 
Council agrees with the modifications staff will remove the low income references from the 
Gladstone City Code and prepare a resolution to move the Low Income Assistance Program and 
rates to the Master Fees and Charges Schedule and make an effective date of July 1, 2020.                           
Mayor Stempel asked the Councilors how they felt about this proposal – all were in favor of it. 
                                                             

11. I-205 TOLLING DIVERSION COMMITTEE FRAMEWORK:                                                                         

1 - 15



Ms. Betz said Clackamas County has been considering the idea of convening a small group to 
consider issues related to the I-205 tolling project with the cities that are most impacted.  This 
group will establish a direct line of input into ODOT’s I-205 tolling process and deliver its policy 
position to the Region 1 Area of Commission on Transportation (R1ACT) and the Oregon 
Transportation Commission (OTC).  Gladstone needs to appoint an elected official to serve on 
this committee.  Ms. Betz and the Public Works Director will also be participating.  The group 
will be meeting once a month through August.                                                                                             
 
There was discussion regarding the best choice of representative.                                                        
 
Councilor Ripley was appointed and Councilor Reisner will be alternate.     
                                              

BUSINESS CARRIED FORWARD:                                                                                                                                     
None.                                                                                                                                                                                           
 
BUSINESS FROM THE AUDIENCE: 
Mindy Garlington read a letter to the people of the City of Gladstone, the City Administrator, the City of 
Gladstone attorney, and the City Council.  “I do solemnly swear that I will support the Constitution of the 
United States and of the State of Oregon and the Charter and the Municipal Code of the City of Gladstone 
and that I will, to the best of my ability, perform the duties of City Councilor and Mayor for the City of 
Gladstone, Oregon during my entire term, so help me God.  I would like this Council to remember back to 
the day before this oath because clearly the exact words have been forgotten.  Let me remind you of a 
portion of our City Charter that each of you swore to uphold.  The City of Gladstone Charter Chapter 3, 
Section 12, Qualifications of an officer.  ‘No person shall be eligible for an elected office of the City unless 
at the time of his election he is a qualified elector within the meaning of the State Constitution and has 
resided in the City during the past twelve months immediately preceding the election and maintain 
continuous residency during the term of office’.  The Council shall be the final judge of the qualifications 
and election of its own members.  Our charter reads ‘maintain residency during the term of office’.  This is 
a clear requirement for all Councilors and not meant to be reinterpreted by anyone.  The words as written 
were a decision of the people when voting in the current City charter.  And after the failure to pass a new 
charter in 2017 it is evident to me that the people in this City want the charter to read and mean just as it is.  
The last line reads ‘The Council shall be final judge of the qualifications and election of its own members’.  
This line refers to the qualifications of being able to vote and our State Constitution is very specific in the 
section included below.”  Ms. Garlington said she emailed this letter.  “My point is that Linda Neace has 
not been a resident of the City of Gladstone since June of 2019 when she vacated her home at 730 Riverdale 
Drive in Gladstone.  She has not and does not live at her relatives’ home on Exeter Street and a post office 
box is certainly not a residence.  While I can sympathize with Linda’s misfortunes over the past year I 
cannot understand her blatant disregard for the rules that guide and govern this city.  Maintaining a home 
in this city is a rule, not a choice for a City Council position.  The current City Council has skirted this issue 
for almost a year now and failure to uphold our Charter and call her out on this issue as a City Council 
member is no less than inexcusable.  I am demanding that Linda Neace immediately step down from her 
seat as a City Council member for the City of Gladstone and every single one of her votes beginning June 
of 2019 should be voided from the city records.  And should that result in a change in decision…”  (Ms. 
Bannick announced that the three minutes were up and that Ms. Garlington had been muted.)  
                                                                                                                                     
BUSINESS FROM THE COUNCIL: 
 
Councilor Mersereau:                                                                                                                                                      
He said he doesn’t believe the Council Rules or the Mayor’s Council Rules have changed for quite some 
time.  He believes the Mayor’s methods of communication to the Willamette Week as one of the five rogue 
mayors was out of line with the Gladstone Council Rules.   

1 - 16



 
Councilor Todd:                                                                                                                                                           
She agreed with Councilor Mersereau.  She would like everyone to follow the Council Rules so that they 
can all be in the loop and not shocked when we hear things.   
 
Councilor Tracy:                                                                                                                                                               
He believes when you serve in any position it’s incumbent upon you to follow the rules.  He is not 
accustomed to following councilors home to see where they lay their head after a meeting.  He thinks if 
there is a councilor in violation that’s up to the councilor to correct that.  He does take exception and offense 
to how that letter was delivered and the content of the letter.  He is not sure what the remedy is. 
 
Councilor Neace:                                                                                                                                                          
She is very sorry that Ms. Garlington feels that strongly.  She said she hasn’t done anything incorrect.  She 
said that Ms. Garlington should not listen to gossip.   
 
Councilor Ripley:                                                                                                                                                           
He said he was walking his dog at Meldrum Bar Park recently and there are two signs on the nature trail 
that say it’s a natural area and to keep out, which is confusing.  He feels they need to be re-worded to make 
it clear that you’re supposed to stay on the trail.                                                                                                                        
 
He is working on some fund raising ideas for Traffic Safety and Parks & Recreation – he will be meeting 
with those boards to share those ideas to present to the Council.   
 
Mayor Stempel:                                                                                                                                                           
She said the big topics for C-4 (Clackamas County Coordinating Committee) are: a regional climate action 
plan that the County is going to be formulating and a lot of the cities are going to look to them for direction, 
a transit development plan, and the Metro South station.                                                                        
 
The Food Pantry is up and running in a modified manner.  Food and security are huge issues nationally.  
They have added a homebound senior component that she believes is working well.  She hopes they can 
keep that going even after the Covid crisis.  She thanked the volunteers that have come forward.              
 
She thanked staff for finding their way through the maze of regulations, conflicting information, and 
tremendous risk to our city and our citizens.  She wants to make sure they know how much they are 
appreciated.  She thinks they should have a big celebration after all of this is over.                                                               
 
She wanted to address the concerns voiced by Councilors Mersereau and Todd.  She said by now they 
should know that what’s printed in the newspaper isn’t always what happened.  She said she was not quoted 
in that newspaper article, which should have told them something.  If they had listened to the Zoom meeting 
that she was on with other mayors and other people her comments were completely about a plan; needing 
a plan.  They were not getting one.  The City could not formulate its plan until the State had one and then, 
in turn, the County needed to have one.  That’s all that they were advocating for was a plan.  It wasn’t 
anything out of line or anything that required a decision – it was the mayors begging for the past month to 
have a plan so that they could start pulling their pieces together.  There wasn’t anything rogue about it.  She 
doesn’t think that was out of line as a mayor or as a city councilor to expect something that’s been promised 
you for over a month.              
 
Councilor Reisner made a motion to adjourn the meeting.  Councilor Ripley seconded the motion.  Ms. 
Bannick took a roll call vote:  Councilor Ripley – yes.  Councilor Neace – yes.  Councilor Tracy – no (he 
wanted to make further comments regarding what the Mayor just said).  Councilor Reisner – yes.  Councilor 
Todd – yes.  Councilor Mersereau – yes.  Mayor Stempel – yes.  Motion passed (6-1).  

1 - 17



ADJOURN:                                                                                                                                                                               
Meeting was adjourned at approximately 7:35 P.M.                
  
Approved by the Mayor this ________ day of ___________________________, 2020. 
 
                                                                        ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________                  ______________________________________       
Tamara Stempel, Mayor                                                     Tami Bannick, City Recorder     

1 - 18



2



Bank
July

 2019

August

 2019

September

 2019

October

 2019

November

2019

December

 2019

LGIP -City Of Gladstone #4472 11,015,342.35$       9,857,248.31$       9,487,777.94$       9,225,297.13$       14,010,238.76$     13,870,179.78$     

LGIP - Urban Renewal Agency #4650 11,966,359.82          11,995,582.46       12,022,533.86       10,247,657.50       9,547,593.51         8,830,539.98         

Checking Accounts:

General Fund 212,487.17               68,755.50               205,791.19             213,791.86             450,832.68             222,261.31             

Urban Renewal 14,162.39                 14,162.43               14,162.43               13,394.36               13,394.36               13,394.36               

Municipal Court 28,545.29                 25,719.74               27,881.47               29,000.62               23,814.45               30,360.40               

Totals 23,236,897.02$       21,961,468.44$     21,758,146.89$     19,729,141.47$     24,045,873.76$     22,966,735.83$     

Bank
January

 2020

February

2020

March

 2020

April

 2020

May

2020

June

2020

LGIP -City Of Gladstone #4472 13,089,907.25$       12,986,772.34$     13,156,688.30$     14,477,532.37$     

LGIP - Urban Renewal Agency #4650 7,765,924.02            6,271,161.69         4,709,091.89         2,119,415.51         

Checking Accounts:

General Fund 95,566.32                 229,084.49             133,143.95             143,574.24             

Urban Renewal 13,211.49                 13,211.50               13,211.56               12,848.95               

Municipal Court 23,770.62                 20,575.51               40,988.54               29,399.12               

Totals 20,988,379.70$       19,520,805.53$     18,053,124.24$     16,782,770.19$     -$                         -$                         

BANK BALANCES

Month Ending Balance

2 - 1





3



6/2/2020 1:48:14 PM Page 1 of 21

Budget Report
City of Gladstone, OR Account Summary

For Fiscal: 2019-2020 Period Ending: 04/30/2020

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Fund: 100 - GENERAL FUND

Revenue

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL.

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 3,730,000.00 0.00 -3,730,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-000-309999 3,730,000.00

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL. Total: 0.000.003,730,000.00 3,730,000.00 -3,730,000.00 0.00 %

RptType: 3100 - LOCAL TAXES

CURRENT YEAR TAXES 8,609,105.00 4,205,347.86 -4,403,757.14 48.85 %14,891.33100-000-310010 8,609,105.00

PRIOR YEAR TAXES 300,000.00 39,995.80 -260,004.20 13.33 %1,708.01100-000-310050 300,000.00

LIBRARY DISTRICT REVENUE 743,142.00 307,111.00 -436,031.00 41.33 %0.00100-000-311030 743,142.00

TRANSIENT LODGING TAX 305,000.00 121,226.62 -183,773.38 39.75 %7,422.05100-000-314045 305,000.00

RptType: 3100 - LOCAL TAXES Total: 4,673,681.2824,021.399,957,247.00 9,957,247.00 -5,283,565.72 46.94 %

RptType: 3110 - STATE SHARED TAXES

STATE REVENUE SHARING 305,000.00 70,819.99 -234,180.01 23.22 %0.00100-000-310170 305,000.00

ALCOHOL TAX REVENUE 450,846.00 139,589.51 -311,256.49 30.96 %16,062.84100-000-311010 450,846.00

MARIJUANA TAX 99,457.00 48,850.12 -50,606.88 49.12 %0.00100-000-311015 99,457.00

CIGARETTE TAX REVENUE 28,155.00 9,805.94 -18,349.06 34.83 %671.28100-000-311020 28,155.00

RptType: 3110 - STATE SHARED TAXES Total: 269,065.5616,734.12883,458.00 883,458.00 -614,392.44 30.46 %

RptType: 3120 - RIGHT OF WAY FEES

GLADSTONE DISPOSAL FRANCHISE FEE 250,000.00 90,000.26 -159,999.74 36.00 %30,865.11100-000-312010 250,000.00

PGE FRANCHISE FEES 800,000.00 403,669.85 -396,330.15 50.46 %0.00100-000-312025 800,000.00

NW NATURAL GAS FRANCHISE FEE 340,000.00 44,546.46 -295,453.54 13.10 %0.00100-000-312030 340,000.00

COMCAST CABLE TV FRANCHISE FE 360,000.00 70,489.32 -289,510.68 19.58 %0.00100-000-312040 360,000.00

RptType: 3120 - RIGHT OF WAY FEES Total: 608,705.8930,865.111,750,000.00 1,750,000.00 -1,141,294.11 34.78 %

RptType: 3130 - LICENSES AND PERMITS

BUSINESS LICENSE FEES 184,000.00 83,732.00 -100,268.00 45.51 %2,120.00100-000-313010 184,000.00

LIQUOR LICENSE RENEWALS 2,000.00 935.00 -1,065.00 46.75 %0.00100-000-313015 2,000.00

ALARM PERMITS 8,000.00 9,500.00 1,500.00 118.75 %1,125.00100-000-313020 8,000.00

RptType: 3130 - LICENSES AND PERMITS Total: 94,167.003,245.00194,000.00 194,000.00 -99,833.00 48.54 %

RptType: 3140 - CHARGES FOR SERVICES

RECREATION FEES 6,000.00 992.16 -5,007.84 16.54 %0.00100-000-314010 6,000.00

SENIOR CENTER BUILDING RENTAL FE… 8,500.00 6,818.75 -1,681.25 80.22 %0.00100-000-314015 8,500.00

PLANNING APPLICATION FEES 70,000.00 2,236.00 -67,764.00 3.19 %0.00100-000-314020 70,000.00

SOCIAL SERVICES CONTRACT 75,000.00 20,972.96 -54,027.04 27.96 %0.00100-000-314025 75,000.00

LIEN SEARCH FEES 12,000.00 4,290.00 -7,710.00 35.75 %90.00100-000-314030 12,000.00

ALL OTHER LIBRARY RECEIPTS 16,000.00 8,106.05 -7,893.95 50.66 %0.00100-000-314040 16,000.00

RptType: 3140 - CHARGES FOR SERVICES Total: 43,415.9290.00187,500.00 187,500.00 -144,084.08 23.16 %

RptType: 3141 - SDC

PARK SDC FEES 0.00 129,484.12 129,484.12 0.00 %7,679.28100-000-314110 0.00

SDC Reimbursement Fee 0.00 2,659.88 2,659.88 0.00 %156.72100-000-314111 0.00

RptType: 3141 - SDC Total: 132,144.007,836.000.00 0.00 132,144.00 0.00 %

RptType: 3150 - GRANTS

POLICE GRANTS 0.00 2,007.52 2,007.52 0.00 %0.00100-000-315030 0.00

FIRE GRANTS 331,620.00 215,555.88 -116,064.12 65.00 %0.00100-000-315040 140,000.00

READY TO READ/STATE AID LIBRARY 2,950.00 0.00 -2,950.00 0.00 %0.00100-000-315050 2,950.00

MARINE BOARD MAINTENANCE GRA… 0.00 5,400.00 5,400.00 0.00 %0.00100-000-315055 0.00

WES/GOOD NEIGHBOR GRANT 0.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-000-315065 0.00

RptType: 3150 - GRANTS Total: 272,963.400.00142,950.00 334,570.00 -61,606.60 81.59 %

3 - 1



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2019-2020 Period Ending: 04/30/2020

6/2/2020 1:48:14 PM Page 2 of 21

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

RptType: 3260 - FINES AND FORFEITURES

COURT FINES & FORFEITURES 775,000.00 216,130.89 -558,869.11 27.89 %17,637.46100-000-326010 775,000.00

RptType: 3260 - FINES AND FORFEITURES Total: 216,130.8917,637.46775,000.00 775,000.00 -558,869.11 27.89 %

RptType: 3301 - INTEREST

INTEREST 250,000.00 221,754.47 -28,245.53 88.70 %18,795.64100-000-330100 250,000.00

RptType: 3301 - INTEREST Total: 221,754.4718,795.64250,000.00 250,000.00 -28,245.53 88.70 %

RptType: 3600 - MISCELLANEOUS

ALL OTHER GF RECEIPTS 70,000.00 23,001.88 -46,998.12 32.86 %284.00100-000-360000 70,000.00

FIRST RESPONDER SUPPLIES REIMB 10,000.00 5,910.75 -4,089.25 59.11 %851.00100-000-361016 10,000.00

LIBRARY FOUNDATION - FUNDED PR… 5,000.00 0.00 -5,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-000-361041 5,000.00

SENIOR CENTER BEQUESTS 0.00 35,668.00 35,668.00 0.00 %0.00100-000-362210 0.00

TRAM TRIPS 17,000.00 6,564.07 -10,435.93 38.61 %0.00100-000-362212 17,000.00

MEAL DONATIONS 33,000.00 10,822.02 -22,177.98 32.79 %1,373.00100-000-362213 33,000.00

MEDICAID FUNDS 10,000.00 0.00 -10,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-000-362214 10,000.00

RptType: 3600 - MISCELLANEOUS Total: 81,966.722,508.00145,000.00 145,000.00 -63,033.28 56.53 %

RptType: 3700 - OTHER

SALE OF SURPLUS EQUIP/PROPERTY 30,000.00 2,111.58 -27,888.42 7.04 %0.00100-000-371000 30,000.00

RptType: 3700 - OTHER Total: 2,111.580.0030,000.00 30,000.00 -27,888.42 7.04 %

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL Total: 6,616,106.71121,732.7218,045,155.00 18,236,775.00 -11,620,668.29 36.28 %

Department: 910 - TRANSFER IN

RptType: 3990 - TRANSFERS IN

TRANSFER IN FROM STREET FUND 81,935.00 20,483.75 -61,451.25 25.00 %0.00100-910-399205 81,935.00

TRANSFER IN FROM POLICE LEVY 24,316.00 6,079.00 -18,237.00 25.00 %0.00100-910-399228 24,316.00

TRANSFER IN FROM FIRE LEVY 4,863.00 1,215.75 -3,647.25 25.00 %0.00100-910-399229 4,863.00

TRANSFER IN FROM URBAN RENEWAL 490,862.00 42,555.51 -448,306.49 8.67 %0.00100-910-399390 490,862.00

TRANSFER IN FROM SEWER FUND 60,748.00 15,187.00 -45,561.00 25.00 %0.00100-910-399730 60,748.00

TRANSFER IN FROM WATER FUND 65,903.00 16,475.75 -49,427.25 25.00 %0.00100-910-399740 65,903.00

TRANSFER IN FROM STORM WATER 60,748.00 15,187.00 -45,561.00 25.00 %0.00100-910-399750 60,748.00

RptType: 3990 - TRANSFERS IN Total: 117,183.760.00789,375.00 789,375.00 -672,191.24 14.85 %

Department: 910 - TRANSFER IN Total: 117,183.760.00789,375.00 789,375.00 -672,191.24 14.85 %

Revenue Total: 6,733,290.47121,732.7218,834,530.00 19,026,150.00 -12,292,859.53 35.39 %

Expense

Department: 121 - ADMIN

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

CITY ADMINISTRATOR 284,124.00 122,659.95 161,464.05 43.17 %12,459.50100-121-431010 284,124.00

CITY RECRDR/HR MGR 293,480.00 95,086.03 198,393.97 32.40 %6,526.00100-121-431020 293,480.00

FINANCE DIRECTOR (.80) 202,297.00 0.00 202,297.00 0.00 %0.00100-121-431030 202,297.00

OFFICE ASSISTANT 121,764.00 48,750.00 73,014.00 40.04 %4,875.00100-121-431070 121,764.00

ACCOUNTING CLERK 204,110.00 70,596.15 133,513.85 34.59 %6,929.25100-121-431500 204,110.00

OVERTIME 2,000.00 651.82 1,348.18 32.59 %0.00100-121-450100 2,000.00

CAREER RECOGNITION PAY 8,819.00 3,213.33 5,605.67 36.44 %330.16100-121-450500 8,819.00

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 583,090.00 175,964.27 407,125.73 30.18 %17,628.46100-121-470000 583,090.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 516,921.5548,748.371,699,684.00 1,699,684.00 1,182,762.45 30.41 %

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL & PROFESSIONAL SER… 134,000.00 119,603.88 14,396.12 89.26 %14,129.26100-121-500110 134,000.00

MUNICIPAL AUDIT CONTRACT 84,000.00 27,784.40 56,215.60 33.08 %2,234.40100-121-500120 84,000.00

LEGAL FEES 216,000.00 40,005.11 175,994.89 18.52 %3,492.10100-121-500130 216,000.00

COUNCIL ACTIVITIES 25,000.00 4,574.51 20,425.49 18.30 %219.87100-121-500490 25,000.00

OUTSIDE AGENCY REQUESTS 47,000.00 24,031.00 22,969.00 51.13 %0.00100-121-500491 47,000.00

COUNTY PLANNING SERVICES CONTR… 160,000.00 58,100.13 101,899.87 36.31 %4,113.73100-121-500492 160,000.00

COMM PROMOTIONS/BUSINESS DEV 384,650.00 53,267.72 331,382.28 13.85 %1,612.50100-121-510020 384,650.00

BANK CHARGES 7,500.00 3,668.61 3,831.39 48.91 %333.51100-121-520120 7,500.00

FLEET FUEL, MAINTENANCE & REPAIR 1,000.00 57.75 942.25 5.78 %0.00100-121-520320 1,000.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT 38,310.00 10,167.50 28,142.50 26.54 %1,077.28100-121-520400 38,310.00

CITY NEWSLETTER 70,000.00 30,377.98 39,622.02 43.40 %1,043.61100-121-520450 70,000.00

3 - 2



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2019-2020 Period Ending: 04/30/2020

6/2/2020 1:48:14 PM Page 3 of 21

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

FIRE & LIABILITY INSURANCE 200,000.00 164,171.42 35,828.58 82.09 %7,411.03100-121-530000 200,000.00

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 25,000.00 894.45 24,105.55 3.58 %42.75100-121-530200 25,000.00

EMPLOYEE APPRECIATION 5,000.00 1,421.46 3,578.54 28.43 %75.80100-121-540110 5,000.00

PERSONNEL RECRUITMENT 20,000.00 1,961.86 18,038.14 9.81 %82.30100-121-540120 20,000.00

DUES & MEMBERSHIPS 60,000.00 12,958.65 47,041.35 21.60 %495.00100-121-540200 60,000.00

TRAVEL, CONFERENCES & TRAINING 45,000.00 6,768.50 38,231.50 15.04 %-402.54100-121-540220 45,000.00

MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-121-540230 2,000.00

PUBLICATIONS & SUBSCRIPTIONS 20,000.00 2,880.78 17,119.22 14.40 %-362.61100-121-542000 20,000.00

UTILITIES 0.00 -84.72 84.72 0.00 %0.00100-121-560100 0.00

TELEPHONES 30,000.00 9,373.51 20,626.49 31.25 %952.59100-121-560120 30,000.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 571,984.5036,550.581,574,460.00 1,574,460.00 1,002,475.50 36.33 %

Department: 121 - ADMIN Total: 1,088,906.0585,298.953,274,144.00 3,274,144.00 2,185,237.95 33.26 %

Department: 122 - INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

IT MANAGER 198,120.00 72,554.94 125,565.06 36.62 %9,098.94100-122-432010 198,120.00

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 79,889.00 25,025.12 54,863.88 31.32 %4,276.61100-122-470000 79,889.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 97,580.0613,375.55278,009.00 278,009.00 180,428.94 35.10 %

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL & PROFESSIONAL 37,360.00 8,800.00 28,560.00 23.55 %0.00100-122-500110 37,360.00

COMPUTER/TECHNOLOGY SERVICE 34,200.00 39,876.38 -5,676.38 116.60 %0.00100-122-500210 34,200.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT 35,112.00 12,332.22 22,779.78 35.12 %1,398.54100-122-520400 35,112.00

SMALL TOOLS, EQUIPMENT & SAFETY 540.00 314.30 225.70 58.20 %0.00100-122-540300 540.00

CELL PHONES, PAGERS & RADIOS 5,292.00 1,726.50 3,565.50 32.62 %176.38100-122-560110 5,292.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 63,049.401,574.92112,504.00 112,504.00 49,454.60 56.04 %

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY

COMPUTER & EQUIPMENT RESERVE 27,500.00 1,920.87 25,579.13 6.98 %0.00100-122-661018 27,500.00

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY Total: 1,920.870.0027,500.00 27,500.00 25,579.13 6.98 %

Department: 122 - INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY Total: 162,550.3314,950.47418,013.00 418,013.00 255,462.67 38.89 %

Department: 124 - FACILITIES

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

PUBLIC WORKS SUPERVISOR 17,294.00 8,147.76 9,146.24 47.11 %808.62100-124-437050 17,294.00

UTILITY WORKER, JOURNEY 55,223.00 23,946.62 31,276.38 43.36 %2,321.82100-124-437070 55,223.00

SEASONAL HELP 16,490.00 0.00 16,490.00 0.00 %0.00100-124-439011 16,490.00

OVERTIME 2,000.00 1,460.95 539.05 73.05 %6.54100-124-450100 2,000.00

CAREER RECOGNITION PAY 510.00 232.69 277.31 45.63 %22.86100-124-450500 510.00

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 32,469.00 14,601.59 17,867.41 44.97 %1,390.43100-124-470000 32,469.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 48,389.614,550.27123,986.00 123,986.00 75,596.39 39.03 %

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL & PROFESSIONAL SER… 105,000.00 24,469.89 80,530.11 23.30 %1,708.00100-124-500110 105,000.00

OPERATIONS, MAINTENANCE & REPA… 105,000.00 12,044.64 92,955.36 11.47 %1,715.50100-124-520130 105,000.00

GENERATOR FUEL 3,200.00 86.64 3,113.36 2.71 %0.00100-124-520322 3,200.00

TRAVEL, CONFERENCES& TRAINING 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-124-540220 2,000.00

SMALL TOOLS, EQUIPMENT & SAFETY… 5,500.00 1,878.97 3,621.03 34.16 %87.09100-124-540300 5,500.00

UTILITIES 140,000.00 59,017.19 80,982.81 42.16 %6,752.72100-124-560100 140,000.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 97,497.3310,263.31360,700.00 360,700.00 263,202.67 27.03 %

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY

FACILITY IMPROVEMENTS 250,000.00 22,275.00 227,725.00 8.91 %9,150.00100-124-641000 250,000.00

BUILDING REPAIR 47,000.00 52,018.50 -5,018.50 110.68 %5,361.00100-124-641010 47,000.00

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY Total: 74,293.5014,511.00297,000.00 297,000.00 222,706.50 25.01 %

Department: 124 - FACILITIES  Total: 220,180.4429,324.58781,686.00 781,686.00 561,505.56 28.17 %

Department: 220 - COURT

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

MUNICIPAL COURT CLERK 128,445.00 52,725.70 75,719.30 41.05 %5,272.57100-220-432020 128,445.00

COURT ADMINISTRATOR 147,900.00 60,324.80 87,575.20 40.79 %6,217.00100-220-432035 147,900.00

CAREER RECOGNITION PAY 1,479.00 191.51 1,287.49 12.95 %62.17100-220-450500 1,479.00

3 - 3



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2019-2020 Period Ending: 04/30/2020

6/2/2020 1:48:14 PM Page 4 of 21

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 157,102.00 62,191.64 94,910.36 39.59 %6,336.34100-220-470000 157,102.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 175,433.6517,888.08434,926.00 434,926.00 259,492.35 40.34 %

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL & PROFESSIONAL SER… 1,000.00 222.33 777.67 22.23 %22.33100-220-500110 1,000.00

PROSECUTING ATTORNEY 73,800.00 27,270.00 46,530.00 36.95 %3,090.00100-220-500132 73,800.00

ATTORNEYS FOR INDIGENT CLIENTS 67,000.00 22,300.00 44,700.00 33.28 %0.00100-220-500134 67,000.00

MUNICIPAL COURT JUDGE 73,800.00 33,360.00 40,440.00 45.20 %3,090.00100-220-500136 73,800.00

PRO-TEM JUDGE 3,000.00 312.00 2,688.00 10.40 %0.00100-220-500137 3,000.00

JURY EXPENSES 2,000.00 61.52 1,938.48 3.08 %0.00100-220-500138 2,000.00

COURTROOM SECURITY 16,000.00 5,270.00 10,730.00 32.94 %310.00100-220-500282 16,000.00

BANK CHARGES 8,000.00 1,496.37 6,503.63 18.70 %0.00100-220-520120 8,000.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT 27,500.00 5,903.10 21,596.90 21.47 %110.00100-220-520400 27,500.00

TRAVEL, CONFERENCES & TRAINING 4,000.00 1,296.72 2,703.28 32.42 %0.00100-220-540220 4,000.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 97,492.046,622.33276,100.00 276,100.00 178,607.96 35.31 %

Department: 220 - COURT Total: 272,925.6924,510.41711,026.00 711,026.00 438,100.31 38.38 %

Department: 240 - POLICE

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

POLICE CHIEF 294,520.00 101,283.35 193,236.65 34.39 %10,124.00100-240-432110 294,520.00

POLICE LIEUTENANT 220,220.00 91,852.52 128,367.48 41.71 %8,745.00100-240-432130 220,220.00

POLICE DETECTIVE 163,009.00 136,112.98 26,896.02 83.50 %13,655.71100-240-432140 163,009.00

POLICE OFFICER 1,270,810.00 388,624.73 882,185.27 30.58 %40,202.24100-240-432160 1,270,810.00

POLICE SERGEANT 521,961.00 193,179.45 328,781.55 37.01 %20,896.00100-240-432170 521,961.00

PROPERTY ROOM TECHNICIAN 57,912.00 23,523.81 34,388.19 40.62 %2,391.66100-240-432182 57,912.00

POLICE RECORDS CLERK 110,324.00 44,299.56 66,024.44 40.15 %4,555.56100-240-432185 110,324.00

POLICE RESERVES 0.00 175.95 -175.95 0.00 %0.00100-240-432190 0.00

OVERTIME 260,000.00 113,966.80 146,033.20 43.83 %2,138.41100-240-450100 260,000.00

HOLIDAY PAY 22,000.00 12,722.27 9,277.73 57.83 %561.33100-240-450200 22,000.00

PROFICIENCY PAY 77,428.00 36,551.56 40,876.44 47.21 %3,467.01100-240-450300 77,428.00

CAREER RECOGNITION PAY 0.00 2,026.22 -2,026.22 0.00 %210.83100-240-450500 0.00

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 1,614,224.00 587,750.96 1,026,473.04 36.41 %60,972.75100-240-470000 1,614,224.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 1,732,070.16167,920.504,612,408.00 4,612,408.00 2,880,337.84 37.55 %

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL & PROFESSIONAL SER… 76,440.00 48,439.04 28,000.96 63.37 %2,101.07100-240-500110 76,440.00

PARK  PATROL 13,860.00 2,492.50 11,367.50 17.98 %0.00100-240-500284 13,860.00

JUVENILE DIVERSION PROGRAM 9,500.00 2,500.00 7,000.00 26.32 %0.00100-240-510044 9,500.00

OPERATIONAL SUPPLIES AND EXPENS… 139,880.00 8,527.35 131,352.65 6.10 %1,375.22100-240-520100 0.00

FIREARMS/AMMUNITION 68,000.00 15,142.71 52,857.29 22.27 %995.69100-240-520112 68,000.00

MAINTENANCE, REPAIR & OPERATION 0.00 1,346.03 -1,346.03 0.00 %138.15100-240-520310 0.00

FLEET FUEL, MAINTENANCE & REPAIR 150,000.00 62,482.60 87,517.40 41.66 %3,414.92100-240-520320 150,000.00

RADAR MAINTENANCE REPLACEMENT 0.00 1,638.00 -1,638.00 0.00 %0.00100-240-520345 0.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT 40,000.00 11,607.50 28,392.50 29.02 %1,169.90100-240-520400 179,880.00

EMPLOYEE APPRECIATION 12,000.00 346.80 11,653.20 2.89 %0.00100-240-540110 12,000.00

DUES & MEMBERSHIPS 20,000.00 3,067.20 16,932.80 15.34 %219.21100-240-540200 20,000.00

TRAVEL, CONFERENCES & TRAINING 64,000.00 13,882.93 50,117.07 21.69 %-388.00100-240-540220 64,000.00

UNIFORMS AND SAFETY EQUIPMENT 40,000.00 26,451.70 13,548.30 66.13 %1,729.93100-240-540301 40,000.00

PUBLICATIONS & SUBSCRIPTIONS 8,200.00 1,119.02 7,080.98 13.65 %-0.91100-240-542000 8,200.00

CELL PHONES, PAGERS, RADIOS 40,868.00 17,176.84 23,691.16 42.03 %1,670.51100-240-560110 40,868.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 216,220.2212,425.69682,748.00 682,748.00 466,527.78 31.67 %

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY

VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT RESERVES 220,000.00 109,822.57 110,177.43 49.92 %0.00100-240-651000 220,000.00

RADIO & COMPUTER RESERVE 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-240-661018 5,000.00

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY Total: 109,822.570.00225,000.00 225,000.00 115,177.43 48.81 %

Department: 240 - POLICE Total: 2,058,112.95180,346.195,520,156.00 5,520,156.00 3,462,043.05 37.28 %

Department: 250 - FIRE

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

FIRE CHIEF 231,160.00 87,796.80 143,363.20 37.98 %8,745.00100-250-432210 231,160.00

3 - 4



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2019-2020 Period Ending: 04/30/2020

6/2/2020 1:48:14 PM Page 5 of 21

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

FIRE MARSHAL 205,864.00 79,721.44 126,142.56 38.73 %8,108.44100-250-432220 205,864.00

FIRE CAPTAIN 489,027.00 192,981.63 296,045.37 39.46 %19,578.09100-250-432240 489,027.00

ON-CALL FIREFIGHTERS 548,000.00 185,631.54 362,368.46 33.87 %20,072.78100-250-432290 548,000.00

OVERTIME 50,000.00 34,338.38 15,661.62 68.68 %5,875.40100-250-450100 50,000.00

CAREER RECOGNITION PAY 0.00 2,384.89 -2,384.89 0.00 %243.25100-250-450500 0.00

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 682,019.00 294,997.02 387,021.98 43.25 %31,379.09100-250-470000 682,019.00

LIFE & DISABILITY INSURANCE 8,000.00 705.43 7,294.57 8.82 %69.27100-250-470040 8,000.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 878,557.1394,071.322,214,070.00 2,214,070.00 1,335,512.87 39.68 %

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL & PROFESSIONAL SER… 0.00 3,184.32 -3,184.32 0.00 %0.00100-250-500110 0.00

MEDICAL DIRECTOR CONTRACT 29,000.00 10,530.00 18,470.00 36.31 %990.00100-250-500150 29,000.00

COMPUTER/TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 0.00 1,894.00 -1,894.00 0.00 %0.00100-250-500210 0.00

SHARE COST CCOM DISPATCH 170,000.00 73,740.84 96,259.16 43.38 %7,374.08100-250-500498 170,000.00

FIRE GRANTS 50,000.00 0.00 50,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-250-510022 50,000.00

FIRE PREVENTION & INVESTIGATION 12,000.00 600.59 11,399.41 5.00 %0.00100-250-520122 12,000.00

FIRST RESPONDER SUPPLIES 53,000.00 19,786.84 33,213.16 37.33 %440.93100-250-520124 53,000.00

SCBA & TURNOUT MAINTENANCE 0.00 20.95 -20.95 0.00 %0.00100-250-520126 0.00

BLDG MAINTENANCE & SUPPLIES 83,800.00 34,767.42 49,032.58 41.49 %392.97100-250-520200 83,800.00

MAINTENANCE, REPAIR & OPERATION 0.00 155.00 -155.00 0.00 %0.00100-250-520310 0.00

FLEET FUEL, MAINTENANCE & REPAIR 140,000.00 45,016.30 94,983.70 32.15 %3,972.03100-250-520320 140,000.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT 5,280.00 1,541.37 3,738.63 29.19 %0.00100-250-520400 5,280.00

COVID-19 Emergency Management 0.00 13,513.00 -13,513.00 0.00 %9,127.41100-250-530200 0.00

PHYSICAL EXAMINATIONS 48,000.00 899.00 47,101.00 1.87 %0.00100-250-540130 48,000.00

DUES & MEMBERSHIPS 15,000.00 10,135.00 4,865.00 67.57 %275.00100-250-540200 15,000.00

TECH RESCUE TRAINING 15,250.00 689.23 14,560.77 4.52 %0.00100-250-540222 15,250.00

EMS TRAINING & RECERTIFICATION 15,000.00 4,701.09 10,298.91 31.34 %40.00100-250-540224 15,000.00

FIREFIGHTER TRAINING 62,000.00 14,352.39 47,647.61 23.15 %-37.23100-250-540225 62,000.00

UNIFORMS AND SAFETY EQUIPMENT 30,000.00 6,970.47 23,029.53 23.23 %629.09100-250-540301 30,000.00

CELL PHONES, PAGERS, RADIOS 64,000.00 25,039.30 38,960.70 39.12 %805.10100-250-560110 64,000.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 267,537.1124,009.38792,330.00 792,330.00 524,792.89 33.77 %

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY

ROUTINE EQUIP REPLACEMENT 0.00 1,021.28 -1,021.28 0.00 %0.00100-250-661010 0.00

TURN-OUTS & SCBA RESERVE 191,620.00 156,183.16 35,436.84 81.51 %0.00100-250-661012 0.00

DIVE RESCUE EQUIPMENT 0.00 1,767.18 -1,767.18 0.00 %0.00100-250-661014 0.00

FIRE APPARATUS & EQUIPMENT RESE… 466,667.00 291,953.00 174,714.00 62.56 %0.00100-250-661016 466,667.00

RADIO & COMPUTER RESERVE 44,394.00 0.00 44,394.00 0.00 %0.00100-250-661018 44,394.00

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY Total: 450,924.620.00511,061.00 702,681.00 251,756.38 64.17 %

Department: 250 - FIRE Total: 1,597,018.86118,080.703,517,461.00 3,709,081.00 2,112,062.14 43.06 %

Department: 526 - PARKS

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 50,930.00 20,902.00 30,028.00 41.04 %2,140.80100-526-437049 50,930.00

PUBLIC WORKS SUPERVISOR 77,820.00 36,664.81 41,155.19 47.11 %3,638.77100-526-437050 77,820.00

PW OPERATIONS MANAGER 15,233.00 0.00 15,233.00 0.00 %0.00100-526-437051 15,233.00

PW ADMIN ASSISTANT 18,009.00 7,984.25 10,024.75 44.33 %733.34100-526-437055 18,009.00

UTILITY WORKER, JOURNEY 134,877.00 80,568.35 54,308.65 59.73 %7,932.61100-526-437070 134,877.00

UTILITY WORKER II 55,224.00 0.00 55,224.00 0.00 %0.00100-526-437071 55,224.00

SEASONAL HELP 65,000.00 12,496.71 52,503.29 19.23 %0.00100-526-439011 65,000.00

OVERTIME 7,000.00 3,259.99 3,740.01 46.57 %60.40100-526-450100 7,000.00

CAREER RECOGNITION PAY 0.00 2,731.04 -2,731.04 0.00 %268.77100-526-450500 0.00

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 232,885.00 93,207.79 139,677.21 40.02 %9,097.19100-526-470000 232,885.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 257,814.9423,871.88656,978.00 656,978.00 399,163.06 39.24 %

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL & PROFESSIONAL SER… 65,000.00 18,353.52 46,646.48 28.24 %5,755.54100-526-500110 65,000.00

OPERATIONS, MAINTENANCE & REPA… 140,000.00 29,422.32 110,577.68 21.02 %0.00100-526-520130 140,000.00

HAZARDOUS TREE REMOVAL 60,000.00 23,347.75 36,652.25 38.91 %0.00100-526-520132 60,000.00

EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE AND SU… 0.00 19.35 -19.35 0.00 %0.00100-526-520300 0.00

FLEET FUEL, MAINTENANCE & REPAIR 42,000.00 13,665.74 28,334.26 32.54 %4,266.68100-526-520320 42,000.00

3 - 5



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2019-2020 Period Ending: 04/30/2020

6/2/2020 1:48:14 PM Page 6 of 21

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

OFFICE SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT 3,360.00 2,186.52 1,173.48 65.08 %163.53100-526-520400 3,360.00

TRAVEL, CONFERENCES & TRAINING 3,500.00 40.40 3,459.60 1.15 %0.00100-526-540220 3,500.00

SMALL TOOLS, EQUIPMENT & SAFETY… 30,000.00 2,355.63 27,644.37 7.85 %101.34100-526-540300 30,000.00

DUMPING, HAULING, GARBAGE 3,000.00 560.00 2,440.00 18.67 %0.00100-526-540400 3,000.00

UTILITIES 60,000.00 23,079.45 36,920.55 38.47 %1,973.15100-526-560100 60,000.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 113,030.6812,260.24406,860.00 406,860.00 293,829.32 27.78 %

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT RESERVES 120,200.00 17,855.59 102,344.41 14.85 %0.00100-526-660100 120,200.00

SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS & PROJECTS 68,411.00 7,713.20 60,697.80 11.27 %0.00100-526-676050 68,411.00

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY Total: 25,568.790.00188,611.00 188,611.00 163,042.21 13.56 %

Department: 526 - PARKS Total: 396,414.4136,132.121,252,449.00 1,252,449.00 856,034.59 31.65 %

Department: 527 - RECREATION

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

FIELD MAINTENANCE CREW 32,000.00 6,689.02 25,310.98 20.90 %0.00100-527-435110 32,000.00

PLAYGROUND AIDES 28,000.00 10,058.68 17,941.32 35.92 %0.00100-527-435120 28,000.00

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 6,000.00 2,949.62 3,050.38 49.16 %0.00100-527-470000 6,000.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 19,697.320.0066,000.00 66,000.00 46,302.68 29.84 %

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

SUMMER PROGRAMS 3,000.00 1,054.47 1,945.53 35.15 %0.00100-527-510062 3,000.00

SPECIAL EVENTS 5,000.00 686.91 4,313.09 13.74 %148.96100-527-510064 5,000.00

MAINTENANCE & SUPPLIES 2,200.00 65.76 2,134.24 2.99 %0.00100-527-520136 2,200.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 1,807.14148.9610,200.00 10,200.00 8,392.86 17.72 %

Department: 527 - RECREATION Total: 21,504.46148.9676,200.00 76,200.00 54,695.54 28.22 %

Department: 528 - SENIOR CENTER

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

SENIOR CENTER MANAGER 171,144.00 69,367.50 101,776.50 40.53 %7,194.00100-528-435210 171,144.00

TRAM DRIVER 61,914.00 26,886.48 35,027.52 43.43 %2,424.40100-528-435240 61,914.00

NUTRITION CATERER 51,595.00 25,774.22 25,820.78 49.95 %0.00100-528-435250 51,595.00

CENTER ASSISTANT 95,413.00 40,220.63 55,192.37 42.15 %4,011.00100-528-435280 95,413.00

BUILDING MONITOR 10,000.00 2,535.67 7,464.33 25.36 %0.00100-528-435295 10,000.00

CAREER RECOGNITION PAY 3,405.00 1,412.47 1,992.53 41.48 %72.73100-528-450500 3,405.00

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 169,016.00 61,432.36 107,583.64 36.35 %4,758.10100-528-470000 169,016.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 227,629.3318,460.23562,487.00 562,487.00 334,857.67 40.47 %

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

NUTRITION PROGRAM SUPPLIES 36,000.00 9,895.04 26,104.96 27.49 %672.00100-528-510075 36,000.00

TRAM EXPENSES 12,500.00 6,910.14 5,589.86 55.28 %-57.36100-528-520140 12,500.00

MISCELLANEOUS EQUIPMENT 7,500.00 1,996.98 5,503.02 26.63 %1,000.00100-528-520190 7,500.00

BLDG MAINTENANCE & SUPPLIES 16,000.00 8,366.76 7,633.24 52.29 %1,025.64100-528-520200 16,000.00

FLEET FUEL, MAINTENANCE & REPAIR 2,500.00 19.00 2,481.00 0.76 %0.00100-528-520320 2,500.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT 11,368.00 3,047.17 8,320.83 26.80 %139.60100-528-520400 11,368.00

DUES & MEMBERSHIPS 2,800.00 351.39 2,448.61 12.55 %0.00100-528-540200 2,800.00

MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT 100.00 0.00 100.00 0.00 %0.00100-528-540230 100.00

TELEPHONES 7,000.00 2,966.86 4,033.14 42.38 %293.31100-528-560120 7,000.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 33,553.343,073.1995,768.00 95,768.00 62,214.66 35.04 %

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY

BUILDING REPAIR 13,000.00 0.00 13,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-528-641010 13,000.00

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY Total: 0.000.0013,000.00 13,000.00 13,000.00 0.00 %

Department: 528 - SENIOR CENTER Total: 261,182.6721,533.42671,255.00 671,255.00 410,072.33 38.91 %

Department: 529 - LIBRARY

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

LIBRARY ASSISTANT II 360,000.00 126,163.12 233,836.88 35.05 %0.00100-529-435320 360,000.00

ON CALL LIB ASSISTANT 0.00 12,280.59 -12,280.59 0.00 %0.00100-529-435392 0.00

CAREER RECOGNITION PAY 0.00 830.67 -830.67 0.00 %0.00100-529-450500 0.00

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 195,000.00 54,026.23 140,973.77 27.71 %0.00100-529-470000 195,000.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 193,300.610.00555,000.00 555,000.00 361,699.39 34.83 %

3 - 6



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2019-2020 Period Ending: 04/30/2020

6/2/2020 1:48:14 PM Page 7 of 21

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL & PROFESSIONAL SER… 265,900.00 146,871.41 119,028.59 55.24 %0.00100-529-500110 265,900.00

COMPUTER/TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 25,000.00 0.00 25,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-529-500210 25,000.00

NEW BOOKS 95,000.00 24,880.09 70,119.91 26.19 %0.00100-529-510081 95,000.00

ADULT/CHILDREN'S PROGRAMS 7,500.00 1,224.24 6,275.76 16.32 %0.00100-529-510082 7,500.00

READY TO READ GRANT 2,950.00 1,472.00 1,478.00 49.90 %0.00100-529-510084 2,950.00

LIB FOUNDATION FUNDED PROGRAM 5,000.00 2,487.73 2,512.27 49.75 %0.00100-529-510086 5,000.00

MARKETING 700.00 0.00 700.00 0.00 %0.00100-529-510100 700.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT 6,000.00 1,410.72 4,589.28 23.51 %0.00100-529-520400 6,000.00

RENTALS AND LEASES 9,000.00 3,675.14 5,324.86 40.83 %0.00100-529-530100 9,000.00

PUBLICATIONS & SUBSCRIPTIONS 4,500.00 192.31 4,307.69 4.27 %0.00100-529-542000 4,500.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 182,213.640.00421,550.00 421,550.00 239,336.36 43.22 %

Department: 529 - LIBRARY Total: 375,514.250.00976,550.00 976,550.00 601,035.75 38.45 %

Department: 600 - DEBT SERVICE

RptCategory: 70 - DEBT SERVICE

DEBT PRINCIPAL 320,399.00 157,709.00 162,690.00 49.22 %0.00100-600-720040 320,399.00

DEBT SERVICE - INTEREST 170,462.00 87,555.51 82,906.49 51.36 %0.00100-600-730040 170,462.00

RptCategory: 70 - DEBT SERVICE Total: 245,264.510.00490,861.00 490,861.00 245,596.49 49.97 %

Department: 600 - DEBT SERVICE Total: 245,264.510.00490,861.00 490,861.00 245,596.49 49.97 %

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER

CONTINGENCY FUNDS 1,144,729.00 0.00 1,144,729.00 0.00 %0.00100-990-910000 1,144,729.00

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER Total: 0.000.001,144,729.00 1,144,729.00 1,144,729.00 0.00 %

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY Total: 0.000.001,144,729.00 1,144,729.00 1,144,729.00 0.00 %

Expense Total: 6,699,574.62510,325.8018,834,530.00 19,026,150.00 12,326,575.38 35.21 %

Fund: 100 - GENERAL FUND Surplus (Deficit): 33,715.85-388,593.080.00 0.00 33,715.85 0.00 %

3 - 7



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2019-2020 Period Ending: 04/30/2020

6/2/2020 1:48:14 PM Page 8 of 21

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Fund: 205 - ROAD AND STREET FUND

Revenue

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL.

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 1,750,000.00 0.00 -1,750,000.00 0.00 %0.00205-000-309999 1,750,000.00

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL. Total: 0.000.001,750,000.00 1,750,000.00 -1,750,000.00 0.00 %

RptType: 3100 - LOCAL TAXES

VEHICLE REGISTRATION FEES 0.00 25,892.39 25,892.39 0.00 %15,815.02205-000-310060 0.00

RptType: 3100 - LOCAL TAXES Total: 25,892.3915,815.020.00 0.00 25,892.39 0.00 %

RptType: 3110 - STATE SHARED TAXES

STATE HIGHWAY TAXES 1,837,123.00 720,303.72 -1,116,819.28 39.21 %64,553.94205-000-310140 1,837,123.00

RptType: 3110 - STATE SHARED TAXES Total: 720,303.7264,553.941,837,123.00 1,837,123.00 -1,116,819.28 39.21 %

RptType: 3120 - RIGHT OF WAY FEES

RIGHT OF WAY - TELECOM 436,000.00 143,323.27 -292,676.73 32.87 %11,359.44205-000-312050 436,000.00

RIGHT OF WAY - OTHER 450,000.00 53,487.02 -396,512.98 11.89 %5,346.56205-000-312055 450,000.00

ROW LICENSES & APP FEES 6,000.00 350.00 -5,650.00 5.83 %0.00205-000-312060 6,000.00

RptType: 3120 - RIGHT OF WAY FEES Total: 197,160.2916,706.00892,000.00 892,000.00 -694,839.71 22.10 %

RptType: 3141 - SDC

TRANSPORTATION SDC'S 20,000.00 80,002.56 60,002.56 400.01 %3,594.82205-000-314075 20,000.00

SDC Reimbursement Fee 0.00 3,044.72 3,044.72 0.00 %111.18205-000-314076 0.00

RptType: 3141 - SDC Total: 83,047.283,706.0020,000.00 20,000.00 63,047.28 415.24 %

RptType: 3600 - MISCELLANEOUS

ALL OTHER ROAD/STREET RECEIPTS 60,000.00 35,269.34 -24,730.66 58.78 %1,795.00205-000-360000 60,000.00

RptType: 3600 - MISCELLANEOUS Total: 35,269.341,795.0060,000.00 60,000.00 -24,730.66 58.78 %

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL Total: 1,061,673.02102,575.964,559,123.00 4,559,123.00 -3,497,449.98 23.29 %

Department: 910 - TRANSFER IN

RptType: 3990 - TRANSFERS IN

TRANSFER IN FROM SEWER FUND 241,667.00 0.00 -241,667.00 0.00 %0.00205-910-399730 241,667.00

TRANSFER IN FROM WATER FUND 171,488.00 0.00 -171,488.00 0.00 %0.00205-910-399740 171,488.00

TRANSFER IN FROM STORM WATER 79,676.00 0.00 -79,676.00 0.00 %0.00205-910-399750 79,676.00

RptType: 3990 - TRANSFERS IN Total: 0.000.00492,831.00 492,831.00 -492,831.00 0.00 %

Department: 910 - TRANSFER IN Total: 0.000.00492,831.00 492,831.00 -492,831.00 0.00 %

Revenue Total: 1,061,673.02102,575.965,051,954.00 5,051,954.00 -3,990,280.98 21.02 %

Expense

Department: 305 - ROAD AND STREET

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 50,930.00 20,902.00 30,028.00 41.04 %2,140.80205-305-437049 50,930.00

PUBLIC WORKS SUPERVISOR 77,822.00 36,664.77 41,157.23 47.11 %3,638.77205-305-437050 77,822.00

PW OPERATIONS MANAGER 34,173.00 0.00 34,173.00 0.00 %0.00205-305-437051 34,173.00

PW ADMIN ASSISTANT 38,210.00 17,330.86 20,879.14 45.36 %1,650.00205-305-437055 38,210.00

UTILITY WORKER, JOURNEY 242,705.00 101,589.92 141,115.08 41.86 %10,280.73205-305-437070 242,705.00

SEASONAL HELP 45,000.00 10,449.55 34,550.45 23.22 %0.00205-305-439011 45,000.00

OVERTIME 8,000.00 4,109.62 3,890.38 51.37 %340.19205-305-450100 8,000.00

CAREER RECOGNITION PAY 2,309.00 1,591.06 717.94 68.91 %156.61205-305-450500 2,309.00

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 301,436.00 117,718.93 183,717.07 39.05 %11,730.61205-305-470000 301,436.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 310,356.7129,937.71800,585.00 800,585.00 490,228.29 38.77 %

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL & PROFESSIONAL SER… 109,200.00 28,000.83 81,199.17 25.64 %6,473.66205-305-500110 109,200.00

OPERATIONS, MAINTENANCE & REPA… 500,000.00 188,603.96 311,396.04 37.72 %313.50205-305-520130 500,000.00

STREET LIGHT MAINTENANCE 165,000.00 74,175.65 90,824.35 44.95 %12,453.10205-305-520172 165,000.00

SHOP SUPPLIES 0.00 55.02 -55.02 0.00 %0.00205-305-520174 0.00

TRAFFIC SIGNAL MAINTENANCE 45,000.00 3,462.46 41,537.54 7.69 %0.00205-305-520176 45,000.00

STREET SIGN MAINTENANCE 45,000.00 14,895.93 30,104.07 33.10 %1,779.89205-305-520178 45,000.00

FLEET FUEL, MAINTENANCE & REPAIR 65,000.00 21,187.09 43,812.91 32.60 %1,692.65205-305-520320 65,000.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT 4,160.00 1,375.92 2,784.08 33.08 %163.52205-305-520400 4,160.00

3 - 8



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2019-2020 Period Ending: 04/30/2020

6/2/2020 1:48:14 PM Page 9 of 21

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

TRAVEL, CONFERENCES & TRAINING 5,000.00 135.40 4,864.60 2.71 %0.00205-305-540220 5,000.00

SMALL TOOLS, EQUIPMENT & SAFETY… 45,000.00 10,802.30 34,197.70 24.01 %171.60205-305-540300 45,000.00

DUMPING, HAULING, GARBAGE 5,000.00 275.00 4,725.00 5.50 %0.00205-305-540400 5,000.00

UTILITIES 2,200.00 541.33 1,658.67 24.61 %54.07205-305-560100 2,200.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 343,510.8923,101.99990,560.00 990,560.00 647,049.11 34.68 %

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT RESERVES 575,000.00 20,695.85 554,304.15 3.60 %0.00205-305-660100 575,000.00

BIKEWAY & SIDEWALK IMPROVEMENT 72,000.00 0.00 72,000.00 0.00 %0.00205-305-675056 72,000.00

SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS & PROJECTS 1,295,659.00 249,540.73 1,046,118.27 19.26 %0.00205-305-676050 1,295,659.00

RESERVE FROM  SDC'S 327,535.00 0.00 327,535.00 0.00 %0.00205-305-678090 327,535.00

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY Total: 270,236.580.002,270,194.00 2,270,194.00 1,999,957.42 11.90 %

Department: 305 - ROAD AND STREET Total: 924,104.1853,039.704,061,339.00 4,061,339.00 3,137,234.82 22.75 %

Department: 920 - TRANSFER OUT

RptCategory: 89 - TRANSFERS OUT

TRANSFER OUT TO GENERAL FUND 81,935.00 20,483.75 61,451.25 25.00 %0.00205-920-899100 81,935.00

TRANSFER OUT TO SEWER FUND 169,560.00 0.00 169,560.00 0.00 %0.00205-920-899730 169,560.00

TRANSFER OUT TO WATER 169,560.00 0.00 169,560.00 0.00 %0.00205-920-899740 169,560.00

TRANSFER OUT TO STORM 169,560.00 0.00 169,560.00 0.00 %0.00205-920-899750 169,560.00

RptCategory: 89 - TRANSFERS OUT Total: 20,483.750.00590,615.00 590,615.00 570,131.25 3.47 %

Department: 920 - TRANSFER OUT Total: 20,483.750.00590,615.00 590,615.00 570,131.25 3.47 %

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER

CONTINGENCY FUNDS 400,000.00 0.00 400,000.00 0.00 %0.00205-990-910000 400,000.00

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER Total: 0.000.00400,000.00 400,000.00 400,000.00 0.00 %

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY Total: 0.000.00400,000.00 400,000.00 400,000.00 0.00 %

Expense Total: 944,587.9353,039.705,051,954.00 5,051,954.00 4,107,366.07 18.70 %

Fund: 205 - ROAD AND STREET FUND Surplus (Deficit): 117,085.0949,536.260.00 0.00 117,085.09 0.00 %

3 - 9



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2019-2020 Period Ending: 04/30/2020

6/2/2020 1:48:14 PM Page 10 of 21

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Fund: 228 - POLICE LEVY FUND

Revenue

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL.

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 165,000.00 0.00 -165,000.00 0.00 %0.00228-000-309999 165,000.00

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL. Total: 0.000.00165,000.00 165,000.00 -165,000.00 0.00 %

RptType: 3100 - LOCAL TAXES

CURRENT LEVY TAX 1,311,323.00 593,666.35 -717,656.65 45.27 %2,102.20228-000-310020 1,311,323.00

PRIOR YEAR TAXES 48,000.00 5,646.18 -42,353.82 11.76 %241.12228-000-310050 48,000.00

RptType: 3100 - LOCAL TAXES Total: 599,312.532,343.321,359,323.00 1,359,323.00 -760,010.47 44.09 %

RptType: 3301 - INTEREST

INTEREST 7,800.00 4,617.67 -3,182.33 59.20 %356.92228-000-330100 7,800.00

RptType: 3301 - INTEREST Total: 4,617.67356.927,800.00 7,800.00 -3,182.33 59.20 %

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL Total: 603,930.202,700.241,532,123.00 1,532,123.00 -928,192.80 39.42 %

Revenue Total: 603,930.202,700.241,532,123.00 1,532,123.00 -928,192.80 39.42 %

Expense

Department: 245 - POLICE LEVY

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

POLICE OFFICER 155,208.00 66,796.05 88,411.95 43.04 %6,582.06228-245-432160 155,208.00

SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICER 155,208.00 68,052.36 87,155.64 43.85 %7,172.92228-245-432165 155,208.00

MUNICIPAL ORDINANCE SPECIALIST 127,715.00 51,238.02 76,476.98 40.12 %5,221.02228-245-432180 127,715.00

EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT 122,467.00 51,075.68 71,391.32 41.71 %5,113.00228-245-432195 122,467.00

OVERTIME 80,000.00 14,488.62 65,511.38 18.11 %1,597.28228-245-450100 80,000.00

HOLIDAY PAY 0.00 690.58 -690.58 0.00 %286.81228-245-450200 0.00

PROFICIENCY PAY 30,385.00 9,750.65 20,634.35 32.09 %1,063.76228-245-450300 30,385.00

CAREER RECOGNITION PAY 0.00 2,043.34 -2,043.34 0.00 %216.80228-245-450500 0.00

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 482,308.00 172,078.50 310,229.50 35.68 %17,254.66228-245-470000 482,308.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 436,213.8044,508.311,153,291.00 1,153,291.00 717,077.20 37.82 %

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

SHARE COST CCOM DISPATCH 295,000.00 118,696.68 176,303.32 40.24 %11,869.66228-245-500498 295,000.00

SRO EXPENSES 4,000.00 518.13 3,481.87 12.95 %0.00228-245-510032 4,000.00

K-9 EXPENSES 14,000.00 1,474.18 12,525.82 10.53 %0.00228-245-510040 14,000.00

SWAT PROGRAM 8,200.00 0.00 8,200.00 0.00 %0.00228-245-510041 8,200.00

MAINTENANCE, REPAIR & OPERATION 20,000.00 0.00 20,000.00 0.00 %0.00228-245-520310 20,000.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 120,688.9911,869.66341,200.00 341,200.00 220,511.01 35.37 %

Department: 245 - POLICE LEVY Total: 556,902.7956,377.971,494,491.00 1,494,491.00 937,588.21 37.26 %

Department: 920 - TRANSFER OUT

RptCategory: 89 - TRANSFERS OUT

TRANSFER OUT TO GENERAL FUND 24,316.00 6,079.00 18,237.00 25.00 %0.00228-920-899100 24,316.00

RptCategory: 89 - TRANSFERS OUT Total: 6,079.000.0024,316.00 24,316.00 18,237.00 25.00 %

Department: 920 - TRANSFER OUT Total: 6,079.000.0024,316.00 24,316.00 18,237.00 25.00 %

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER

CONTINGENCY FUNDS 13,316.00 0.00 13,316.00 0.00 %0.00228-990-910000 13,316.00

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER Total: 0.000.0013,316.00 13,316.00 13,316.00 0.00 %

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY Total: 0.000.0013,316.00 13,316.00 13,316.00 0.00 %

Expense Total: 562,981.7956,377.971,532,123.00 1,532,123.00 969,141.21 36.75 %

Fund: 228 - POLICE LEVY FUND Surplus (Deficit): 40,948.41-53,677.730.00 0.00 40,948.41 0.00 %

3 - 10



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2019-2020 Period Ending: 04/30/2020

6/2/2020 1:48:14 PM Page 11 of 21

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Fund: 229 - FIRE LEVY FUND

Revenue

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL.

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 451,000.00 0.00 -451,000.00 0.00 %0.00229-000-309999 451,000.00

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL. Total: 0.000.00451,000.00 451,000.00 -451,000.00 0.00 %

RptType: 3100 - LOCAL TAXES

CURRENT LEVY TAX 597,722.00 270,724.02 -326,997.98 45.29 %958.65229-000-310020 597,722.00

PRIOR YEAR TAXES 18,000.00 2,574.76 -15,425.24 14.30 %109.95229-000-310050 18,000.00

RptType: 3100 - LOCAL TAXES Total: 273,298.781,068.60615,722.00 615,722.00 -342,423.22 44.39 %

RptType: 3301 - INTEREST

INTEREST 12,000.00 7,679.71 -4,320.29 64.00 %392.19229-000-330100 12,000.00

RptType: 3301 - INTEREST Total: 7,679.71392.1912,000.00 12,000.00 -4,320.29 64.00 %

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL Total: 280,978.491,460.791,078,722.00 1,078,722.00 -797,743.51 26.05 %

Revenue Total: 280,978.491,460.791,078,722.00 1,078,722.00 -797,743.51 26.05 %

Expense

Department: 255 - FIRE LEVY

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

TRAINING CAPTAIN 160,532.00 65,473.47 95,058.53 40.79 %7,194.00229-255-432230 160,532.00

PART TIME 46,000.00 18,199.61 27,800.39 39.56 %1,822.91229-255-439010 46,000.00

SEASONAL HELP 20,000.00 8,690.56 11,309.44 43.45 %0.00229-255-439011 20,000.00

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 124,471.00 60,763.62 63,707.38 48.82 %6,263.67229-255-470000 124,471.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 153,127.2615,280.58351,003.00 351,003.00 197,875.74 43.63 %

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL & PROFESSIONAL SER… 20,000.00 4,696.58 15,303.42 23.48 %446.58229-255-500110 20,000.00

SCBA & TURNOUT MAINTENANCE 20,000.00 1,293.23 18,706.77 6.47 %243.98229-255-520126 20,000.00

EQUIPMENT TESTING & SERVICE 20,000.00 7,975.50 12,024.50 39.88 %1,492.00229-255-520365 20,000.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT 10,000.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.00 %0.00229-255-520400 10,000.00

CELL PHONES, PAGERS, RADIOS 20,000.00 39.99 19,960.01 0.20 %0.00229-255-560110 20,000.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 14,005.302,182.5690,000.00 90,000.00 75,994.70 15.56 %

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY

TRAINING FACILITY 0.00 548.49 -548.49 0.00 %0.00229-255-641030 0.00

FIRE, EMS & EXTRICATION EQUIPME… 77,000.00 1,017.84 75,982.16 1.32 %0.00229-255-660120 77,000.00

ROUTINE EQUIP REPLACEMENT 50,000.00 1,579.58 48,420.42 3.16 %493.45229-255-661010 50,000.00

TURN-OUTS & SCBA RESERVE 55,000.00 0.00 55,000.00 0.00 %0.00229-255-661012 55,000.00

TECH RESCUE EQUIPMENT 25,000.00 5,514.98 19,485.02 22.06 %0.00229-255-661014 25,000.00

FIRE APPARATUS & EQUIPMENT RESE… 325,000.00 325,000.00 0.00 100.00 %0.00229-255-661016 325,000.00

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY Total: 333,660.89493.45532,000.00 532,000.00 198,339.11 62.72 %

Department: 255 - FIRE LEVY Total: 500,793.4517,956.59973,003.00 973,003.00 472,209.55 51.47 %

Department: 920 - TRANSFER OUT

RptCategory: 89 - TRANSFERS OUT

TRANSFER OUT TO  GENERAL FUND 4,863.00 1,215.75 3,647.25 25.00 %0.00229-920-899100 4,863.00

RptCategory: 89 - TRANSFERS OUT Total: 1,215.750.004,863.00 4,863.00 3,647.25 25.00 %

Department: 920 - TRANSFER OUT Total: 1,215.750.004,863.00 4,863.00 3,647.25 25.00 %

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER

CONTINGENCY FUNDS 100,856.00 0.00 100,856.00 0.00 %0.00229-990-910000 100,856.00

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER Total: 0.000.00100,856.00 100,856.00 100,856.00 0.00 %

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY Total: 0.000.00100,856.00 100,856.00 100,856.00 0.00 %

Expense Total: 502,009.2017,956.591,078,722.00 1,078,722.00 576,712.80 46.54 %

Fund: 229 - FIRE LEVY FUND Surplus (Deficit): -221,030.71-16,495.800.00 0.00 -221,030.71 0.00 %

3 - 11



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2019-2020 Period Ending: 04/30/2020

6/2/2020 1:48:14 PM Page 12 of 21

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Fund: 307 - CIVIC BUILDINGS CAPITAL FUND (NEW)

Revenue

Department: 910 - TRANSFER IN

RptType: 3990 - TRANSFERS IN

TRANSFER IN FROM URBAN RENEWAL 12,766,000.00 11,053,592.35 -1,712,407.65 86.59 %2,600,000.00307-910-399390 12,766,000.00

RptType: 3990 - TRANSFERS IN Total: 11,053,592.352,600,000.0012,766,000.00 12,766,000.00 -1,712,407.65 86.59 %

Department: 910 - TRANSFER IN Total: 11,053,592.352,600,000.0012,766,000.00 12,766,000.00 -1,712,407.65 86.59 %

Revenue Total: 11,053,592.352,600,000.0012,766,000.00 12,766,000.00 -1,712,407.65 86.59 %

Expense

Department: 307 - CIVIC CENTER PROJECT

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

PROJECT MGMT-OWNERS REP 122,677.00 85,287.80 37,389.20 69.52 %12,925.25307-307-620320 0.00

OTHER PROF. SERVICES 25.00 1,878.23 -1,853.23 7,512.92 %0.00307-307-620325 0.00

PROJECT LEGAL COSTS 3,828.00 5,136.00 -1,308.00 134.17 %1,141.00307-307-620330 0.00

FINANCE CONSULTING 20,000.00 0.00 20,000.00 0.00 %0.00307-307-620360 0.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 92,302.0314,066.250.00 146,530.00 54,227.97 62.99 %

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY

CONSTRUCTION - PHASE 1 9,717.00 0.00 9,717.00 0.00 %0.00307-307-620100 0.00

CONSTRUCTION - PHASE 2 10,011,612.00 9,324,365.64 687,246.36 93.14 %937,295.00307-307-620110 12,766,000.00

PROJECT RETAINAGE 0.00 406,840.34 -406,840.34 0.00 %0.00307-307-620111 0.00

PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS 12,020.00 0.00 12,020.00 0.00 %0.00307-307-620323 0.00

TESTING & SPECIAL INSP. 39,904.00 36,310.20 3,593.80 90.99 %7,213.69307-307-620340 0.00

MISC FEES 0.00 7,179.26 -7,179.26 0.00 %0.00307-307-620345 0.00

LAND ACQUISITION/SITE PREP 957.00 2,258.00 -1,301.00 235.95 %0.00307-307-620365 0.00

ADD ALTERNATES 212,162.00 323.45 211,838.55 0.15 %323.45307-307-620370 0.00

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY Total: 9,777,276.89944,832.1412,766,000.00 10,286,372.00 509,095.11 95.05 %

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER

PROJECT CONTINGENCY 149,000.00 0.00 149,000.00 0.00 %0.00307-307-620390 0.00

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER Total: 0.000.000.00 149,000.00 149,000.00 0.00 %

Department: 307 - CIVIC CENTER PROJECT Total: 9,869,578.92958,898.3912,766,000.00 10,581,902.00 712,323.08 93.27 %

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER

CONTINGENCY FUNDS (Rollover Bala… 2,184,098.00 0.00 2,184,098.00 0.00 %0.00307-990-910000 0.00

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER Total: 0.000.000.00 2,184,098.00 2,184,098.00 0.00 %

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY Total: 0.000.000.00 2,184,098.00 2,184,098.00 0.00 %

Expense Total: 9,869,578.92958,898.3912,766,000.00 12,766,000.00 2,896,421.08 77.31 %

Fund: 307 - CIVIC BUILDINGS CAPITAL FUND (NEW) Surplus (Deficit): 1,184,013.431,641,101.610.00 0.00 1,184,013.43 0.00 %

3 - 12



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2019-2020 Period Ending: 04/30/2020

6/2/2020 1:48:14 PM Page 13 of 21

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Fund: 390 - URBAN RENEWAL FUND

Revenue

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL.

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 14,756,000.00 0.00 -14,756,000.00 0.00 %0.00390-000-309999 14,756,000.00

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL. Total: 0.000.0014,756,000.00 14,756,000.00 -14,756,000.00 0.00 %

RptType: 3100 - LOCAL TAXES

CURRENT YEAR TAXES 1,870,000.00 939,174.32 -930,825.68 50.22 %3,325.64390-000-310010 1,870,000.00

PRIOR YEAR TAXES 20,000.00 8,974.73 -11,025.27 44.87 %380.05390-000-310050 20,000.00

RptType: 3100 - LOCAL TAXES Total: 948,149.053,705.691,890,000.00 1,890,000.00 -941,850.95 50.17 %

RptType: 3301 - INTEREST

INTEREST 20,000.00 190,024.52 170,024.52 950.12 %6,617.93390-000-330100 20,000.00

RptType: 3301 - INTEREST Total: 190,024.526,617.9320,000.00 20,000.00 170,024.52 950.12 %

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL Total: 1,138,173.5710,323.6216,666,000.00 16,666,000.00 -15,527,826.43 6.83 %

Revenue Total: 1,138,173.5710,323.6216,666,000.00 16,666,000.00 -15,527,826.43 6.83 %

Expense

Department: 410 - URBAN RENEWAL

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL & PROFESSIONAL SER… 4,000.00 1,130.68 2,869.32 28.27 %362.61390-410-500110 4,000.00

MUNICIPAL AUDIT CONTRACT 15,000.00 15,040.00 -40.00 100.27 %0.00390-410-500120 15,000.00

FIRE & LIABILITY INSURANCE 30,000.00 15,000.00 15,000.00 50.00 %0.00390-410-530000 30,000.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 31,170.68362.6149,000.00 49,000.00 17,829.32 63.61 %

RptCategory: 70 - DEBT SERVICE

DEBT SERVICE PRINCIPAL 876,366.00 431,573.00 444,793.00 49.25 %0.00390-410-730030 876,366.00

DEBT SERVICE - INTEREST 201,234.00 106,952.92 94,281.08 53.15 %0.00390-410-730040 201,234.00

RptCategory: 70 - DEBT SERVICE Total: 538,525.920.001,077,600.00 1,077,600.00 539,074.08 49.97 %

RptCategory: 89 - TRANSFERS OUT

TRANSFER OUT TO GENERAL FUND 490,861.00 42,555.51 448,305.49 8.67 %0.00390-410-899100 490,861.00

RptCategory: 89 - TRANSFERS OUT Total: 42,555.510.00490,861.00 490,861.00 448,305.49 8.67 %

Department: 410 - URBAN RENEWAL Total: 612,252.11362.611,617,461.00 1,617,461.00 1,005,208.89 37.85 %

Department: 920 - TRANSFER OUT

RptCategory: 89 - TRANSFERS OUT

TRANSFER OUT TO CIVIC BUILDINGS … 12,766,000.00 11,053,592.35 1,712,407.65 86.59 %2,600,000.00390-920-899307 12,766,000.00

RptCategory: 89 - TRANSFERS OUT Total: 11,053,592.352,600,000.0012,766,000.00 12,766,000.00 1,712,407.65 86.59 %

Department: 920 - TRANSFER OUT Total: 11,053,592.352,600,000.0012,766,000.00 12,766,000.00 1,712,407.65 86.59 %

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER

CONTINGENCY FUNDS 2,282,539.00 0.00 2,282,539.00 0.00 %0.00390-990-910000 2,282,539.00

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER Total: 0.000.002,282,539.00 2,282,539.00 2,282,539.00 0.00 %

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY Total: 0.000.002,282,539.00 2,282,539.00 2,282,539.00 0.00 %

Expense Total: 11,665,844.462,600,362.6116,666,000.00 16,666,000.00 5,000,155.54 70.00 %

Fund: 390 - URBAN RENEWAL FUND Surplus (Deficit): -10,527,670.89-2,590,038.990.00 0.00 -10,527,670.89 0.00 %

3 - 13



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2019-2020 Period Ending: 04/30/2020

6/2/2020 1:48:14 PM Page 14 of 21

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Fund: 730 - SEWER FUND

Revenue

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL.

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 936,000.00 0.00 -936,000.00 0.00 %0.00730-000-309999 936,000.00

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL. Total: 0.000.00936,000.00 936,000.00 -936,000.00 0.00 %

RptType: 3140 - CHARGES FOR SERVICES

OAK LODGE SANITARY 1,349,749.00 532,865.01 -816,883.99 39.48 %61,264.44730-000-314050 1,349,749.00

TRI-CITY SERVICE DISTRICT 3,473,582.00 1,619,446.84 -1,854,135.16 46.62 %189,792.92730-000-314055 3,473,582.00

CONNECTION FEES 10,000.00 19.10 -9,980.90 0.19 %0.00730-000-314080 10,000.00

RptType: 3140 - CHARGES FOR SERVICES Total: 2,152,330.95251,057.364,833,331.00 4,833,331.00 -2,681,000.05 44.53 %

RptType: 3141 - SDC

SEWER SDCS 15,000.00 81,462.40 66,462.40 543.08 %5,412.48730-000-314110 15,000.00

SDC Reimbursement Fee 0.00 3,746.60 3,746.60 0.00 %225.52730-000-314111 0.00

RptType: 3141 - SDC Total: 85,209.005,638.0015,000.00 15,000.00 70,209.00 568.06 %

RptType: 3600 - MISCELLANEOUS

ALL OTHER SEWER RECEIPTS 2,000.00 13,159.34 11,159.34 657.97 %385.00730-000-360000 2,000.00

RptType: 3600 - MISCELLANEOUS Total: 13,159.34385.002,000.00 2,000.00 11,159.34 657.97 %

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL Total: 2,250,699.29257,080.365,786,331.00 5,786,331.00 -3,535,631.71 38.90 %

Department: 910 - TRANSFER IN

RptType: 3990 - TRANSFERS IN

TRANSFER IN FROM ROAD & STREET … 169,560.00 0.00 -169,560.00 0.00 %0.00730-910-399205 169,560.00

RptType: 3990 - TRANSFERS IN Total: 0.000.00169,560.00 169,560.00 -169,560.00 0.00 %

Department: 910 - TRANSFER IN Total: 0.000.00169,560.00 169,560.00 -169,560.00 0.00 %

Revenue Total: 2,250,699.29257,080.365,955,891.00 5,955,891.00 -3,705,191.71 37.79 %

Expense

Department: 703 - SEWER

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

ACCOUNTING CLERK 27,611.00 9,416.53 18,194.47 34.10 %680.41730-703-431500 27,611.00

PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 50,930.00 20,902.00 30,028.00 41.04 %2,140.80730-703-437049 50,930.00

PUBLIC WORKS SUPERVISOR 59,895.00 28,330.26 31,564.74 47.30 %2,824.77730-703-437050 59,895.00

PW OPERATIONS MANAGER 34,173.00 0.00 34,173.00 0.00 %0.00730-703-437051 34,173.00

PW ADMIN ASSISTANT 40,520.00 17,330.86 23,189.14 42.77 %1,650.00730-703-437055 40,520.00

UTILITY WORKER, JOURNEY 143,225.00 75,102.51 68,122.49 52.44 %7,433.00730-703-437070 143,225.00

UTILITY WORKER II 25,272.00 0.00 25,272.00 0.00 %0.00730-703-437071 25,272.00

SEASONAL HELP 35,000.00 3,460.80 31,539.20 9.89 %0.00730-703-439011 35,000.00

OVERTIME 10,000.00 3,020.50 6,979.50 30.21 %155.99730-703-450100 10,000.00

CAREER RECOGNITION PAY 0.00 1,930.17 -1,930.17 0.00 %188.48730-703-450500 0.00

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 249,431.00 86,140.68 163,290.32 34.53 %8,719.47730-703-470000 249,431.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 245,634.3123,792.92676,057.00 676,057.00 430,422.69 36.33 %

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL & PROFESSIONAL SER… 110,000.00 29,587.35 80,412.65 26.90 %6,834.75730-703-500110 110,000.00

SDC PASS THROUGH TO TCSD 15,000.00 0.00 15,000.00 0.00 %0.00730-703-500452 15,000.00

OAK LODGE SANITARY DISTRICT 1,068,513.00 425,164.00 643,349.00 39.79 %85,032.80730-703-500456 1,068,513.00

TRI-CITY SERVICE DISTRICT 2,583,000.00 730,434.72 1,852,565.28 28.28 %0.00730-703-500458 2,583,000.00

BANK CHARGES 0.00 14,167.59 -14,167.59 0.00 %1,005.24730-703-520120 0.00

OPERATIONS, MAINTENANCE & REPA… 105,000.00 16,439.20 88,560.80 15.66 %2,427.66730-703-520130 105,000.00

EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE AND SU… 0.00 19.35 -19.35 0.00 %0.00730-703-520300 0.00

FLEET FUEL, MAINTENANCE & REPAIR 55,000.00 8,632.02 46,367.98 15.69 %976.39730-703-520320 55,000.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT 4,160.00 3,836.83 323.17 92.23 %163.52730-703-520400 4,160.00

UTILITY BILLS & POSTAGE 16,000.00 6,564.14 9,435.86 41.03 %604.72730-703-520430 16,000.00

TRAVEL, CONFERENCES & TRAINING 7,500.00 702.87 6,797.13 9.37 %0.00730-703-540220 7,500.00

SMALL TOOLS, EQUIPMENT & SAFETY… 21,000.00 8,351.58 12,648.42 39.77 %621.60730-703-540300 21,000.00

DUMPING, HAULING, GARBAGE 5,000.00 286.25 4,713.75 5.73 %0.00730-703-540400 5,000.00

3 - 14



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2019-2020 Period Ending: 04/30/2020

6/2/2020 1:48:14 PM Page 15 of 21

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

UTILITIES 3,200.00 1,105.16 2,094.84 34.54 %109.04730-703-560100 3,200.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 1,245,291.0697,775.723,993,373.00 3,993,373.00 2,748,081.94 31.18 %

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT RESERVES 662,000.00 9,816.65 652,183.35 1.48 %0.00730-703-660100 662,000.00

SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS & PROJECTS 38,046.00 129,082.63 -91,036.63 339.28 %0.00730-703-676050 38,046.00

RESERVE FROM SDC'S 249,000.00 0.00 249,000.00 0.00 %0.00730-703-678090 249,000.00

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY Total: 138,899.280.00949,046.00 949,046.00 810,146.72 14.64 %

Department: 703 - SEWER Total: 1,629,824.65121,568.645,618,476.00 5,618,476.00 3,988,651.35 29.01 %

Department: 920 - TRANSFER OUT

RptCategory: 89 - TRANSFERS OUT

TRANSFER OUT TO GENERAL FUND 60,748.00 15,187.00 45,561.00 25.00 %0.00730-920-899100 60,748.00

TRANSFER OUT TO ROAD & STREET F… 241,667.00 0.00 241,667.00 0.00 %0.00730-920-899205 241,667.00

RptCategory: 89 - TRANSFERS OUT Total: 15,187.000.00302,415.00 302,415.00 287,228.00 5.02 %

Department: 920 - TRANSFER OUT Total: 15,187.000.00302,415.00 302,415.00 287,228.00 5.02 %

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER

CONTINGENCY FUNDS 35,000.00 0.00 35,000.00 0.00 %0.00730-990-910000 35,000.00

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER Total: 0.000.0035,000.00 35,000.00 35,000.00 0.00 %

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY Total: 0.000.0035,000.00 35,000.00 35,000.00 0.00 %

Expense Total: 1,645,011.65121,568.645,955,891.00 5,955,891.00 4,310,879.35 27.62 %

Fund: 730 - SEWER FUND Surplus (Deficit): 605,687.64135,511.720.00 0.00 605,687.64 0.00 %

3 - 15



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2019-2020 Period Ending: 04/30/2020

6/2/2020 1:48:14 PM Page 16 of 21

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Fund: 740 - WATER FUND

Revenue

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL.

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 2,009,000.00 0.00 -2,009,000.00 0.00 %0.00740-000-309999 2,009,000.00

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL. Total: 0.000.002,009,000.00 2,009,000.00 -2,009,000.00 0.00 %

RptType: 3140 - CHARGES FOR SERVICES

WATER SERVICE REVENUE 3,419,750.00 1,570,393.56 -1,849,356.44 45.92 %156,661.78740-000-314060 3,419,750.00

WATER SERVICE CONNECTIONS 10,000.00 8,490.00 -1,510.00 84.90 %1,260.00740-000-314080 10,000.00

RptType: 3140 - CHARGES FOR SERVICES Total: 1,578,883.56157,921.783,429,750.00 3,429,750.00 -1,850,866.44 46.03 %

RptType: 3141 - SDC

WATER SDC'S 10,000.00 60,794.96 50,794.96 607.95 %7,533.12740-000-314110 10,000.00

SDC Reimbursement Fee 0.00 3,875.16 3,875.16 0.00 %313.88740-000-314111 0.00

RptType: 3141 - SDC Total: 64,670.127,847.0010,000.00 10,000.00 54,670.12 646.70 %

RptType: 3600 - MISCELLANEOUS

ALL OTHER WATER RECEIPTS 20,000.00 10,289.32 -9,710.68 51.45 %0.00740-000-360000 20,000.00

RptType: 3600 - MISCELLANEOUS Total: 10,289.320.0020,000.00 20,000.00 -9,710.68 51.45 %

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL Total: 1,653,843.00165,768.785,468,750.00 5,468,750.00 -3,814,907.00 30.24 %

Department: 910 - TRANSFER IN

RptType: 3990 - TRANSFERS IN

TRANSFER IN FROM ROAD & STREET … 169,560.00 0.00 -169,560.00 0.00 %0.00740-910-399205 169,560.00

RptType: 3990 - TRANSFERS IN Total: 0.000.00169,560.00 169,560.00 -169,560.00 0.00 %

Department: 910 - TRANSFER IN Total: 0.000.00169,560.00 169,560.00 -169,560.00 0.00 %

Revenue Total: 1,653,843.00165,768.785,638,310.00 5,638,310.00 -3,984,467.00 29.33 %

Expense

Department: 704 - WATER

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

ACCOUNTING CLERK 33,133.00 11,299.85 21,833.15 34.10 %816.50740-704-431500 33,133.00

PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 50,930.00 20,902.00 30,028.00 41.04 %2,140.80740-704-437049 50,930.00

PUBLIC WORKS SUPERVISOR 61,712.00 29,143.71 32,568.29 47.23 %2,884.87740-704-437050 61,712.00

PW OPERATIONS MANAGER 34,172.00 0.00 34,172.00 0.00 %0.00740-704-437051 34,172.00

PW ADMIN ASSISTANT 40,520.00 17,330.86 23,189.14 42.77 %1,650.00740-704-437055 40,520.00

UTILITY WORKER, JOURNEY 239,422.00 122,126.63 117,295.37 51.01 %12,175.08740-704-437070 239,422.00

UTILITY WORKER II 25,272.00 0.00 25,272.00 0.00 %0.00740-704-437071 25,272.00

SEASONAL HELP 35,000.00 0.00 35,000.00 0.00 %0.00740-704-439011 35,000.00

OVERTIME 15,000.00 4,393.92 10,606.08 29.29 %582.53740-704-450100 15,000.00

CAREER RECOGNITION PAY 0.00 2,000.33 -2,000.33 0.00 %199.04740-704-450500 0.00

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 324,712.00 117,130.98 207,581.02 36.07 %12,025.64740-704-470000 324,712.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 324,328.2832,474.46859,873.00 859,873.00 535,544.72 37.72 %

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL & PROFESSIONAL SER… 135,000.00 43,610.60 91,389.40 32.30 %6,561.48740-704-500110 135,000.00

METER READING CONTRACT 50,000.00 21,619.02 28,380.98 43.24 %2,204.16740-704-500240 50,000.00

OAK LODGE WATER PURCHASES 0.00 1,664.74 -1,664.74 0.00 %0.00740-704-500422 0.00

WHOLESALE WATER 1,304,000.00 411,443.10 892,556.90 31.55 %38,779.49740-704-500425 1,304,000.00

BANK CHARGES 13,000.00 12,802.71 197.29 98.48 %935.25740-704-520120 13,000.00

OPERATIONS, MAINTENANCE & REPA… 310,000.00 120,318.41 189,681.59 38.81 %5,406.35740-704-520130 310,000.00

LABORATORY WATER TESTS 20,000.00 9,379.00 10,621.00 46.90 %280.00740-704-520162 20,000.00

FIRE HYDRANT MAINTENANCE & REP… 30,000.00 2,682.29 27,317.71 8.94 %0.00740-704-520165 30,000.00

EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE AND SU… 0.00 15.45 -15.45 0.00 %0.00740-704-520300 0.00

FLEET FUEL, MAINTENANCE & REPAIR 45,000.00 12,060.25 32,939.75 26.80 %1,044.74740-704-520320 45,000.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT 4,660.00 2,178.21 2,481.79 46.74 %163.51740-704-520400 4,660.00

UTILITY BILLS & POSTAGE 12,000.00 6,544.12 5,455.88 54.53 %604.72740-704-520430 12,000.00

TRAVEL, CONFERENCES & TRAINING 10,500.00 2,252.37 8,247.63 21.45 %445.00740-704-540220 10,500.00

SMALL TOOLS, EQUIPMENT & SAFETY… 22,000.00 10,700.30 11,299.70 48.64 %713.32740-704-540300 22,000.00

DUMPING, HAULING, GARBAGE 10,000.00 2,118.50 7,881.50 21.19 %22.50740-704-540400 10,000.00

3 - 16



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2019-2020 Period Ending: 04/30/2020

6/2/2020 1:48:14 PM Page 17 of 21

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

UTILITIES 40,000.00 15,275.51 24,724.49 38.19 %1,533.89740-704-560100 40,000.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 674,664.5858,694.412,006,160.00 2,006,160.00 1,331,495.42 33.63 %

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT RESERVES 200,000.00 9,816.65 190,183.35 4.91 %0.00740-704-660100 200,000.00

SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS & PROJECTS 1,103,762.00 129,136.42 974,625.58 11.70 %0.00740-704-676050 1,103,762.00

RESERVE FROM SDC'S 474,000.00 0.00 474,000.00 0.00 %0.00740-704-678090 474,000.00

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY Total: 138,953.070.001,777,762.00 1,777,762.00 1,638,808.93 7.82 %

RptCategory: 70 - DEBT SERVICE

2005 BONDED DEBT/PRINCIPAL 317,000.00 155,000.00 162,000.00 48.90 %0.00740-704-720040 317,000.00

2005 BONDED DEBT/INTEREST 40,124.00 21,631.50 18,492.50 53.91 %0.00740-704-730040 40,124.00

RptCategory: 70 - DEBT SERVICE Total: 176,631.500.00357,124.00 357,124.00 180,492.50 49.46 %

Department: 704 - WATER Total: 1,314,577.4391,168.875,000,919.00 5,000,919.00 3,686,341.57 26.29 %

Department: 920 - TRANSFER OUT

RptCategory: 89 - TRANSFERS OUT

TRANSFER OUT TO GENERAL FUND 65,903.00 16,475.75 49,427.25 25.00 %0.00740-920-899100 65,903.00

TRANSFER OUT TO ROAD & STREET F… 171,488.00 0.00 171,488.00 0.00 %0.00740-920-899205 171,488.00

RptCategory: 89 - TRANSFERS OUT Total: 16,475.750.00237,391.00 237,391.00 220,915.25 6.94 %

Department: 920 - TRANSFER OUT Total: 16,475.750.00237,391.00 237,391.00 220,915.25 6.94 %

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER

CONTINGENCY FUNDS 400,000.00 0.00 400,000.00 0.00 %0.00740-990-910000 400,000.00

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER Total: 0.000.00400,000.00 400,000.00 400,000.00 0.00 %

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY Total: 0.000.00400,000.00 400,000.00 400,000.00 0.00 %

Expense Total: 1,331,053.1891,168.875,638,310.00 5,638,310.00 4,307,256.82 23.61 %

Fund: 740 - WATER FUND Surplus (Deficit): 322,789.8274,599.910.00 0.00 322,789.82 0.00 %

3 - 17



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2019-2020 Period Ending: 04/30/2020

6/2/2020 1:48:14 PM Page 18 of 21

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Fund: 750 - STORM WATER FUND

Revenue

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL.

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 265,000.00 0.00 -265,000.00 0.00 %0.00750-000-309999 265,000.00

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL. Total: 0.000.00265,000.00 265,000.00 -265,000.00 0.00 %

RptType: 3140 - CHARGES FOR SERVICES

STORM REVENUE 1,593,530.00 571,059.21 -1,022,470.79 35.84 %63,843.46750-000-314060 1,593,530.00

RptType: 3140 - CHARGES FOR SERVICES Total: 571,059.2163,843.461,593,530.00 1,593,530.00 -1,022,470.79 35.84 %

RptType: 3141 - SDC

STORMWATER SDC'S 10,000.00 50,520.37 40,520.37 505.20 %2,816.00750-000-314110 10,000.00

SDC Reimbursement Fee 0.00 4,740.00 4,740.00 0.00 %203.00750-000-314111 0.00

RptType: 3141 - SDC Total: 55,260.373,019.0010,000.00 10,000.00 45,260.37 552.60 %

RptType: 3600 - MISCELLANEOUS

ALL OTHER STORM FUND RESOURCES 0.00 10,289.34 10,289.34 0.00 %0.00750-000-360000 0.00

RptType: 3600 - MISCELLANEOUS Total: 10,289.340.000.00 0.00 10,289.34 0.00 %

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL Total: 636,608.9266,862.461,868,530.00 1,868,530.00 -1,231,921.08 34.07 %

Department: 910 - TRANSFER IN

RptType: 3990 - TRANSFERS IN

TRANSFER IN FROM ROAD & STREET … 169,560.00 0.00 -169,560.00 0.00 %0.00750-910-399205 169,560.00

RptType: 3990 - TRANSFERS IN Total: 0.000.00169,560.00 169,560.00 -169,560.00 0.00 %

Department: 910 - TRANSFER IN Total: 0.000.00169,560.00 169,560.00 -169,560.00 0.00 %

Revenue Total: 636,608.9266,862.462,038,090.00 2,038,090.00 -1,401,481.08 31.24 %

Expense

Department: 705 - PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

ACCOUNTING CLERK 27,195.00 9,416.52 17,778.48 34.63 %680.41750-705-431500 27,195.00

PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 50,930.00 20,902.00 30,028.00 41.04 %2,140.80750-705-437049 50,930.00

PUBLIC WORKS SUPERVISOR 59,897.00 28,120.38 31,776.62 46.95 %2,824.76750-705-437050 59,897.00

PW OPERATIONS MANAGER 34,172.00 0.00 34,172.00 0.00 %0.00750-705-437051 34,172.00

PW ADMIN ASSISTANT 40,519.00 17,330.29 23,188.71 42.77 %1,649.94750-705-437055 40,519.00

UTILITY WORKER, JOURNEY 110,447.00 35,317.34 75,129.66 31.98 %4,046.00750-705-437070 110,447.00

SEASONAL HELP 35,000.00 9,421.56 25,578.44 26.92 %0.00750-705-439011 35,000.00

OVERTIME 4,000.00 1,754.24 2,245.76 43.86 %155.95750-705-450100 4,000.00

CAREER RECOGNITION PAY 0.00 275.35 -275.35 0.00 %27.23750-705-450500 0.00

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 200,629.00 46,818.63 153,810.37 23.34 %5,460.85750-705-470000 200,629.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 169,356.3116,985.94562,789.00 562,789.00 393,432.69 30.09 %

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL & PROFESSIONAL SER… 110,000.00 30,219.90 79,780.10 27.47 %6,038.25750-705-500110 110,000.00

BANK CHARGES 0.00 14,169.11 -14,169.11 0.00 %1,005.23750-705-520120 0.00

OPERATIONS, MAINTENANCE & REPA… 65,000.00 9,411.73 55,588.27 14.48 %476.96750-705-520130 65,000.00

FLEET FUEL, MAINTENANCE & REPAIR 22,000.00 6,808.18 15,191.82 30.95 %868.92750-705-520320 22,000.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT 5,160.00 1,945.08 3,214.92 37.70 %163.54750-705-520400 5,160.00

UTILITY BILLS & POSTAGE 15,800.00 6,546.11 9,253.89 41.43 %604.91750-705-520430 15,800.00

TRAVEL, CONFERENCES & TRAINING 5,500.00 797.82 4,702.18 14.51 %0.00750-705-540220 5,500.00

SMALL TOOLS, EQUIPMENT & SAFETY… 11,500.00 6,297.81 5,202.19 54.76 %621.72750-705-540300 11,500.00

DUMPING, HAULING, GARBAGE 3,000.00 307.50 2,692.50 10.25 %0.00750-705-540400 3,000.00

UTILITIES 1,000.00 541.35 458.65 54.14 %54.09750-705-560100 1,000.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 77,044.599,833.62238,960.00 238,960.00 161,915.41 32.24 %

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT RESERVES 100,000.00 9,819.59 90,180.41 9.82 %0.00750-705-660100 100,000.00

SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS & PROJECTS 895,917.00 85,279.67 810,637.33 9.52 %0.00750-705-676050 895,917.00

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY Total: 95,099.260.00995,917.00 995,917.00 900,817.74 9.55 %

Department: 705 - PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR Total: 341,500.1626,819.561,797,666.00 1,797,666.00 1,456,165.84 19.00 %

3 - 18



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2019-2020 Period Ending: 04/30/2020

6/2/2020 1:48:14 PM Page 19 of 21

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Department: 920 - TRANSFER OUT

RptCategory: 89 - TRANSFERS OUT

TRANSFER OUT TO GENERAL FUND 60,748.00 15,187.00 45,561.00 25.00 %0.00750-920-899100 60,748.00

TRANSFER OUT TO ROAD & STREET F… 79,676.00 0.00 79,676.00 0.00 %0.00750-920-899205 79,676.00

RptCategory: 89 - TRANSFERS OUT Total: 15,187.000.00140,424.00 140,424.00 125,237.00 10.82 %

Department: 920 - TRANSFER OUT Total: 15,187.000.00140,424.00 140,424.00 125,237.00 10.82 %

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER

CONTINGENCY FUNDS 100,000.00 0.00 100,000.00 0.00 %0.00750-990-910000 100,000.00

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER Total: 0.000.00100,000.00 100,000.00 100,000.00 0.00 %

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY Total: 0.000.00100,000.00 100,000.00 100,000.00 0.00 %

Expense Total: 356,687.1626,819.562,038,090.00 2,038,090.00 1,681,402.84 17.50 %

Fund: 750 - STORM WATER FUND Surplus (Deficit): 279,921.7640,042.900.00 0.00 279,921.76 0.00 %

3 - 19



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2019-2020 Period Ending: 04/30/2020

6/2/2020 1:48:14 PM Page 20 of 21

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Fund: 801 - MUNICIPAL COURT TRUST FUND

Revenue

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL.

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 40,000.00 0.00 -40,000.00 0.00 %0.00801-000-309999 40,000.00

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL. Total: 0.000.0040,000.00 40,000.00 -40,000.00 0.00 %

RptType: 3260 - FINES AND FORFEITURES

CITY OF GLADSTONE FINES/FEES 700,000.00 215,429.47 -484,570.53 30.78 %36,383.20801-000-326020 700,000.00

CLACKAMAS COUNTY FINES/FEES 26,000.00 5,041.04 -20,958.96 19.39 %521.94801-000-326030 26,000.00

STATE OF OREGON FINES/FEES 88,000.00 22,705.66 -65,294.34 25.80 %3,153.66801-000-326040 88,000.00

RESTITUTION 6,000.00 200.00 -5,800.00 3.33 %200.00801-000-326050 6,000.00

BOND 5,000.00 4,870.65 -129.35 97.41 %-13,931.50801-000-326060 5,000.00

RptType: 3260 - FINES AND FORFEITURES Total: 248,246.8226,327.30825,000.00 825,000.00 -576,753.18 30.09 %

RptType: 3600 - MISCELLANEOUS

ALL OTHER COURT FEES 0.00 644.04 644.04 0.00 %37.39801-000-360000 0.00

RptType: 3600 - MISCELLANEOUS Total: 644.0437.390.00 0.00 644.04 0.00 %

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL Total: 248,890.8626,364.69865,000.00 865,000.00 -616,109.14 28.77 %

Revenue Total: 248,890.8626,364.69865,000.00 865,000.00 -616,109.14 28.77 %

Expense

Department: 220 - COURT

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CITY OF GLADSTONE FINES & FEES 690,000.00 204,383.27 485,616.73 29.62 %16,642.74801-220-500500 690,000.00

CLACKAMAS COUNTY FINES & FEES 22,000.00 5,155.56 16,844.44 23.43 %327.72801-220-500510 22,000.00

STATE OF OREGON FINES & FEES 88,000.00 23,665.09 64,334.91 26.89 %623.66801-220-500520 88,000.00

RESTITUTION 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.00 %0.00801-220-500530 6,000.00

BOND - COURT 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.00 %0.00801-220-500540 5,000.00

ALL OTHER FEES & FINES 0.00 668.28 -668.28 0.00 %133.39801-220-500550 0.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 233,872.2017,727.51811,000.00 811,000.00 577,127.80 28.84 %

Department: 220 - COURT Total: 233,872.2017,727.51811,000.00 811,000.00 577,127.80 28.84 %

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER

CONTINGENCY FUNDS 54,000.00 0.00 54,000.00 0.00 %0.00801-990-910000 54,000.00

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER Total: 0.000.0054,000.00 54,000.00 54,000.00 0.00 %

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY Total: 0.000.0054,000.00 54,000.00 54,000.00 0.00 %

Expense Total: 233,872.2017,727.51865,000.00 865,000.00 631,127.80 27.04 %

Fund: 801 - MUNICIPAL COURT TRUST FUND Surplus (Deficit): 15,018.668,637.180.00 0.00 15,018.66 0.00 %

Report Surplus (Deficit): -1,099,376.02 -8,149,520.940.00 0.00 -8,149,520.94 0.00 %

3 - 20



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2019-2020 Period Ending: 04/30/2020

6/2/2020 1:48:14 PM Page 21 of 21

Fund Summary

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)Fund
Period

Activity
Current

Total Budget
Original

Total Budget

100 - GENERAL FUND 33,715.85-388,593.080.00 0.00 33,715.85

205 - ROAD AND STREET FUND 117,085.0949,536.260.00 0.00 117,085.09

228 - POLICE LEVY FUND 40,948.41-53,677.730.00 0.00 40,948.41

229 - FIRE LEVY FUND -221,030.71-16,495.800.00 0.00 -221,030.71

307 - CIVIC BUILDINGS CAPITAL FUND (NEW) 1,184,013.431,641,101.610.00 0.00 1,184,013.43

390 - URBAN RENEWAL FUND -10,527,670.89-2,590,038.990.00 0.00 -10,527,670.89

730 - SEWER FUND 605,687.64135,511.720.00 0.00 605,687.64

740 - WATER FUND 322,789.8274,599.910.00 0.00 322,789.82

750 - STORM WATER FUND 279,921.7640,042.900.00 0.00 279,921.76

801 - MUNICIPAL COURT TRUST FUND 15,018.668,637.180.00 0.00 15,018.66

Report Surplus (Deficit): -1,099,376.02 -8,149,520.940.00 0.00 -8,149,520.94

3 - 21





4



Check Date Check No. Vendor Amount Line Item Description

04/02/2020 88814 - 88818 UB Refund Checks 567.24$               UB Refund Checks
04/07/2020 88819 Aramark 63.60                    Mat/Overall Rental - PW
04/07/2020 88820 AutoZone, Inc 89.97                    Auto Parts - PD
04/07/2020 88821 Bravo Land Care & Maintenance 360.00                 Landscape Maintenance - SC
04/07/2020 88822 Brian Lowry Trucking LLC 1,324.00              Materials Delivery - PW
04/07/2020 88823 BridgePay Network Solutions, LLC 125.20                 UB Online Payment Fees - PW
04/07/2020 88824 Cascade Centers, Inc. 55.20                    Employee Assistance Program - FD
04/07/2020 88825 Curtis, L. N. Co. 889.95                 Uniforms/Safety Equipment - PD
04/07/2020 88826 Delta Auto Glass Inc 55.00                    Vehicle Repair - PD
04/07/2020 88827 Ecolab Food Safety Specialties, Inc. 41.35                    Kitchen Supplies - SC
04/07/2020 88828 Elmer's Flag & Banner LLC 477.80                 US/Oregon Flags - PW
04/07/2020 88829 Firecom 160.00                 Wireless Headset - FD
04/07/2020 88830 Hamiltons Appliance 1,149.00              Washer/Dryer - FD
04/07/2020 88831 Home Depot Pro Institutional 674.81                 Cleaning Supplies - SC
04/07/2020 88832 Houston, Marc R 990.00                 Physician Advisor - FD
04/07/2020 88833 Jill Tate 487.50                 Transcription - Admin
04/07/2020 88834 Lori Bell 880.00                 Professional Fees - Admin
04/07/2020 88835 Lundquist Legal, LLC 3,090.00              Indigent Defense - CT
04/07/2020 88836 Northside Ford 29,452.89            New Vehicle - PW
04/07/2020 88837 Northwest Floriculture 557.50                 Landscape Supplies - PW
04/07/2020 88838 Northwest Natural Gas 1,281.39              Natural Gas Usage - All Depts
04/07/2020 88839 Office Depot 190.25                 Office Supplies - PD
04/07/2020 88840 Oregon Patrol Service 310.00                 Courtroom Security - CT
04/07/2020 88841 Pamplin Media Group 1,574.00              Newsletter Printing - Admin
04/07/2020 88842 Paramount Pest Control Inc 208.00                 Pest Control - PW
04/07/2020 88843 Portland General Electric 5,497.11              Electric Usage - All Depts
04/07/2020 88844 Referral Refrigeration Inc. 452.00                 Appliance Maintenance - SC
04/07/2020 88845 Satcom Global Ltd. 42.75                    Satellite Phone Service - PD
04/07/2020 88846 Shred-it USA LLC 107.83                 Shredding Service - PD
04/07/2020 88847 Sierra Springs 188.72                 Drinking Water - PD/Admin
04/07/2020 88848 Smart Foodservice 148.96                 Special Event Supplies - Admin
04/07/2020 88849 Solutions Yes 13.76                    Copier Usage - IT
04/07/2020 88850 Stitch n' Embroidery Inc. 62.00                    Uniforms - PD
04/07/2020 88851 TransUnion Risk and Alternative 75.00                    Data Research - PD
04/07/2020 88852 Triangle Pump & Equipment, Inc. 405.00                 Pump Maintenance - PW
04/07/2020 88853 Verizon Wireless 2,824.35              Cell Phones - All Depts
04/07/2020 88854 Wilsonville Lock & Security 221.70                 Monitoring - PW
04/10/2020 ACH US Bank  24,320.60            P-Card Payment - All Depts.
04/10/2020 88855 United States Postal Service 40.00                    Lock Change Fee
04/14/2020 88856 Accurate Electric of Oregon  I 487.36                 Kirkwood Pump Maintenance - PW
04/14/2020 88857 Adventist Health Occupational Medicine 93.00                    DOT Physical - FD
04/14/2020 88858 Airgas USA LLC 175.33                 First Responder Supplies - FD
04/14/2020 88859 Backflow Management Inc 2,068.00              UCMR Plan Setup/Letters - PW
04/14/2020 88860 Batteries Plus 60.36                    Batteries - FD
04/14/2020 88861 BMS Technologies 1,814.35              UB Printing/Mailing - PW
04/14/2020 88862 CalPortland Co 22.50                    Dump Fees - PW
04/14/2020 88863 Cintas First Aid Lockbox 932.74                 First Aid Supplies - All Depts
04/14/2020 88864 City of Lake Oswego 1,400.00              LEDS/NCIC Service - PD
04/14/2020 88865 City of Oregon City 2,343.00              GIS Services - PW
04/14/2020 88866 Clackamas County Finance Department 19,945.74            Dispatch Fees/Ammo/Telecom - PD/FD
04/14/2020 88867 Clackamas Fire District #1 2,668.02              Fleet Maintenance - FD
04/14/2020 88868 Comcast Business 270.37                 Phone/Internet - PW
04/14/2020 88869 Curtis, L. N. Co. 170.00                 Uniforms - PD
04/14/2020 88870 David A. Bissett 9,875.00              Architectural Fees - PW
04/14/2020 88871 Day Wireless Systems Inc 632.00                 Radio Repairs - FD
04/14/2020 88872 Gladstone Municipal Court 461.58                 Bank Fee Reimbursement - Admin
04/14/2020 88873 Gold Wrench 612.65                 Vehicle Repair - PD
04/14/2020 88874 Home Depot 256.30                 Building Supplies - FD
04/14/2020 88875 R-Supply 280.48                 Paper Products - FD
04/14/2020 88876 Life-Assist Inc 1,264.00              First Responder Supplies - FD
04/14/2020 88877 Lynn Peavey Company 53.45                    First Responder Supplies - FD
04/14/2020 88878 Mallory Safety & Supply LLC 586.61                 Safety Equipment - FD

CHECK REGISTER FOR APRIL 2020

4 - 1



Check Date Check No. Vendor Amount Line Item Description

CHECK REGISTER FOR APRIL 2020

04/14/2020 88879 North Clackamas County 33,298.48            Water Purchases - PW
04/14/2020 88880 Oak Lodge Water Services 981.84                 Water Purchases - PW
04/14/2020 88881 Office Depot 324.92                 Office Supplies - PD/FD
04/14/2020 88882 One Call Concepts Inc 98.40                    Utility Notifications - PW
04/14/2020 88883 One Diversified LLC 27,963.64            DGS Subscription/Licensing - Admin
04/14/2020 88884 Oregon DMV 13.00                    Driving Records - PD/Admin
04/14/2020 88885 Pacific Office Automation Inc 10.07                    Copier Usage - CT
04/14/2020 88886 Platt Electric Supply 169.75                 Safety Supplies - FD
04/14/2020 88887 Portland General Electric 6,155.39              Street Light Electric Usage - PW
04/14/2020 88888 Portland Road & Driveway Co., Inc. 50.00                    Dump Fees - PW
04/14/2020 88889 Proforce Law Enforcement 90.69                    Uniforms - PD
04/14/2020 88890 SeaWestern 97.35                    Equipment Maintenance - FD
04/14/2020 88891 Secure Pacific Corporation 188.70                 Quarterly Monitoring - FD/SC
04/14/2020 88892 Sisul Engineering 3,719.50              Professional Fees - PW
04/14/2020 88893 Smith-Wagar Brucker Consulting Inc. 9,545.00              Financial Services - Admin
04/14/2020 88894 Stein Oil Co. Inc. 3,646.74              Gasoline - FD/PD/PW
04/14/2020 88895 Tyler Technologies, Inc. 4,511.25              UB Online Payment Fees - PW
04/14/2020 88896 Uline Inc 443.19                 Safety Supplies - PD
04/14/2020 88897 US Bank Equipment Finance 224.46                 Copier Usage - IT
04/14/2020 88898 Val Codino Consulting 250.00                 Consulting Fee - FD
04/28/2020 88899 Allstream 1,276.29              Land lines - All Depts.
04/28/2020 88900 Bateman Community Living 672.00                 Beverages/Supplies - SC
04/28/2020 88901 Beery Elsner & Hammond LLP 5,362.10              Legal Fees - Admin
04/28/2020 88902 Beloof & Haines 3,090.00              Municipal Ct. Judge - CT
04/28/2020 88903 Canon Financial Services, Inc. 1,026.32              Copier Lease/Usage - IT
04/28/2020 88904 CIS Trust 9,645.43              Liability Deductible/GASB75 -Admin
04/28/2020 88905 Comcast 124.18                 Internet/Phone - IT
04/28/2020 88906 Cruise Master Prisms Inc 25.45                    Supplies - FD
04/28/2020 88907 Cycle Express 39.50                    Stickers - FD
04/28/2020 88908 Mallory Safety & Supply LLC 145.00                 Disinfecting Supplies - FD
04/28/2020 88909 Nancy McDonald 5,790.00              HR Consultant - Admin
04/28/2020 88910 Northwest Project Services 3,250.00              Professional Fees - PW
04/28/2020 88911 Office Depot 724.00                 Office Supplies - PD
04/28/2020 88912 Oregon Association of Water Utilities 445.00                 Conference/Updates - PW
04/28/2020 88913 P & C Construction 937,295.00          Civic Building Costs - Admin
04/28/2020 88914 Pacific Office Automation Inc 139.42                 Copier Lease/Usage - IT
04/28/2020 88915 Paramount Pest Control Inc 78.00                    Pest Control - PW
04/28/2020 88916 PBS Engineering & Environmental Inc. 4,840.59              Civic Building Costs - Admin
04/28/2020 88917 Ritz Safety 79.84                    Safety Supplies - PW
04/28/2020 88918 Shiels Obletz Johnsen 12,925.25            Civic Building Costs - Admin
04/28/2020 88919 Stitch n' Embroidery Inc. 64.00                    Logo Embroidery - PD
04/28/2020 88920 Three E Company Evironmental 575.00                 Hotline Subscription - FD
04/30/2020 88921 - 88925 Payroll Checks 7,029.48              Payroll checks
04/30/2020 88926 Axa Equi-Vest 5,378.72              Voluntary Payroll Deferred Comp
04/30/2020 88927 Axa EVLICO 106.00                 Non-PERS Retirment Pmt
04/30/2020 88928 CIS Trust 72,382.49            Monthly Health Insurance
04/30/2020 88929 Clackamas Community Federal Credit Union 1,112.59              GPA Union Dues
04/30/2020 88930 Equitable 1,493.48              Non-PERS Retirment Pmt
04/30/2020 88931 Gladstone Fire Department 525.00                 Fire Members House Dues
04/30/2020 88932 Oregon AFSCME Council #75 822.52                 AFSCME Union Dues
04/30/2020 88933 United States Postal Service 1,043.61              Newsletter Printing - Admin

Total General Fund Checks: 1,295,215.90      

4/2/2020 5517 City of Gladstone 362.61$               

Total Urban Renewal Checks 362.61                 

April 2020 Checks 1,295,578.51$    

4 - 2



5



Attorneys: July, 2019 Aug, 2019 Sept, 2019 Oct, 2019 Nov, 2019 Dec, 2019 Totals

City Charter -$                -$              -$              -$                -$            -$            -$                 

Elections -                   -                 -                 1,608.50        -               422.20        2,030.70         

Finance 305.50            141.73          -                 -                  -               54.00          501.23             

General 70.50              -                 -                 6.20                540.50        205.15        822.35             

Civic Center Project 258.50            1,833.00       352.50          -                  70.50          775.50        3,290.00         

          Meeting Attendance -                   -                 -                 -                  -               -               -                   

Governance/City Council 376.00            70.50            329.00          188.00           258.50        94.00          1,316.00         

          Meeting Attendance 837.92            767.42          767.42          1,049.42        837.92        814.42        5,074.52         

Intergovernmental 94.00              2,453.00       2,239.40       2,711.88        446.50        -               7,944.78         

          Meeting Attendance 808.51            1,296.18       -                 2,552.70        -               -               4,657.39         

Land Use/ Community Development 963.50            1,104.09       188.00          352.50           -               -               2,608.09         

          Meeting Attendance -                   -                 -                 -                  -               -               -                   

Parks & Recreation 23.50              -                 -                 -                  -               -               23.50               

Personnel/Labor 112.50            1,690.10       67.50            -                  -               -               1,870.10         

          AFSCME -                   -                 -                 -                  -               -               -                   

         City Administration -                   -                 -                 123.30           188.00        -               311.30             

Public Records & Meetings -                   -                 -                 47.00              -               -               47.00               

Public Safety 180.00            -                 -                 -                  -               -               180.00             

Public Works -                   258.50          305.50          -                  -               -               564.00             

Real Property Transactions -                   -                 -                 -                  -               -               -                   

Risk Management/Litigation 376.45            382.00          97.50            70.50              23.50          -               949.95             

Rights of Way-Telecommunications -                   -                 -                 -                  -               -               -                   

Urban Renewal -                   -                 -                 -                  -               -               -                   

Total 4,406.88$      9,996.52$    4,346.82$    8,710.00$     2,365.42$  2,365.27$  32,190.91$    

(pmt on 12/05/19)

Attorneys: Jan, 2020 Feb, 2020 Mar, 2020 Apr, 2020 May, 2020 June, 2020

Totals for

 Year

City Charter -$                -$              -$              -$                 

Elections 431.90            -                 -                 2,462.60         

Finance 23.50              -                 -                 524.73             

General 775.50            258.50          493.50          2,349.85         

Civic Center Project -                   705.00          1,141.00       5,136.00         

          Meeting Attendance 696.80            -                 -                 696.80             

Governance/City Council 522.00            94.00            70.50            2,002.50         

          Meeting Attendance 1,910.60         767.30          908.30          8,660.72         

Intergovernmental -                   638.00          -                 8,582.78         

         Meeting Attendance -                   -                 -                 4,657.39         

Land Use/ Community Development -                   -                 982.00          3,590.09         

          Meeting Attendance -                   -                 -                 -                   

Parks & Recreation -                   94.00            -                 117.50             

Personnel/Labor 23.50              70.50            732.80          2,696.90         

          AFSCME -                   -                 -                 -                   

         City Administration -                   -                 -                 311.30             

Public Records & Meetings -                   -                 -                 47.00               

Public Safety 94.00              846.00          -                 1,120.00         

Public Works 94.00              -                 1,034.00       1,692.00         

Real Property Transactions -                   -                 -                 -                   

Risk Management/Litigation 258.50            13.50            -                 1,221.95         

Rights of Way-Telecommunications -                   -                 -                 -                   

Urban Renewal -                   -                 -                 -                   

Total 4,830.30$      3,486.80$    5,362.10$    -$                -$            -$            45,870.11$    

ATTORNEY CHARGES

5 - 1





6



6 - 1



6 - 2



6 - 3



6 - 4



6 - 5



6 - 6



6 - 7



6 - 8



6 - 9



6 - 10



6 - 11



6 - 12



6 - 13



6 - 14



6 - 15



6 - 16



1 
 

     

 

 
   

Staff Report for the Month of  
 

May 2020 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Report Date : May 30, 2020 
To  : Jacque M. Betz, City Administrator  
Copy  : Mayor and City Council 
From  : Jim Whynot, Public Works Director 

_________________________________________________________________ 
 

WATER DIVISION 

Covid-19 has us scaled back on preventative operations in utilities, but it has also offered us time to focus on relocating a 

portion of our operations to the new space we gained from the PD vacating to their new building. This will allow room for a 

future remodel of the existing PW’s building. We have also worked to organize our vehicles and complete quarterly 

inspections of our equipment. 

The Water Dept. continues to have our routine utility locates, GIS map updates and water system reservoir/pump station 

monitoring, State Drinking Water Authority drinking water system chlorine residual sampling and total coliform sampling.  

Additionally, meter maintenance kept us busy, not getting meter maintenance sheets while Utility Billing was under staffed 

has provided a fair amount of work to catch up on.  We are working to get these needed maintenance items handled as 

quickly and efficiently as possible.  Meter Maintenance includes, replacing meters that are reported as dead, testing 

meters for accuracy, replacing cracked shields which prevents meters from being read, cleaning meter boxes of mud and 

debris, replacing hazardous meter box tops that are broken or cracked and sinking meter boxes.  

 

 

Water Leaks:  

Responded to a water leak on Shawn Ct. 

where two services needed to be replaced. 

Discovered that the saddles that connect the 

services to the main were also in bad shape. 

One was leaking and coming apart and the 

other one was corroded and barely hanging on 

by a thread. We throttled down the main 

keeping customers in water and replaced both 

of the saddles live.  

 

6 - 17



2 
 

 
 

 

 

 

A resident called regarding a concern that there was a sink hole forming in front of her homes driveway, at 340 W. Clackamas 

Blvd.  The water dept. fixed the main line and then fixed the sink hole, by backfilling the area.  Residents contacting the PW’s 

office to report these concerns, utilizing our work order system brings these 

concerns to our attention which allows our crews to address these concerns in 

a timely manner. 

 

             
 

           Leak in the 2” galvanized iron water main on at 340 W. Clackamas. We installed a repair band to fix the leak. 

6 - 18



3 
 

 

 

Tank Inspections: 

 

Our 2019 water system survey had action items that needed addressed, these items were required to be completed by the end 

of 2020.  We began the process of completing these required items with the assistance of Smith Crane.  Inspections and 

documentation of the Webster and Kirkwood reservoirs vent screens, man hatches and hatch locks were completed.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Per State Drinking Water Survey, we are required 

to provide documentation of the inspections of: 

vent screens, hatch seals and hatch locks every 3 

years.  We are working to facilitate the required 

repairs that we found during our inspections.  The 

Kirkwood reservoir is in need of a vent screen.  

The Webster 1-million-gallon tank needs a vent 

screen as well as the seal on the man hatch.  Once 

these repairs have been completed we will be in 

compliance with our 2019 Water System Survey 

requirements. 

 

 

 

6 - 19



4 
 

 

SEWER DIVISION 

During this time of Covid-19, the crew is only accessing the sewer system in emergency cases, we have not had any this 

month.  We continue with routine manhole inspections and lateral inspections for new service lines for both new construction 

and replacement lines for existing homes.   

 

 

 

A resident contacted our office regarding concerns that there was a sewer back up on the 

city side, he had been unable to locate it in his system.  Our crews responded and 

completed a sewer flow test and inspections at manholes determining that the city system 

was flowing.  The resident rented a heavy duty snake and was able to remove this mass 

of tightly wound tree roots.  He contacted our office to thank us for the quick response and 

wanted to let us know that he was able to resolve his issue.    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STORMWATER DIVISION 

We continue to manage our catch basin cleaning in 

areas, 1 & 3 (zones per leaf pick up map) this year our 

focused areas for catch basin cleaning are 1,3,7 & 8.  

These areas are determined by our NPDES permit 

requirements.  Utilizing our Vactor truck for both urgent 

and routine catch basin cleaning helps our small crew 

tackle a huge task.  Ongoing catch basin cleaning has 

reduced flooding in town during both winter and spring 

months.  It also has had a positive impact on our rivers, 

maintaining the storm system/catch basins reduces 

pollutants, trash and sediment that would otherwise end 

up in our beloved Clackamas & Willamette Rivers. 

 

DEQ recently approved our NPDES/TMDL annual report 

these documents are available to be viewed on the Public Works page of our City website. 

6 - 20



5 
 

 

STREETS DIVISION    

 

The Streets Dept. continues to take advantage of the 

beautiful weather to complete much needed paving 

and patching jobs.  The paving job to the left is in the 

area of Safeway & High Rocks Restaurant. Many 

residents and customers of the businesses in the area 

were very happy to see our crews out paving this area, 

and the finished product looked wonderful! 

 

 

Below is the street crew working to patch the large 

area that was required to access and repair the water 

leak repair on Shawn Ct.  

 

 
   

We continue to get daily calls regarding pot holes and street concerns from 

residents and business owners.  We do our best to prioritize these requests and 

resolve them as quickly as we are able.   

 

 

 

Local businesses are starting to reopen and have the full support 

of Gladstone patrons.  The Streets Dept. received a request to 

provide 3 additional trash receptacles to manage the overflow of 

garbage for the businesses on & near the 400 block of Portland 

Ave.   

 

 

 

6 - 21



6 
 

ROW Inspections continue, this installation of a new sewer 

line for a new construction project and an additional new 

sewer lateral for an existing home on Arlington St. took 

quite a bit of time and effort from multiple departments.  It is 

a good example of how detailed management of ROW 

projects can be. We worked with the contractor to make 

sure that the installations were up to the new city standards 

for both the sewer system and the roadway repairs.  While 

managing concerns that residents brought to both PW and 

PD regarding sediment going into our storm system, 

flagging and traffic control concerns. 

                                                                                                                    

     

 

 

 

PARKS DIVISION      

 

A sign of the season and possibly a sign of boredom, our 

park buildings have not been the only victims of increased 

graffiti.  The Dahl Beach pump house is an example of the 

surface types that take much more time and effort to clean 

senseless graffiti from.  Our crews have been battling graffiti 

more now than in years past.  We are dealing with it all over 

town, it is an unsightly distraction to our beautiful open areas. 

Increased amounts of garbage in our parks is also an 

ongoing battle, garbage runs have been increased 

substantially with COVID-19. 

 

 

 

                    

Park staff including seasonal help is vigilant on 

the required signage for required “Social 

Distancing”, “Restroom Cleaning” and other 

required postings such as signage for 

“Playground Closed”.  Playgrounds are also 

being taped off with caution tape, but we are 

faced daily with having to redo the signage at 

playgrounds, sometime multiple times a day at 

multiple parks, due to people removing it, tearing 

down/destroying signs and kicking over the 

barricades.   

6 - 22



7 
 

Park Mowing was behind, but we now have seasonal staff on 

board and they are helping us to get caught up on these much 

needed maintenance items. Currently we are utilizing two 

seasonal staff members to keep on top of the quickly growing 

grass. 

 

  
          

FACILITIES AND FLEET DIVISION 

 

 

 Fleet services have begun on our seasonal equipment; we are working to maintain and service all our equipment for 

the summer season.  

 Facilities has continued to work with Civic Center staff to manage needs and requests as needed.   

 Entrance mats have been added to both the City Hall and PD sides of the Civic Center to increase safety for both 

employees and customers at entry points.  
 

 

.    

ADMINISTRATION: 

 Calculating SDCs for private & commercial development, which requires plan reviews on items other than a single 

family residence.  Currently working on multiple independent builds. 

 Ongoing discussions to improve process and procedure between the city and county, regarding private and commercial 

development projects.   

 Facilitating dept. reviews for building permits and signage permits for release letters to Clackamas County. 

 Working with Oak Lodge Water Services to update and clarify our IGA. 

 Meldrum Bar Dredging project, Bid has been awarded and we are working to finalize the contract and bring to City 

Council.   

 Continuing administering the ODFW and OSMB Meldrum Bar dredging grant, tracking staff time.     

 Monitor progress on DEQ MAO requirements. 

 Posting required annual reports for Water and Storm departments. 

 Ongoing management of the ROW permit closeouts regarding the companies using our rights of way.  We continue to 

discover many unresolved issues and incomplete job sites requiring multiple inspections by Public Works and requiring 

administrative follow up to resolve.     

 Working with consultant and structural engineer to determine the soundness of our Public Works shop building for 

possible remodel vs. new construction. 

 

6 - 23



8 
 

 Working with City Engineer on W. Clackamas sewer line design.  

 Preparing to impliment the E. Clackamas one way street project. 

 Preparing contract and other required items for the city slurry seal project. 

 Crew time management, processing of daily time tracking sheets, which allow our dept. to manage and budget our time 

accordingly.   

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

   “Tis skill, not strength, that governs a ship” 

          -Thomas Fuller 

6 - 24



Gladstone Fire Department 
Monthly Report: May 2020 

 
 
Report Date:  June 2, 2020 
To: City Administrator Jacque Betz  
Cc: City Council 
From: Fire Chief Rick Huffman 
 
There were 137 calls for service in the City of Gladstone for May of 2020 (this includes 14 ambulance 
only transports within our city). Some of our notable and critical responses are listed in the table to 
the right: 
 

Pandemic operations continue to 
impact the fire department. We 
have maintained our PPE supply 
and training to support these 
conditions. 
 

Response times have been 
excellent as we have been 
staffing with three personnel 
24/7 (the standard staffing in the 
Portland Metro area for a Fire 
Engine). This staffing model is 
also to reduce the amount of 
firefighters in the station, or 
coming in from home (on-call) as 
in past practices. This will help if 
we have exposures to COVID-19 
that result in quarantines, by 
reducing the exposure potential. 
These practices are revealing the 
value and need for staffing the 
Gladstone Fire Department to 
meet current response 
standards. 
 

 
As we end the month of May, we are experiencing demonstrations in the Portland metro area that 
unfortunately have turned violent and destructive. Rest assured, the City Management team and 
specifically the Police Chief and I are focused and coordinated in our efforts to protect the City, its 
citizens and the first responders of Gladstone.  
 
Rick Huffman, Fire Chief 

 
The following are reports from your Fire Department Command Staff: 

 

6 - 25



Michael Funk 
Assistant Chief/Fire Marshal 
 

 Continue business inspections and development proposal reviews. 
 Regular briefings with Fire Chief on code review and enforcement. 
 Adapting fire and life safety inspections to meet COVID-19 reopening 

guidelines. 
 Work extensively on dept. pay roll this month.  

_ _ 
 
Deputy Chief Randy Hopperstad 
Logistical Support 
 

 Radio’s and Pagers: Delivered several radios’ to WCCCA for de-programming 
 

 Repairs: This month was pretty non eventful as far as repairs go and all is looking good. 
We are starting annual preventative maintenance on all equipment.  

 
 Meetings:  Due to COVID-19, all meetings were cancelled or held on zoom. Command 

staff meeting was held. 
 

 Building Maintenance:  Facilities had our heat/cooling system serviced. 
 

 Logistics: Continue shopping for COVID-19 supplies when available products are in stock.   
Station shopping as needed. I missed sometime this month due to the passing of my 
Father so some items are in the works (Truck sale) with Gov. Deals and surplus 
equipment. 

_ _ 
 
Battalion Chief Tighe Vroman 
Training & EMS Division 
 
Training: 
 
The Virtual Reality (VR) training program is 
developing very well. Fire Officers are able to meet 
online from their homes and while at the fire 
station to receive briefings and command training 
from the Fire Chief. We have been using a “camp 
fire” environment to look at life sized fire 
simulations that provide continuing education on 
incident commander tactics and strategy.  
 
Emergency Medical Services: 
 
As we end the month of May, emergency medical (EMS) operations, both pandemic and regular, 
continue to be the focus of the majority of my efforts. We have received more PPE supplies from 

6 - 26



the County warehouse and continue to work with the medical community, AMR ambulance and 
fire agencies state wide on pandemic operations. 

Gladstone Fire Paid-On-Call Firefighter Recruitment: 

Recruitment has begun for “Paid-on-call Firefighters” and information on the recruitment/testing 
process has been posted on the Gladstone Fire web page. We are now discussing the best 
methods and challenges of new recruit training under the pandemic re-opening phases.  
 
Respectfully, 
 
Tighe Vroman 
Training and EMS Officer 
 
Captain Patrick Brost 
A Shift Operations 
 
Projects 
 
Continue work on electronic staffing program. This work will help Chief Funk and Chief Huffman 
modernize our staffing and payroll systems. 
 
Operations & Training 
 
Spent significant time training with new firefighters and those advancing to apparatus 
operator/engineer. Pumping drills, associated math problems and driving skills were key topics for 
the crews. 
 
Calls 
Busy month with EMS responses, notably critical cardiac and stroke calls. 
 
 
Captain Kirk Stempel  
B Shift Operations 
 

Special Operations/Technical Rescue 

With AMR (American Medical Response) unable to not provide lifeguards this year, due to 
restrictions mandated by Governor Brown, Gladstone Fire, along with the rest of the Clackamas 
County Water Rescue Consortium, will continue to provide water rescue services. With lifeguards 
not being on duty, teams will continue to train and have a presence in the High Rocks area. This 
month Gladstone fire has been training with the new inflatable rapid deployment craft (RDC), 
along with rescue swimmer scenarios.  

Fire & EMS Operations 

B shift has had substantial oppurtunities to train with shift crews, greatly enhancings their skills. 
Sets and reps will allow the firefighters to do their job more successfully on those early morning 

6 - 27



calls. B shift has been able to work closely with the new probationary firefighters, fine tuning their 
firefighting skills.  

                

 

  

 

                             

In the month of May, B shift saw an increase in cardiac arrest calls. As stressful as this is for family 
members, it is also extremely stressful on first responders. A strong peer support team is 
extremely important for the mental well-being of all responders involved.   

PIO Duties 

With the COVID-19 pandemic and AMR not providing lifeguard services this year, I have been 
extremely busy putting together social media posts and providing news interviews with local 
television stations. I have been working on new signage that will be posted at river access points 
warning of the dangers of current and cold water, along with lifeguards not being on duty.  

 

Captain Richard Newton 
C Shift Operations 
 
For the month of May Gladstone Fire Department (GFD) responded on 131 calls.  Of these calls C-
shift responded on 50 calls.  On C-shift we are keeping up with our wildland, structure and EMS 
training.  As we enter into phase one of re-opening we still need to follow distancing guide lines 
and cleaning processes.  On May 28th C-shift got Truck 392 ready to be placed up for sale.  We sent 
most the day removing the equipment and cleaning all compartments. 

Pre-incident plans: 

We have added a couple new Pre-incident plans to the system.  The newest one was the new Civic 
Center building.  We have also added two more car dealerships into the system.  As times moves 
forward and places start to re-open we will be able to get into some of these buildings.    

Operations: 

There has been some equipment added to E391.  The extrication equipment has been updated.  
The cutter from the truck was placed on the engine along with the hydraulic pump.  The 
department has ordered two new PPV fans for both engines they should be here in the next 90-
120 days.  These new fans take up less compartment space and are battery or 110 powered. 

GFD has gotten back the new drawings for the engine.  The engine should be moving right along 
and will be on the assembly line sometime in August.  Once it’s on the assembly line we will be 
getting weekly progress pictures. 

6 - 28



 

Call: 

On May 10, 2020 GFD assisted CCFD#1 with a 
residential fire.  E391 got do some overhaul and pull 
a back-up line.  

 

 

 

### 

6 - 29



1 | P a g e  
 

Gladstone Senior Center 

Monthly Report 

May 2020 

 

Report Date:  June 1, 2020 

To:  City Administrator, Jacque Betz 

From:  Senior Center Manager, Colin Black 

The month of May saw more fluctuating of our homebound meal client count. As of the date of 
this report, we are sitting at 38 clients. Nutrition operations continue with great success thanks 
to the assistance of Elected Officials and community members. This support allows our staff to 
provide nutritional and personal needs relief to our clientele.  

Throughout the month of May, CA Betz, HR MGR McDonald, and myself have met to develop 
an operations plan for the Senior Center, as mentioned in the email sent to you by CA Betz on 
5/29/20. Staff at the Senior Center are developing virtual programming for our clients. This 
programming will consist of a mix of in-person and virtual (online or phone) programs that are 
aimed at easing the stresses of the current crisis. We are working hard to provide informative, 
relevant, and effective programming for our clients. As we continue to receive responses from 
our community survey, the data obtained will aide in our decision process to provide effective 
programming options. County Social Service staff are currently working on a funding model for 
virtual programming for senior centers. This model will allow for reimbursement for virtual 
programming, however nothing at this time is definitive. I am working on a new look for the 
Senior Center page on the City website, making it more user friendly; the same is true for our 
social media presence. We will continue to update you as this progresses. 

As mentioned in March, I am working on a county-wide virtual 50th Wedding Anniversary. 
Typically hosted in person around September, due to our current circumstances we have to 
host this celebration virtually. As of today, Milwaukie, Canby, Molalla, Lake Oswego, Estacada, 
and Gladstone are participating in this first of its kind event. I’ve obtained funding from 
Clackamas County Social Services Department to cover almost 100% of the cost, with the 
remainder coming from sponsors and our Gladstone Seniors Foundation. The event will be 
filmed in the 3rd week of June with the celebration airing on tv and online 6/19/20 from 11am 
to 12:15pm. Participants will receive a free meal delivered by us and be able to watch the 
event, safe in their own home. Please feel free to watch as well, everyone is welcomed.  

As a reminder, some services continue at the Senior Center. To the extent we are 
allowed/authorized to do, we are providing some very limited transportation services for 
existing clients. As of today, this service has only been provided once. As Phase 1 continues, we 
will continue to operate our transportation program as we have, with very limited services. In 

6 - 30



2 | P a g e  
 

Phase 2 of the reopening process, it is our intent to provide the transportation services, again 
very limited, to our clients limiting rides to 2x a week (T, TH) with no more than 2 clients plus 
driver at a time (PPE guidelines will be required for staff and clients). As we all progress through 
the reopening process, this will be the guideline for when, how, and what programs we roll out. 
Staff continue to reach out daily to clients residing in Gladstone and outside of Gladstone. 
Programs & Services Coordinator and myself continue to participate in menu planning and 
county conference calls.  

I’d also like to take a moment and thank Two Girls Catering and Crossroads Coffee Café for their 
assistance providing fresh, tasty meals for our homebound clients. This was only possible 
thanks to the County for allowing us to do this and receive reimbursements for it. I felt this was 
an excellent opportunity to support local business and provide some needed joy for our clients. 
We will continue this trend until we are no longer reimbursed as it is not sustainable otherwise.  

As always, the Senior Center staff is ready to take on whatever is asked of us! Thank you for 
your hard work! Take care, be safe.  

Respectfully,  

 

Colin Black 

Senior Center Manager    

6 - 31



 

 GLADSTONE MUNICIPAL COURT FROM MAY 2020 
 

General Court Information from May 2020 
 

 96 violation filed  
 6 violations closed 
 9 misdemeanors filed  
 0 misdemeanors closed 
 47 cases were placed on a payment plan 
 0 warrants were issued 
 235 Payment reminders were mailed to defendants 
 0 driver’s licenses were requested suspended  
 0 cases were sent to collections 
 0 cases sent to Department of Revenue 
 0 Jury trial was held  
 $1,215.00 in violation fees assessed 
 $14,868.25 in violation fees paid 
 $0.00 in misdemeanor fees assessed 
 $4,876.56 in misdemeanor fees paid 
 $10,904.16 was collected by collections 
 $1,815.39 was collected by DOR 

  

 

Tr
af

fic
 Is

su
ed

 2
01

8 

Tr
af

fic
 Is

su
ed

 2
01

9 

Tr
af

fic
 Is

su
ed

 2
02

0 

Tr
af

fic
 D

isp
 2

01
8 

Tr
af

fic
 D

isp
 2

01
9 

Tr
af

fic
 D

isp
 2

02
0 

M
isd

. I
ss

ue
d 

20
18

 

M
isd

. I
ss

ue
d 

20
19

 

M
isd

. I
ss

ue
d 

20
20

 

M
isd

. D
isp

. 2
01

8 

M
isd

. D
isp

. 2
01

9 

M
isd

. D
isp

. 2
02

0 

Pa
rk

in
g 

20
18

 

Pa
rk

in
g 

20
19

 

Pa
rk

in
g 

20
20

 

Jan 116 122 66 187 174 63 31 19 14 34 17 10 10 4 4 
Feb 255 151 74 206 133 52 19 17 8 14 9 3 5 2 1 
Mar 218 78 41 178 95 40 8 17 3 14 17 0 11 5 6 
Apr 227 66 15 113 71 2 14 20 6 3 6 0 3 6 1 
May 174 58 96 30 37 6 8 19 9 11 13 0 6 2 1 
Jun 133 64  184 35  23 18  14 2  2 1  
Jul 168 103  93 76  17 16  6 10  14 7  
Aug 88 63  156 52  15 19  5 13  6 8  
Sep 170 69  44 60  17 11  8 16  4 3  
Oct 109 101  57 44  11 11  3 15  4 9  
Nov 55 50  90 72  14 17  8 13  4 7  
Dec 176 44  57 23  32 1  2 8  2 5  

 
 
 
 
 
 

6 - 32



 

 GLADSTONE MUNICIPAL COURT FROM MAY 2020 
 

 

 Viol. Fee assessed Viol. Fees Paid Misd. Fine Assessed Misd. Fees Paid 
Jan. 2018  $  82,695.26   $    31,475.75   $  41,340.50   $          11,583.12  
Jan. 2019  $  62,173.00   $    28,973.67   $  16,748.50   $          10,315.17  
Jan. 2020  $  15,262.31   $    12,033.23   $    8,068.00   $            9,339.58 
Feb. 2018  $  84,425.75   $    28,879.41   $  20,820.00   $          10,649.57  
Feb. 2019  $  33,666.05   $    24,608.32   $  10,875.25   $            9,955.57  
Feb. 2020  $  12,164.00  $    13,100.56  $    1,752.43  $            4,835.81 
Mar. 2018  $  36,815.08   $    42,146.18   $  14,588.00   $            9,977.53  
Mar. 2019  $  22,064.00   $    20,162.83   $  28,158.17   $            9,856.19  
Mar. 2020  $  10,352.00  $    13,679.23  $            0.00  $            4,128.28 
Apr. 2018  $  44,254.00   $    39,299.22   $  10,547.00   $            8,528.31  
Apr. 2019  $  16,306.00   $    30,546.05   $    7,019.95   $            8,667.79  
Apr. 2020  $        140.00  $    31,774.84  $           0.00  $            8,813.88 
May. 2018  $  38,926.00   $    34,218.09   $  11,427.50   $          13,873.70  
May. 2019  $  32,791.91   $    19,997.76   $    6,620.32   $            7,002.92  
May. 2020  $    1,215.00  $    14,868.25  $            0.00  $            8,813.88 
Jun. 2018  $  50,968.00   $    38,467.85   $  13,796.00   $          12,249.84  
Jun. 2019  $  18,497.75   $    18,540.84   $    5,178.05   $          12,325.76  
Jun. 2020     
Jul. 2018  $  33,509.79   $    27,625.22   $    3,172.00   $          12,793.70  
Jul. 2019  $  18,739.12   $    19,663.75   $  11,949.16   $            6,553.99  
Jul. 2020     
Aug. 2018  $  45,548.00   $    33,676.39   $  11,334.67   $          14,979.08  
Aug. 2019  $  10,945.79   $    14,700.39   $    8,637.73   $            5,527.01  
Aug. 2020     
Sept. 2018  $  20,374.00   $    26,286.79   $    4,206.75   $          10,884.78  
Sept. 2019  $  14,670.00   $    14,280.38   $  11,491.97   $          10,621.29  
Sept. 2020     
Oct. 2018  $  31,177.00   $    26,884.79   $    3,424.00   $          13,550.47  
Oct. 2019  $  13,528.00   $    19,153.57   $    9,066.34   $            7,588.17  
Oct. 2020     
Nov. 2018  $  36,566.53   $    24,234.34   $    4,728.25   $          14,619.54  
Nov. 2019  $  23,328.00   $    13,156.70   $    9,739.00   $            7,506.15  
Nov. 2020     
Dec. 2018  $  21,961.50   $    20,534.13   $        446.00   $            4,765.81  
Dec. 2019  $    5,495.00   $    23,002.35   $    5,908.47   $            4,987.86  
Dec. 2020     

 

6 - 33



 

City of Gladstone Monthly Report 
May 2020 

PUBLIC CONTACTS/PLANNING ACTIONS 

CUSTOMER CONTACT/ 
January February March 

 

April 
 

May 
YEAR 

TOTALS Planning Actions 

Customer Service 
Counter Contacts 

5 10 
 

1 
 

0 
 

0 16 

Customer phone/email 
43 66 

 

62 
 

34 
 

49 254 
Contacts 

Building Permits with 
Land Use Review 

5 4 
 

11 
 

3 
 

0 23 

Pre-application 
Conferences 

1 0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 1 

Administrative Decisions 2 1 1 0 0 4 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION ACTIONS/DECISIONS 

 Public Hearing May 19, 2020: 

O  Approved Z0018-20-D - 810 E Arlington renovation and site development  

O Approved Z0071-20-C – 18000 Webster Road Authorization of Similar Use and 

Conditional Use for renovation of building to house low income older adults  

CITY COUNCIL LAND USE ACTIONS/DECISIONS 

 None 

PRE-APPLICATION CONFERENCES 

 None 

ADMINISTRATIVE PERMITS 

 None 

  

6 - 34



Page 2 

 

BUILDING PERMITS WITH LAND USE REVIEW 

MAY – NONE 

 

FUTURE ITEMS/PROPERTY UPDATES 

 Location Topic 

18500 Webster Road Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Map amendment with Property Line 

Adjustment. 

525 Portland Ave Gladstone Municipal Code Amendment 

 

6 - 35





7



City of Gladstone 
Staff Report  

              
 
Report Date:  June 2, 2020   
Meeting Date:  June 9, 2020 
To:   Gladstone City Council 
From:   Jacque Betz, City Administrator 
    
 
AGENDA ITEM 
 
Gladstone Housing Code Audit Advisory Committee; Appointment of Michael Milch  
 
History/Background 
 
Per Resolution No. 1129, A Resolution Adopting Council Rules, Section R. Commissions, 
Boards, Committees, Organizations & Media it states the following; 
 

1. Citizen Appointment and Removal 
 
b. When creating an ad hoc committee or a vacancy occurs on an ad hoc committee, 
City staff and Council will make recommendations to the Mayor who will then appoint 
the chosen individuals with the consent of the council by a majority vote at a Council 
meeting. 

 
In March 2019 the City Council appointed a broad-based Advisory Committee to undertake an 
audit of the City’s Development Code as it pertains to housing.  DLCD funded the effort, which 
entailed retaining a planning consultant to perform the audit, the ultimate goal of which is to 
increase “the supply and affordability of housing” in Gladstone. 
 
As part of this work, the City was charged with forming an Advisory Committee to provide 
feedback on the Audit.  The intention is that the Committee include a broad variety of 
perspectives, both community members as well as from professionals (from a variety of public 
sector and private sector fields) who understand the challenges and opportunities associated 
with new housing development.  The Advisory Committee met twice – once in mid-March 2019 
to review and provide comment on the draft Code Audit; and again in late April 2019 to review 
revisions to the Audit and also to weigh in on feedback from the general public.   
 
The City also hosted a Community Open House on May 1, 2019 at the Senior Center with about 
30 attendees. Finally, the Planning Commission and City Council held a joint work session on 
May 23, 2019 to receive the audit report, consider input from the Advisory Committee and Open 
House and consider next steps. 
 
In January 2020 The City accepted another “technical assistance” grant from DLCD to complete 
the following tasks: 
 
Task 1- Draft Housing Needs Analysis 
Task 2 – Adoption ready Final Housing Needs Analysis  
Task 3-   Development of Community Engagement Strategy  
Task 4 -  Final Community Engagement Strategy 
 

7 - 1



7 - 2



8



City of Gladstone 
Staff Report  

              
 
Report Date:  May 28, 2020 
Meeting Date:  June 9, 2020 
To:   City Council  
From:   Cathy Brucker, Interim Finance Director 
 
AGENDA ITEM 
 
Consider approval of Resolution No. 1177, a resolution making a budget increase in the 2019-
2021 Biennial Budget for the 2019-2020 Fiscal Year, to acknowledge a donation from the 
Gladstone Senior Center Foundation to facilitate unforeseen repairs to the Senior Center roof. 
 
History/Background 
 
The City Council of the City of Gladstone, adopted Resolution No. 1162 for the 2019-2021 
biennium budget on June 11, 2019, in the amount of $53,760,620, followed by Resolution No. 
1164 on July 8, 2019 in the amount $191,620 for a total of $53,952,240. 
 
During the previous fiscal year, the City began a roof project on the Gladstone Senior Center.  
The project encountered many obstacles, causing it to be extended into the new fiscal year.  Also, 
additional funds were donated by the Gladstone Senior Center Foundation to allow completion of 
the revised scope.   
 
Proposal 
 
Due to the year-end timing issues, the grant resource and appropriation were not included 
in the adopted biennial budget for 2019-2021. 
 
Appropriation was available within the Facilities department to cover any and all costs 
associated with the emergency repairs, so the City was never out of budgetary 
compliance.  However, with the recognition of the resources provided by the Gladstone 
Senior Center Foundation, the original budget appropriation can be utilized as planned 
for other City facility improvements. 
 
In order to recognize the bequest of $45,000, the General Fund/Senior Center Bequests 
and Facilities Building Repairs will need to be increased by $45,000 for a total biennial 
budget of $53,997,240. 
 
This increase is permitted for specific purpose grants and gifts under the “unforeseen 
occurrence” provision of ORS 294.338(3). 
 
 
 
 
 

8 - 1



8 - 2



RESOLUTION NO. 1177 

CITY OF GLADSTONE, OREGON 

A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Gladstone, Oregon, making an 
increase in the 2019-2021 Biennial Budget for the 2019-2020 Fiscal Year 

 

WHEREAS, the Council of the City of Gladstone adopted Resolution No. 1162 for the 2019-2021 
Biennium Budget on June 11, 2019, in the amount of $53,760,620, and 

WHEREAS, on July 8th, 2019 the Council of the City of Gladstone adopted Resolution No. 1164 to increase 
the 2019-2021 Biennial Budget to $53,952,240 to include unanticipated grant funds, and 

WHEREAS, in the 2018-2019 fiscal year the City of Gladstone proceeded with repairs on the Senior Center 
building roof; however, weather-related damage severely impacted the scope, cost and 
completion of the project, and 

WHEREAS, additional funding was requested from the Gladstone Senior Center Foundation to ensure 
adequate roof construction, and  

WHEREAS, ORS 294.38(3) allows the increase by resolution of the resources and appropriations resulting 
from specific purpose grants and gifts, under the unforeseen occurrence provision, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the following amounts are added to the 2019-2021 
Biennial Budget to facilitate the completion of the Gladstone Senior Center Roofing project within the 
2019-2020 Fiscal Year, and will increase the 2019-2021 Biennial Budget to $53,997,240: 

                                Existing          Change   Adjusted 

General Fund 
Resources:   
     Senior Center Bequests $           - $45,000 $45,000 
Appropriations:  
     Building Repair $47,000 $45,000 $92,000 
 
Resolution No. 1177 is effective June 9, 2020. 

This Resolution is adopted by the Gladstone City Council and approved by the Mayor this 9th day of 
June, 2020. 

 
           ATTEST:  
 
 
_____________________________________              ______________________________________  
Tamara Stempel, Mayor           Tami Bannick, City Recorder 

8 - 3









9



9 - 1



9 - 2



9 - 3



9 - 4



9 - 5



9 - 6



9 - 7



9 - 8



9 - 9



9 - 10



9 - 11



9 - 12



9 - 13



9 - 14



9 - 15



9 - 16



9 - 17



9 - 18



9 - 19



9 - 20



9 - 21



9 - 22



9 - 23



9 - 24



9 - 25



9 - 26



9 - 27



9 - 28



9 - 29



9 - 30



9 - 31



9 - 32



9 - 33



9 - 34



9 - 35



9 - 36



9 - 37



9 - 38



9 - 39



9 - 40



9 - 41



9 - 42



9 - 43



9 - 44



9 - 45



9 - 46



9 - 47



9 - 48



9 - 49



9 - 50



9 - 51



9 - 52



9 - 53



9 - 54



9 - 55



9 - 56



9 - 57



9 - 58



9 - 59



9 - 60



9 - 61



9 - 62



9 - 63



9 - 64



9 - 65



9 - 66



9 - 67



9 - 68



9 - 69



9 - 70



9 - 71



9 - 72



9 - 73





10



10 - 1



P:\New Files\ORDINANCES\Ord.1500.Chapt12.18.Amend.PublicBldgs.doc 
 

 
ORDINANCE   1500    

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 12.18 OF THE GLADSTONE MUNICIPAL 
CODE AMENDING TITLE AND ADDING LANGUAGE PERTAINING TO ROLLER 

SKATING, SKATEBOARDING OR SMOKING IN PUBLIC BUILDINGS OR   
PUBLIC FACILITIES AND REAFFIRMING ALL REMAINING PROVISIONS OF THE 

GLADSTONE MUNICIPAL CODE. 
 
WHEREAS,  Chapter 12.18 of the Gladstone Municipal Code is currently titled “Roller Skates and 

Skateboards”; and  
 
WHEREAS, amend the title of Chapter 12.18 to read “Public Buildings and Facilities”; and 
 
WHEREAS, include the addition of language to prohibit roller skating, skateboarding and smoking in the 

parking lot or sidewalks of the Gladstone Civic Center, Senior Center, Public Works and Fire 
Departments and County Library; and 

 
WHEREAS, these restrictions would protect the safety of employees who work at these locations and all 

visitors who visit City facilities; and 
 
WHEREAS, the penalty of this violation would be reduced from a Class “C” infraction to a Class “D” 

infraction. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF GLADSTONE ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. The Gladstone City Council amends Chapter 12.18 of the Gladstone Municipal Code as 

described in Exhibit A, which is attached and incorporated by reference.  Additions to the code 
are underlined and deletions are shown as struck through.   

 
Section 2. All remaining provisions of Chapter 12.18 of the Gladstone Municipal Code are reaffirmed. 
 
Section 3. This Ordinance takes effect 30 days from its adoption. 
 
 
Approved by the Gladstone City Council this ________ day of _____________________, 2020 
 
 
       ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________________ _______________________________________ 
Tamara Stempel, Mayor     Tami Bannick 
 
 

10 - 2



ORDINANCE 1500 
Exhibit “A” 

 
 
The City of Gladstone ordains as follows:  

Chapter 12.18 
ROLLER SKATES AND SKATEBOARDS PUBLIC BUILDINGS AND FACILITIES 

Sections: 

12.18.010    Prohibited acts. 

12.18.020    Definitions. 

12.18.030    Confiscation. 

12.18.040    Penalty. 

12.18.010 Prohibited acts. 

(1) No person shall use a skateboard or roller skates in the parking lot or sidewalks of the Gladstone Civic 

Center, Senior Center, Public Works and Fire Departments or the City County Library. 

(2) No person shall use a skateboard or roller skates in or around the city park wading pool. 

(3) No person shall use a skateboard or roller skates on a city-owned tennis court. 

(4) No person shall in any parking lot or sidewalks of the Gladstone Civic Center, Senior Center, Public 

Works and Fire Departments or County Library smoke, aerosolize, or vaporize any substance. 

12.18.020 Definitions. 

“Skateboard” means a board of any material (natural or synthetic) with wheels affixed to the underside. 

12.18.030 Confiscation. 

Any employee of the police department who issues a citation for violation of this section is authorized to 

seize the skateboard or roller skates. Upon final disposition of the charge, the item so seized shall be 

returned to the person cited unless the court finds that a conviction for violation of this section is the second 

such violation, in which case, the item so seized shall be permanently confiscated and shall become the 

property of the police department and subject to destruction or other method of disposition selected by the 

department. Confiscation is in addition to any other penalty authorized by this section. 

12.18.040 Penalty. 

Any violation of this section is a Class “C” “D” infraction. 

 

10 - 3





11



 
City of Gladstone 

Staff Report  
              
 
Report Date:  May 29, 2020 
Meeting Date:  June 9, 2020 
To:   Gladstone City Council    
From:   Cathy Brucker, Interim Finance Director 
 
Note:  This item is the first in a series of actions.  If Council does not approve both readings of 
this Ordinance tonight, then it will be scheduled for a future meeting and item #12 will need to 
be removed from the agenda. 
 
AGENDA ITEM 
 
Amending Title 13 of the Gladstone Municipal Code, removing Water, Sewer and Storm Water 
utility rate discounts and incorporating those guidelines by reference to the Master Fee Schedule. 
 
History/Background 
 
The City has offered a low income utility billing assistance program for many years, based on the 
framework utilized by our partners in wastewater collection and treatment, Water 
Environmental Services (WES).  On May 12, 2020, staff requested City Council to review a 
comparison of programs from surrounding cities and provide direction on some changes to the 
current program. 
 
Along with changes to the structure of the program, it was determined to move details out of the 
Municipal Code, and reference the program to the Master Fees & Charges policy, as initiated 
back in September 2017 with utility rates.  Again, providing a singular point of update continues 
the efficiencies and accuracy that can be compromised with multiple documents.   
 
Proposal  
 
Staff recommends removing the actual details of the utility rate discounts from the City of 
Gladstone Municipal Code of Ordinances, and instead providing them on the City’s Master Fee 
Schedule.  The Municipal Code will refer to the Master Fee Schedule for rate discounts. 
 
Options 
 
1.  Approve ordinance to remove utility rate discounts from the Gladstone Municipal Code and 

instead provide those discounts in the code by reference to the Master Fee Schedule. 
2. Do not approve ordinance to remove utility rate discounts from the Gladstone Municipal 

Code. 
 
 
 

11 - 1



11 - 2



P:\New Files\ORDINANCES\ORD.1501.UtilityRateDiscountRemoval.docx 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 1501 
CITY OF GLADSTONE, OREGON 

 
An Ordinance Amending Title 13 of the Gladstone Municipal Code, removing Water, 
Sewer and Storm Water utility rate discounts and incorporating those guidelines by 

reference to the Master Fee Schedule. 
  

WHEREAS, The Gladstone City Council is authorized by the Gladstone Municipal Code to adopt 
certain fees; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council recognizes that utility rate fees are subject to adjustment for 

qualifying low income residents; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council desires to base qualification on the Housing and Urban 

Development (HUD) Income Limits, Very Low Income Level as annually adjusted 
for the Portland-Vancouver-Hillsboro, OR-WA MSA; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council desires to create efficiencies within the City processes, by 

eliminating dual low income qualification guidelines; and  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council desires to remove utility rate low income discounts from the 

Gladstone Municipal Code and instead include said guidelines into the Gladstone 
Municipal Code by reference to the Master Fee Schedule. 

  
NOW, THEREFORE, The City of Gladstone ordains as follows: 
 
Section 1. The Gladstone City Council amends Chapter 13.12.140 of the Gladstone Municipal 

Code as described in Exhibit A, which is attached and incorporated by reference.  
Additions to the code are underlined and deletions are shown as struck through.   

 
Section 2. All remaining provisions of Chapter 13.12 of the Gladstone Municipal Code are 

reaffirmed. 
 
Section 3. This Ordinance takes effect 30 days from its adoption. 
 
This Ordinance adopted by the Gladstone City Council and approved by the Mayor this 9th day of 
June, 2020. 
 

 ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________               ___________________________________ 
Tamara Stempel, Mayor                    Tami Bannick 

11 - 3



P:\New Files\ORDINANCES\ORD.1501.ExhibitA.docx 

 

ORDINANCE 1501  
EXHIBIT “A” 

 
13.12.140 Charges determined for Clackamas County Service District No. 1,  Tri-City Service 

District Water Environment Services and Oak Lodge Water Services District. 
 

(1) Charges for sanitary sewer treatment, and if applicable, sewer collection purchased from treatment 
providers Clackamas County Service District No. 1,  Tri-City Service District, Water Environment 
Services and Oak Lodge Water Services District or serviced thereby, shall be set and charged 
pursuant to a rate structure determined by the city and said district.  These costs are passed along 
as a charge to the City’s sanitary sewer customers via the City’s utility bill. Any adjustments in the 
rates charged to the City by these providers shall be contemporaneously passed along to the City’s 
sanitary sewer customers and reflected in the next subsequent City utility bill.    

 
(2) An additional fee for each equivalent dwelling unit, as specified in a Master Fee Schedule 

Resolution shall be added to each bill or billings  to defray administrative billing,  and the sewer 

collection maintenance and repair expenses incurred by the city. 

 
(3) In determining the number of equivalent dwelling units per billing for the additional charge 

assessed by the City, the unit rate structure of the District serving the property shall control.  
Equivalent dwelling unit is calculated at one unit for a single family dwelling and varies for other 
classes of service as defined in Table 1 of the Tri-City Rules and Regulations adopted by the 
Clackamas County Commissioners on May 19, 1994. 

 
(4) Except within those areas of the city presently served by Oak Lodge Sanitary District, and not 

withstanding any other provisions of this chapter, the following charge provision shall apply to low 
income users: 
(a) The monthly user charge for sanitary sewer service provided to the principal resident or 
family having a maximum income under the qualifying income limits shall be fifty percent (50%) 
of the monthly user charge for sanitary sewer service.  On July 1st of each year, the qualifying limits 
shall be set at one hundred eighty-five percent (185%) of the most recently published poverty 
guidelines in the Federal Register by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services under 
authority of 42 U.S.C. 9902(2), and shall remain in force until the next July 1st.  The qualifying 
income limit for a single person household shall be based on the federal poverty guidelines for a 
one-person household.  The qualifying income limit for a family shall be based on the federal 
poverty guidelines for a two-person household.  In order to be eligible for the reduced sewer charge, 
the qualified person must be the person to whom the monthly user change is billed and must have 
completed and filed with the city an application for the reduced rates on a form supplied by the city.  
 

(4) Low income qualification will be set forth in the City’s Master Fees Schedule, updated 

annually on July 1 of each year. 

 

11 - 4



12



City of Gladstone 
Staff Report  

              
Report Date:  June 2, 2020   
Meeting Date: June 9, 2020 
To:   City Council 
From:  Jim Whynot, Public Works Director and Cathy Brucker, Finance Director  
         
AGENDA ITEM 
 
Approval of Resolution No. 1178, a resolution repealing Resolution No. 1172 and adopting a new revised 
Master Fee Schedule. 
 
HISTORY/BACKGROUND: 
 
Oak Lodge Water Services Sewer Charge (pass-through) is increasing by 0.5% and the Water 
Environment Services Charge (pass-through) is increasing by 5%. 
 
The City was advised by North Clackamas County Water Commission (NCCWC) that effective July 1, 
2020 wholesale water rates (pass-through) will be decreased by 1.64%, from $0.7486 to $0.7363 cost per 
hundred cubic feet of water (CCF) 748 gallons.    
 
The City is including System Development Charges (SDC’s) to the master fee schedule to make the 
charges more transparent.  The charges are increased annually based on the ENR-CCI (Engineering News 
Record Construction Cost Index) for Seattle per the City’s SDC Methodology Reports and ORS 223.304.  
(This year’s increase is 1%, May 2019-May 2020).  
 
The City has historically furnished the actual charges for low income users in our Municipal Code.  
Providing the low income user charges in the Master Fee Schedule mitigates the risk created by providing 
multiple information in two sources. Providing a singular Master Fee Schedule also creates procedural 
efficiencies by eliminating the staff time required to update the Municipal Code each time the low income 
user charges are revised.  The low income user charges in the Gladstone Municipal Code will remain 
current simply by referencing the updated Master Fee Schedule. Exhibit B details information about the 
program.  
 
The Fire Department is proposing an increase to their fire incident and investigation reports.  This fee 
increase is based on comparison to our public records request hourly rate.  To pull and redact a report 
takes about 30 minutes at an approximate hourly rate of $40/hour.   
 
Library fees will be removed due to the transfer of the Library to Clackamas County. 
 
The City of Gladstone Master Fee Schedule is historically updated when rates are revised, so as to reflect 
the current rates and provide the public with accurate and timely information. 
 
 
 

12 - 1



12 - 2



 

 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 1178 
CITY OF GLADSTONE, OREGON 

 
 

A Resolution Adopting a Revised Master Fee Schedule  
   
 
WHEREAS, The Gladstone City Council is authorized by the Gladstone Municipal Code to adopt 

certain fees; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council desires to adopt an updated Master Fee Schedule reflecting periodic 

updates; and 
 
WHEREAS, Updates to a Water Environment Services (WES) utility rate charges (pass-through) is 

increasing by 5% increasing their monthly charge by $.84, from $25.36 per equivalent 
dwelling unit (EDU) to $26.20 per EDU.  

 
WHEREAS, Updates to the Oak Lodge Water Services Sewer Charge (pass-through) is increasing by 

0.5% increasing their monthly charge by $0.28, from $55.19 per equivalent dwelling unit 
(EDU) to $55.47 per EDU. 

 
WHEREAS, The City was advised by North Clackamas County Water Commission (NCCWC) that 

effective July 1, 2020 wholesale water rates (pass-through) will be decreased by 1.64%, 
from $0.7486 to $0.7363 cost per hundred cubic feet of water (CCF) 748 gallons. 

 
WHEREAS, The City is including System Development Charges (SDC’s) to the master fee schedule 

to make the charges more transparent.  The charges are increased annually based on the 
ENR-CCI (Engineering News Record Construction Cost Index) for Seattle per the City’s 
SDC Methodology Reports and ORS 223.304.  (This year’s increase is 1%, May 2019-
May 2020).  

 
WHEREAS, The City has historically furnished the actual charges for low income users in our 

Municipal Code.  Providing the low income user charges in the Master Fee Schedule 
mitigates the risk created by providing multiple information in two sources. Providing 
a singular Master Fee Schedule also creates procedural efficiencies by eliminating the 
staff time required to update the Municipal Code each time the low income user charges 
are revised.  The low income user charges in the Gladstone Municipal Code will remain 
current simply by referencing the updated Master Fee Schedule.  Exhibit B details 
information on the program. 

 
WHEREAS, The Fire Department is proposing an increase to their fire incident and investigation 

reports.  This fee increase is based on comparison to our public records request hourly 
rate.  To pull and redact a report takes about 30 minutes at an approximate hourly rate 
of $40/hour.   

 
WHEREAS, Library fees will be removed due to the transfer of the Library to Clackamas County. 
 
 
 

12 - 3



 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Gladstone, a 
municipal corporation of the State of Oregon, the following: 

 
 The City of Gladstone repeals the Master Fee Schedule adopted under Resolution 1172 

and replaces it by adopting the Revised Master Fee Schedule, as set forth in the attached 
Exhibit A. Changes/additions are noted in highlight and deletions are noted in 
strikethrough and amends the Low Income Utility Assistance Program attached as Exhibit 
B.   

 
This Resolution is effective July 1, 2020. 
 
This Resolution adopted by the Gladstone City Council and approved by the Mayor this         day of 
_________, 2020. 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________         ___________________________________ 
Tamara Stempel, Mayor                       Tami Bannick 

12 - 4



Ad
op

te
d 

Bu
dg

et
45

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

Bl
as

tin
g 

Pe
rm

it 
Fe

e 
5,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
Bl

as
tin

g 
Pe

rm
it 

In
sp

ec
tio

ns
 e

ac
h 

(a
fte

r f
irs

t t
w

o 
in

sp
ec

tio
ns

)
2,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
Bu

sin
es

s L
ice

ns
e 

Ba
se

 F
ee

 
10

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
Bu

sin
es

s L
ice

ns
e 

Co
m

m
en

cin
g 

Ju
ly

-D
ec

em
be

r 
50

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

Bu
sin

es
s L

ice
ns

e 
fe

e 
pe

r e
m

pl
oy

ee
 o

ve
r 3

 F
TE

's
5.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Bu

sin
es

s L
ice

ns
e 

fo
r R

en
ta

l P
ro

pe
rt

y 
in

 G
la

ds
to

ne
 - 

ba
se

 fe
e 

pl
us

 ti
er

ed
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

be
lo

w
10

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

   
   

   
   

1 
re

nt
al

 u
ni

t
25

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

   
   

   
   

   
2 

- 5
 re

nt
al

 u
ni

ts
50

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

   
   

   
   

   
6 

- 1
2 

re
nt

al
 u

ni
ts

75
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
   

   
   

   
   

13
+ 

re
nt

al
 u

ni
ts

10
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

Bu
sin

es
s L

ice
ns

e 
Pa

st
 D

ue
 F

ee
 p

er
 m

on
th

10
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
El

ec
tr

on
ic 

Co
py

 o
f a

 R
ec

or
de

d 
M

ee
tin

g 
20

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

Ho
m

e 
Oc

cu
pa

tio
n 

- I
nt

ia
l A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
Fe

e
50

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

Liq
uo

r L
ice

ns
e 

Re
vi

ew
   

   
 O

rig
in

al
 A

pp
lic

at
io

n
10

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

   
 C

ha
ng

e 
in

 o
w

ne
rs

hi
p,

 lo
ca

tio
n,

 o
r p

riv
ile

ge
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

   
   

 R
en

ew
al

 o
r t

em
po

ra
ry

 a
pp

lic
at

io
n

35
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
Lie

n 
Se

ar
ch

30
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
No

ta
ry

 F
ee

 (N
on

-R
es

id
en

t)
10

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

No
ta

ry
 F

ee
 (R

es
id

en
t)

5.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

NS
F 

Ch
ec

k 
Ch

ar
ge

35
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
Pa

rk
in

g 
Pe

rm
its

25
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
Pe

na
lty

 fo
r w

or
k 

co
m

m
en

cin
g 

be
fo

re
 a

pp
lic

at
io

n 
ap

pr
ov

al
In

ve
st

ig
at

io
n 

fe
e 

eq
ua

l t
o 

pe
rm

it 
fe

e
Ph

ot
oc

op
ie

s B
&

W
 u

p 
to

 8
 x 

14
0.

25
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Po

st
ag

e 
an

d 
Ha

nd
lin

g 
Fl

at
 F

ee
 +

 a
ct

ua
l c

os
t o

f p
os

ta
ge

1.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

Pu
bl

ic 
Re

co
rd

s A
dm

in
ist

ra
tiv

e 
Re

se
ar

ch
 p

er
 h

ou
r (

qu
ar

te
r h

ou
r i

nc
re

m
en

t c
ha

rg
e)

Ba
se

d 
on

 h
ou

rly
 ra

te
Pu

bl
ic 

Re
co

rd
s C

le
ric

al
 R

es
ea

rc
h 

pe
r h

ou
r (

qu
ar

te
r h

ou
r i

nc
re

m
en

t c
ha

rg
e)

Ba
se

d 
on

 h
ou

rly
 ra

te
Pu

bl
ic 

Re
co

rd
s L

eg
al

 R
es

ea
rc

h 
pe

r h
ou

r (
qu

ar
te

r h
ou

r i
nc

re
m

en
t c

ha
rg

e)
Ba

se
d 

on
 h

ou
rly

 ra
te

Re
so

lu
tio

n 
11

78
  -

 E
xh

ib
it 

"A
"

Ci
ty

 o
f G

la
ds

to
ne

 M
as

te
r F

ee
 S

ch
ed

ul
e 

  E
ffe

ct
iv

e 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

0

AD
M

IN
IS

TR
AT

IO
N

EX
HI

BI
T 

A 
M

as
te

r F
ee

 S
ch

ed
ul

e 
Pa

ge
 1

12 - 5



Pu
bl

ic 
Re

co
rd

s R
eq

ue
st

 D
ep

os
it 

(la
rg

e)
 to

w
ar

d 
ho

ur
ly

 ra
te

10
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

Pu
bl

ic 
Re

co
rd

s R
eq

ue
st

 D
ep

os
it 

(s
m

al
l) 

to
w

ar
d 

ho
ur

ly
 ra

te
25

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

Re
tu

rn
ed

 C
he

ck
 C

ha
rg

e/
pr

oc
es

sin
g

35
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
Ro

ad
 R

e-
na

m
in

g
15

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
Sp

ec
ia

l E
ve

nt
 A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
(p

lu
s a

ct
ua

l s
ta

ff 
co

st
s f

or
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s s
pe

cif
ica

lly
10

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 n

ee
de

d 
to

 w
or

k 
th

e 
ev

en
t a

nd
 b

ar
ric

ad
e 

fe
es

 if
 n

ee
de

d)
 

 

Fi
re

 Lo
g 

Re
po

rt
   

Fi
re

 a
nd

 E
M

S 
In

cid
en

t R
ep

or
t

15
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 $

20
.0

0
Fi

re
 In

ve
st

ig
at

io
n 

Re
po

rt
$2

0.
00

Fi
re

 In
ve

st
ig

at
io

n 
Ph

ot
os

$1
0.

00

An
nu

al
 O

ut
-o

f-D
ist

ric
t R

es
id

en
t L

ib
ra

ry
 C

ar
d

95
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
Da

m
ag

ed
 It

em
s

Re
pl

ac
em

en
t C

os
t

La
te

 C
ha

rg
e 

(p
er

 d
ay

); 
M

ax
im

um
 p

er
 it

em
: $

3 
ch

ild
re

n/
$5

 a
du

lt
0.

25
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Lo

st
 C

ul
tu

ra
l P

as
s (

va
rie

s f
ro

m
 $

15
.0

0-
$2

00
.0

0)
Re

pl
ac

em
en

t C
os

t
Lo

st
 It

em
s

Re
pl

ac
em

en
t C

os
t

Lo
st

 Li
br

ar
y 

Ca
rd

1.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

Ph
ot

oc
op

ie
s (

fir
st

 tw
o 

pa
ge

s o
f n

on
-c

irc
ul

at
in

g 
m

at
er

ia
ls 

ar
e 

fre
e)

   
   

 B
la

ck
 a

nd
 W

hi
te

 C
op

es
 (p

er
 p

ag
e)

0.
10

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

    
   C

ol
or

 C
op

ie
s (

pe
r p

ag
e)

0.
40

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

M
iss

in
g/

Da
m

ag
ed

 P
ar

t (
Ba

rc
od

e 
Re

pl
ac

em
en

t, 
CD

 B
oo

kl
et

 o
r M

iss
in

g 
Ar

tw
or

k,
 C

D 
Ca

se
, 

2.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

So
ftb

al
l/B

as
eb

al
l T

ou
rn

am
en

ts
 (p

er
 d

ay
/p

er
 fi

el
d)

55
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
So

ftb
al

l/B
as

eb
al

l N
on

-G
la

ds
to

ne
 Le

ag
ue

s O
nl

y 
(p

er
 te

am
)

27
.5

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 (p

er
 fi

el
d)

11
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
So

ftb
al

l/B
as

eb
al

l P
icn

ic 
Us

e 
(p

er
 d

ay
/p

er
 fi

el
d)

11
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
So

cc
er

 F
ie

ld
 R

es
er

va
tio

n 
(p

er
 d

ay
/p

er
 fi

el
d)

44
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
So

cc
er

 Le
ag

ue
 P

la
y 

fo
r G

la
ds

to
ne

 R
es

id
en

ts
 (p

er
 te

am
/p

er
 fi

el
d)

5.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

So
cc

er
 Le

ag
ue

 P
la

y 
fo

r N
on

-G
la

ds
to

ne
 R

es
id

en
ts

 (p
er

 te
am

/p
er

 fi
el

d)
20

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

PA
RK

S 
AN

D 
RE

CR
EA

TI
ON

FI
RE

LI
BR

AR
Y

EX
HI

BI
T 

A 
M

as
te

r F
ee

 S
ch

ed
ul

e 
Pa

ge
 2

12 - 6



Th
e 

Ci
ty

 o
f G

la
ds

to
ne

 co
nt

ra
ct

s w
ith

 C
la

ck
am

as
 C

ou
nt

y 
fo

r p
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
bu

ild
in

g
   

   
 se

rv
ice

s, 
fe

es
 fo

r t
ho

se
 a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 se

rv
ice

s a
re

 se
t b

y 
th

e 
Co

un
ty

A-
Fr

am
e 

Si
gn

 P
er

m
it 

 (i
ni

tia
l a

pp
lic

at
io

n 
fe

e)
10

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
Ad

dr
es

s R
ec

or
d 

Pr
in

t (
pe

r a
dd

re
ss

)
5.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Al

ar
m

 P
er

m
it 

   
   

 In
iti

al
 P

er
m

it 
or

 R
en

ew
al

25
.0

0
   

   
 La

te
 F

ee
 (a

fte
r 3

0 
da

ys
 e

xp
ira

tio
n 

or
 in

st
al

la
tio

n)
25

.0
0

   
   

 S
ec

on
d 

Fa
lse

 A
la

rm
 (w

ith
in

 p
er

m
it 

ye
ar

)
50

.0
0

   
   

 T
hi

rd
 F

al
se

 A
la

rm
 (w

ith
in

 p
er

m
it 

ye
ar

)
10

0.
00

   
   

 F
ou

rt
h 

an
d 

Ea
ch

 S
ub

se
qu

en
t A

la
rm

 (w
ith

in
 p

er
m

it 
ye

ar
)

15
0.

00
   

   
 F

ai
lu

re
 to

 o
bt

ai
n 

Al
ar

m
 P

er
m

it
90

.0
0

An
im

al
 P

er
m

it 
Ap

pl
ica

tio
n 

(p
er

 y
ea

r) 
25

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

Bl
oc

k 
Pa

rt
y

35
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
CD

's 
in

clu
di

ng
 p

ho
to

s/
vi

de
os

25
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
ID

 T
he

ft
Vi

ct
im

 F
re

e
Lo

ca
l H

ist
or

y 
Pr

in
to

ut
 (p

er
 re

co
rd

)
5.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
No

ise
 v

ar
ia

nc
e

75
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
Nu

sia
nc

e 
Pr

op
er

ty
 A

ba
te

m
en

t
Ac

tu
al

 C
os

t 
Po

lic
e 

Re
po

rt
 - 

No
 C

ha
rg

e 
fo

r V
ict

im
s

0.
00

Po
lic

e 
Re

po
rt

 (f
irs

t 2
 p

ag
es

) 
15

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

Po
lic

e 
Re

po
rt

 (p
ag

e 
3 

an
d 

ov
er

) e
ac

h 
pa

ge
1.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Te

m
po

ra
ry

/P
or

ta
bl

e 
St

or
ag

e 
Co

nt
ai

ne
r

50
.0

0
Ve

hi
cle

 Im
po

un
d 

(a
fte

r b
us

in
es

s h
ou

rs
)

12
5.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

Ve
hi

cle
 Im

po
un

d 
(d

ur
in

g 
re

gu
la

r b
us

in
es

s h
ou

rs
)

10
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

Te
ch

ni
ca

l P
la

n 
Re

vi
ew

-D
ev

el
op

m
en

t E
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

Fe
e

    
    

    
    

  R
ev

ie
w

  $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2.
5%

 o
f t

he
 co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
co

st
   

   
   

   
   

   
In

sp
ec

tio
n

  $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2.
5%

 o
f t

he
 co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
co

st
Ba

rr
ica

de
 D

el
iv

er
y 

an
d 

Pi
ck

up
 F

ee
50

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

Dy
e 

Te
st

 R
es

id
en

tia
l/C

om
m

er
cia

l
10

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

PL
AN

NI
NG

 A
ND

 B
UI

LD
IN

G

PO
LIC

E 

PU
BL

IC
 W

OR
KS

EX
HI

BI
T 

A 
M

as
te

r F
ee

 S
ch

ed
ul

e 
Pa

ge
 3

12 - 7



Er
os

io
n 

Co
nt

ro
l V

io
la

tio
n 

 
30

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
Hy

dr
an

t H
oo

k-
Up

 P
er

m
it 

Fe
e 

(p
lu

s w
at

er
 u

sa
ga

e 
co

st
)

50
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
Re

gi
st

ra
tio

n 
Fe

e
50

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

St
re

et
 O

pe
ni

ng
 In

sp
ec

tio
n 

Fe
e

85
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
St

re
et

 O
pe

ni
ng

 P
er

m
it 

Fe
e

15
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

St
re

et
 O

pe
ni

ng
 R

e-
In

sp
ec

tio
n 

Fe
e 

(if
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

)  
85

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

Sy
st

em
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t C

ha
rg

es
 (S

DC
's)

1%
 in

cr
ea

se
$3

,7
06

 p
er

 (E
DU

) e
qu

iv
al

en
t d

w
el

lin
g 

un
it

3,
74

3
$ 

   
   

 
  *

 W
at

er
:

3/
4"

 m
et

er
 - 

 $
7,

84
7 

7,
92

5
$ 

   
   

 
1"

 m
et

er
 - 

$1
3,

00
5

13
,1

35
$ 

   
  

1 
1/

2"
 m

et
er

 - 
$2

6,
13

2
26

,3
93

$ 
   

  
2"

 m
et

er
 - 

$4
1,

82
8

42
,2

46
$ 

   
  

3"
 m

et
er

 - 
$8

3,
73

3
84

,5
70

$ 
   

  
4"

 m
et

er
 - 

$1
30

,8
19

13
2,

12
7

$ 
  

6"
 m

et
er

 - 
$2

61
,5

59
26

4,
17

5
$ 

  
  *

 S
ew

er
 C

ol
le

ct
io

n 
(C

ity
 S

ys
te

m
)

$5
,6

38
 p

er
 (E

DU
) e

qu
iv

al
en

t d
w

el
lin

g 
un

it
5,

69
4

$ 
   

   
 

  *
 S

ew
er

 T
re

at
m

en
t p

ro
vi

de
d 

by
 o

th
er

s (
pa

ss
-th

ro
ug

h)
 to

 O
ak

 Lo
dg

e 
W

at
er

 S
er

vi
ce

s o
r 

Tr
i-C

ity
 (W

ES
) b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

in
di

vi
du

al
 d

ist
ric

t r
at

es
 th

at
 th

e 
pr

op
er

ty
 is

 se
rv

ed
 b

y.

  *
 P

ar
ks

 $
7,

83
6 

pe
r (

RP
E)

 re
sid

en
tia

l p
op

ul
at

io
n 

eq
ui

va
le

nt
 

7,
91

4
$ 

   
   

 
  *

 S
to

rm
w

at
er

$3
,0

19
 p

er
 (E

DU
) e

qu
iv

al
en

t d
w

el
lin

g 
un

it
3,

04
9

$ 
   

   
 

Bu
ild

in
g 

Re
nt

al
 (p

er
 h

ou
r) 

Gr
ou

p 
1:

 C
ity

 o
f G

la
ds

to
ne

 R
es

id
en

ts
.

Pl
an

to
n 

Ro
om

-$
40

.0
0 

an
d 

Bl
oy

e 
Ha

ll-
$4

5.
00

Bu
ild

in
g 

Re
nt

al
 (p

er
 h

ou
r) 

Gr
ou

p 
2:

 P
riv

at
e 

Pa
rt

ie
s, 

in
di

vi
du

al
s, 

gr
ou

ps
, a

nd
  n

on
-p

ro
fit

s.
Pl

an
to

n 
Ro

om
-$

45
.0

0 
an

d 
Bl

oy
e 

Ha
ll-

$5
5.

00
Bu

ild
in

g 
Re

nt
al

 (p
er

 h
ou

r)G
ro

up
 3

: C
om

m
er

cia
l, 

fo
r-p

ro
fit

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l g
ro

up
s. 

Pl
an

to
n 

Ro
om

-$
50

.0
0 

an
d 

Bl
oy

e 
Ha

ll-
$7

5.
00

Ki
tc

he
n 

Fe
e 

50
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
M

ea
l u

nd
er

 6
0 

ye
ar

s
4.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
M

ea
l (

su
gg

es
te

d 
do

na
tio

n)
 o

ve
r 6

0 
ye

ar
s

3.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

Fa
x (

pe
r p

ag
e 

- s
ta

ff 
on

ly
)

1.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

Ph
ot

oc
op

y 
(p

er
 p

ag
e)

0.
25

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

Va
n 

Do
na

tio
n 

(s
ug

ge
st

ed
 d

on
at

io
n)

 e
ac

h 
w

ay
1.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

SE
NI

OR
 C

EN
TE

R

EX
HI

BI
T 

A 
M

as
te

r F
ee

 S
ch

ed
ul

e 
Pa

ge
 4

12 - 8



Fr
id

ay
 E

xc
ur

sio
ns

 ($
7-

$2
5)

va
rie

s
Bi

lli
ar

ds
 R

oo
m

 (s
ug

ge
st

ed
 d

on
at

io
n 

of
 p

er
 g

am
e 

pl
ay

ed
)

0.
25

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

No
ta

ry
 F

ee
- C

la
ck

am
as

 C
ou

nt
y 

re
sid

en
t a

ge
 6

0 
or

 o
ld

er
 F

re
e 

No
ta

ry
 F

ee
- G

la
ds

to
ne

 R
es

id
en

t 
$5

.0
0

No
ta

ry
 F

ee
- N

on
 R

es
id

en
t- 

Cl
ac

ka
m

as
 C

ou
nt

y 
$1

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
RI

GH
T-

OF
-W

AY
 (R

OW
) R

AT
ES

Fr
an

ch
ise

 A
dm

in
ist

ra
tiv

e 
Re

vi
ew

5,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

RO
W

 Li
ce

ns
e 

Ap
pl

ica
tio

n 
Fe

e 
(E

xc
lu

di
ng

 S
m

al
l C

el
l W

ire
le

ss
 F

ac
ili

tie
s *

**
*)

50
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
RO

W
 Li

ce
ns

e 
Fe

e 
(fi

ve
 y

ea
r t

er
m

), 
(E

xc
ul

di
ng

 S
m

al
l C

el
l W

ire
le

ss
 F

ac
ili

tie
s)

 
25

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

RO
W

 U
se

 F
ee

 (E
xc

lu
di

ng
 S

m
al

l C
el

l W
ire

le
ss

 F
ac

ili
tie

s)
5%

 o
f g

ro
ss

 re
ve

nu
es

**
 o

r M
in

im
um

 A
nn

ua
l 

Ri
gh

t-o
f-W

ay
 U

se
 F

ee
, w

hi
ch

ev
er

 is
 g

re
at

er
.

M
in

im
um

 A
nn

ua
l R

ig
ht

-o
f-W

ay
 U

se
 F

ee
 *

**
   

   
   

   
   

TO
TA

L L
IN

EA
R 

FE
ET

 O
F 

UT
IL

IT
Y 

FA
CI

LI
TI

ES
 IN

 R
IG

HT
-O

F-
W

AY
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 U

p 
to

 5
,0

00
$5

,6
28

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 5
,0

01
 to

 1
0,

00
0

$8
,4

42
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 1

0,
00

1 
to

 2
0,

00
0

$1
1,

25
5.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 M

or
e 

th
an

 2
0,

00
0

$1
6,

88
3.

00
RO

W
 A

tt
ac

hm
en

t F
ee

 (E
xc

ul
di

ng
 S

m
al

l C
el

l W
ire

le
ss

 F
ac

ilt
ie

s)
 

$5
,1

50

RO
W

 A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

fe
e 

fo
r S

m
al

l C
el

l W
ire

le
ss

 F
ac

ili
tie

s (
1-

5 
sit

es
)

50
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  E
ac

h 
ad

di
tio

na
l S

ite
10

0.
00

Sm
al

l C
el

l W
ire

le
ss

 F
ac

ili
ty

 A
tt

ac
hm

en
t F

ee
27

0.
00

   
  S

EW
ER

 R
AT

ES
 

Se
w

er
 In

sp
ec

tio
n 

Fe
e,

 e
xc

ep
t m

ob
ile

 h
om

es
, m

ot
or

 h
om

es
 a

nd
 tr

av
el

 tr
ai

le
rs

10
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

Se
w

er
 In

se
pc

tio
n 

Fe
e 

fo
r m

ob
ile

 h
om

es
, m

ot
or

 h
om

es
, a

nd
 tr

av
el

 tr
ai

le
rs

50
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
Oa

k 
Lo

dg
e 

W
at

er
 S

er
vi

ce
s S

ew
er

 C
ha

rg
e 

(P
as

s-
th

ro
ug

h)
**

**
*

$5
5.

19
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

$5
5.

47
 p

er
 m

on
th

 p
er

 E
DU

*
W

at
er

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
t S

er
vi

ce
s (

W
ES

) S
ew

er
 T

re
at

m
en

t C
ha

rg
e 

(P
as

s-
th

ro
ug

h)
**

**
*

$2
5.

36
   

   
   

   
   

  $
26

.2
0 

pe
r m

on
th

 p
er

 E
DU

*
Ci

ty
 o

f G
la

ds
to

ne
 S

an
ita

ry
 S

ew
er

 C
ol

le
ct

io
n 

Ch
ar

ge
  

$2
0.

16
 p

er
 m

on
th

 p
er

 E
DU

*
Lo

w
 In

co
m

e 
Ra

te
 R

ed
uc

tio
n 

- a
dj

us
te

d 
an

nu
al

ly
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

HU
D 

Ve
ry

 Lo
w

 In
co

m
e

Lim
its

 fo
r P

or
tla

nd
-V

an
co

uv
er

-H
ill

sb
or

o,
 O

R-
W

A 
M

SA
(5

0%
) r

ed
uc

tio
n 

of
 b

as
e 

ra
te

s l
ist

ed
 a

bo
ve

UT
ILI

TY
 B

ILL
IN

G 
RA

TE
S 

&
 U

TI
LIT

Y 
RI

GH
T 

OF
 W

AY
 R

AT
ES

EX
HI

BI
T 

A 
M

as
te

r F
ee

 S
ch

ed
ul

e 
Pa

ge
 5

12 - 9



    
 S

TO
RM

W
AT

ER
 R

AT
ES

Re
sid

en
tia

l S
to

rm
w

at
er

 F
ee

 p
er

 E
DU

* 
ea

ch
 m

on
th

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  (

Cl
as

s 0
01

 a
cc

ou
nt

s)
$1

1.
00

Lo
w

 In
co

m
e 

Ra
te

 R
ed

uc
tio

n 
- a

dj
us

te
d 

an
nu

al
ly

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
HU

D 
Ve

ry
 Lo

w
 In

co
m

e
Lim

its
 fo

r P
or

tla
nd

-V
an

co
uv

er
-H

ill
sb

or
o,

 O
R-

W
A 

M
SA

(5
0%

) r
ed

uc
tio

n 
of

 b
as

e 
ra

te
s l

ist
ed

 a
bo

ve
No

n-
Si

ng
le

 F
am

ily
 R

es
id

en
tia

l S
to

rm
w

at
er

 F
ee

 (P
er

 3
,0

00
 sq

ua
re

 fe
et

 o
f i

m
pe

rv
io

us
 a

re
a 

ea
ch

 m
on

th
)

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  (

Cl
as

s 0
02

 a
nd

 0
03

 a
cc

ou
nt

s)
$1

1.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 (I
m

pe
rv

io
us

 a
re

a 
is 

ca
lcu

la
te

d 
ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
cit

y'
s G

IS
 sy

st
em

 d
at

a)

    
  W

AT
ER

 R
AT

ES
 (m

on
th

ly
)

Ba
se

 M
et

er
 C

ha
rg

e
M

et
er

 S
ize

   
   

   
   

 
   

(n
o 

w
at

er
 in

clu
de

d)
   

3/
4"

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
$2

3.
09

 
 1

.0
"  

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
$3

6.
72

 
1.

5"
   

   
   

   
   

   
$5

7.
29

 
2.

0"
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

$1
02

.4
4 

3.
0"

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
$1

27
.6

1 
4.

0"
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

$1
52

.7
9 

6.
0"

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
$1

69
.8

0 
8.

0"
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

$2
12

.2
6 

Lo
w

 In
co

m
e 

Ra
te

 R
ed

uc
tio

n 
- a

dj
us

te
d 

an
nu

al
ly

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
HU

D 
Ve

ry
 Lo

w
 In

co
m

e
Lim

its
 fo

r P
or

tla
nd

-V
an

co
uv

er
-H

ill
sb

or
o,

 O
R-

W
A 

M
SA

(5
0%

) r
ed

uc
tio

n 
of

 b
as

e 
ra

te
s l

ist
ed

 a
bo

ve
W

at
er

 R
at

e 
Un

it 
Co

st
 P

er
 H

ud
re

d 
Cu

bi
c F

ee
t O

f W
at

er
 (C

CF
) 7

48
 g

al
lo

ns
Us

ag
e 

Br
ac

ke
t  

   
   

   
Ra

te
Bl

oc
k 

Ra
te

 1
1 

- 6
 U

ni
ts

   
   

   
   

   
   

$1
.2

4/
un

it
Bl

oc
k 

Ra
te

 2
7 

- 1
0 

Un
its

   
   

   
   

   
 $

1.
99

/u
ni

t
Bl

oc
k 

Ra
te

 3
11

 U
ni

ts
 a

nd
 U

p 
   

   
$2

.7
4/

un
it

W
at

er
 ra

te
s f

or
 p

ro
pe

rt
ie

s o
ut

sid
e 

th
e 

cit
y 

lim
its

 
Ad

d 
33

%
 to

 a
bo

ve
 ra

te
s

    
 W

AT
ER

 U
TI

LIT
Y 

CH
AR

GE
S

Lo
w

 In
co

m
e 

Ra
te

 V
io

la
tio

n 
Fe

e 
As

 se
t f

or
th

 in
 O

RS
 1

64
.1

25
M

ai
le

d 
La

te
 N

ot
ice

/S
hu

t O
ff 

No
tif

ica
tio

n
7.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Sh

ut
 O

ff 
Do

or
 H

an
ge

r (
2n

d 
La

te
 F

ee
)

25
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
Sh

ut
 O

ff 
W

at
er

25
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
Tu

rn
 O

n 
W

at
er

 (d
ur

in
g 

bu
sin

es
s h

ou
rs

)
25

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

EX
HI

BI
T 

A 
M

as
te

r F
ee

 S
ch

ed
ul

e 
Pa

ge
 6

12 - 10



Tu
rn

 O
n 

W
at

er
 (a

fte
r b

us
in

es
s h

ou
rs

)
17

5.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
W

at
er

 M
et

er
 T

am
pe

rin
g 

Ch
ar

ge
25

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

* 
   

   
   

  E
qu

iv
al

en
t D

w
el

lin
g 

Un
it 

(E
DU

)
**

   
   

   
Gr

os
s r

ev
en

ue
s 

sh
al

l h
av

e 
th

e 
m

ea
ni

ng
 a

s d
ef

in
ed

 in
 C

ha
pt

er
 1

2.
24

**
**

*T
he

se
 ra

te
s a

re
 se

t b
y 

Oa
k 

Lo
dg

e 
W

at
er

 S
er

vi
ce

 a
nd

 W
at

er
 E

nv
io

rn
m

en
t S

er
vi

ce
s (

W
ES

). 
An

y 
up

da
te

s t
o 

th
es

e 
ra

te
s w

ill
 b

e 
br

ou
gh

t f
or

w
ar

d 
fo

r C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

ap
pr

ov
al

.

**
**

 S
m

al
l C

el
l W

ire
le

ss
 F

ac
ili

tie
s a

re
 d

ef
in

ed
 a

s i
nc

lu
di

ng
 a

n 
an

te
nn

a 
of

 n
o 

m
or

e 
th

an
 th

re
e 

cu
bi

c f
ee

t a
nd

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t t

ot
al

in
g 

no
 m

or
e 

th
an

 2
8 

cu
bi

c f
ee

t, 
pl

ac
ed

 o
n 

a 
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

th
at

 is
 e

ith
er

 n
o 

m
or

e 
th

an
 5

0 
fe

et
 in

 h
ei

gh
t, 

no
 m

or
e 

th
an

 1
0 

pe
rc

en
t t

al
le

r t
ha

n 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 st

ru
ct

ur
e,

 o
r n

o 
m

or
e 

**
* 

   
  T

hi
s r

at
e 

sh
al

l i
nc

re
as

e 
  3

%
 a

nn
ua

lly
 o

n 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1s

t o
f e

ac
h 

ye
ar

 b
eg

in
ni

ng
 Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

7.

EX
HI

BI
T 

A 
M

as
te

r F
ee

 S
ch

ed
ul

e 
Pa

ge
 7

12 - 11



                       Resolution 1178 - Exhibit B 

City of Gladstone, Oregon 

Low Income Utility Assistance Program 
The City of Gladstone provides residential customers a Low Income Utility 
Assistance Program which permits a reduced monthly charge for Water, 
Sewer and Storm Water services.  As shown in the City’s Master Fees & 

Charges Schedule, the reduced rates are 50% of the base rate only, for each type of utility. 

Qualifications: 

 A residential customer of Gladstone with one or more utility services provided by the City. 
 The property is the principal residence and occupied by the applicant. 
 No delinquent payments owed to the City, including utilities, court fines, and any other 

assessed fees or charges. 
  Written application must be submitted on the City form and include all requested 

documentation for proof of income from all sources listed, from all income earners. 
  Approval expires every year on June 30th and re-qualification must be submitted with 

current information annually. 
 The Finance Department will notify all applicants of approval or denial in writing.  If denied 

the applicant will have the ability to appeal within ten days from the date of the denial 
letter. 

Income Limits: 

 Based upon Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Income Limits/Very Low Income 
Limits (50% of Median Family Income) for the Portland-Vancouver-Hillsboro, OR-WA MSA 
as published at HUD.gov and updated annually.  Limits in effect as of July 1 will apply for 
the fiscal year period. 

 Income limit areas are based on the current fiscal year Fair Market Rent (FMR) areas. 
 Income levels are incrementally based on households of one to eight persons. 

Income Limits as of July 1, 2020: 

Persons in Household 

Very Low 
(50%) 

Income 
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

Annual 
Monthly 

$32,250 
$2,688 

$36,850 
$3,071 

$41,450 
$3,454 

$46,050 
$3,838 

$49,750 
$4,146 

$53,450 
$4,454 

$57,150 
$4,763 

$60,800 
$5,067 

 

12 - 12



City of Gladstone Utility Billing Department
Low Income Application Form 18505 Portland Ave Gladstone, OR 97027

Email: UB@ci.gladstone.or.us
Phone: 503-557-2771

Low Income Utility Rates Fiscal Year________________

Renewal New Date Utility Account#

Applicant Name Applicant Age

Email Address

Spouse Name Spouse Age

Email Address

Mailing Address

Dependent: List of dependents claimed on Income Tax forms (please print)

1. Name Age Relationship

2. Name Age Relationship

3. Name Age Relationship

4. Name Age Relationship

1. Name Contributed to Household Expenses Yes No

2. Name Contributed to Household Expenses Yes No

3. Name Contributed to Household Expenses Yes No

4. Name Contributed to Household Expenses Yes No

Applicant Signature Date Signed
Signature is required: by signing this document, the signer is acknowledging that the information is true 
and correct to the best of the signer’s knowledge.

Please use a separate sheet for additional Dependents of Occupants

Occupants: Other than spouse or dependent children. Persons who live in the household and either 
contribute to household expenses or are renting space in the dwelling. All income received must be 

accounted for and disclosed on the application.

12 - 13



City of Gladstone Utility Billing Department
Low Income Application Form 18505 Portland Ave Gladstone, OR 97027

Email: UB@ci.gladstone.or.us
Phone: 503-557-2771

Total Last Month Total Last Year

$ $

$ $

$ $

$ $

$ $

$ $

$ $

$ $

$ $

$ $

$ $

$ $

$ $

Wages, salaries, tips

Interest from Checking/Saving Account if Applicable

Monthly/Yearly Income [Instructions]
Please remember that documentation for each source of income is required. In addition, must be 

accompanied by 2 recent months of Bank Statements; Failure to provide documentation will result in 
approval delays and the possibility of your application being returned.

For any follow-up questions please Call (503)557-2771

Income Sourse

Real Estate Income / Rental Income

Unemployment Income 

Social Security Income / Social Security Disability 
Income (including SNAP benefits)

Veterans Benefits / Active Duty Military Pay and 
Benefits 

Assistance / Friends, Family, Others person

All Other Income: Income received from all sources 
not included above or from other individuals that may 
be helping pay household expenses

Total Income

Child Support/Alimony – Must have documentation

Business Income / Capital Gains (Exclude losses and 
expenses) (Must provide Schedule C from tax return)

Individual Retirement Account Distributions 

Pension Income / Life Insurance Distributions 

12 - 14



City of Gladstone Utility Billing Department
Low Income Application Form 18505 Portland Ave Gladstone, OR 97027

Email: UB@ci.gladstone.or.us
Phone: 503-557-2771

Received Date: Approved Date:

Incode Entry Fees Entry Alert Date Setup Reference Date:

Approval Signature:

Comments:

Additional Information – use the section to provide any further information or to explain any unique 
situation that the applicant may have. Please write legibly.

----------------------------------------- OFFICE USE ONLY -----------------------------------------

------------------------------------------- APPROVER USE -------------------------------------------

12 - 15





13



13 - 1



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO: Jacque Betz, City Administrator 
 
FROM: David Doughman, City Attorney’s Office  
 
SUBJECT: Possible Text Amendment to Title 17 
 
DATE: June 2, 2020 
 
 
Clackamas County is in the initial stages of designing a new library for the city, which it will eventually 
build on the site of the old Gladstone City Hall. The property is zoned C-2. I understand the county’s 
design consultant, Opsis Architects, recently released three concepts for the new library and will engage 
the community in the coming months prior to settling on an option.  
 
One element that is common to each of the concepts is a lack of off-street parking. This allows use of the 
site to be maximized for library purposes while staying within the identified budget for the design and 
construction of the facility. Of course, the prior uses on the site were supported without any off-street 
parking.  
 
We discussed an existing provision in the city’s code, 17.18.070(1), which generally allows new 
commercial uses in the C-2 zone to be substituted for old uses without providing any additional off-street 
parking. Because both the prior use and future use of the site are better described as institutional or civic 
rather than commercial, it is not clear whether the county could rely on 17.18.070(1) to build the library 
without any off-street parking.    
 
However, the city could consider a text amendment to its code that would achieve the same result and 
provide the county certainty during the design process. Local communities are increasingly deciding to 
reduce or eliminate minimum requirements for off-street parking in town-centers and downtown 
commercial districts. For example, the City of Sandy recently eliminated a minimum off-street parking 
requirement for most development in its central commercial district. In Gladstone, I believe reducing off-
street parking requirements in the C-2 is consistent with the city’s Downtown Revitalization Plan, which 
the Gladstone City Council adopted in 2018. The Downtown Revitalization Plan was the culmination of a 
significant amount of study and public input into how to increase pedestrian and bicycle traffic into 
downtown Gladstone, reduce reliance on automobile traffic and create a more vibrant streetscape. 
 
I recommend discussing the issue with the city council and getting direction on a text amendment that 
would allow the library to be built without off-street parking. If the council prefers, the scope of the 
amendment could be relatively narrow. For example, it could mirror the standard that currently exists for 
commercial uses under GMC 17.18.070(1), and allow institutional or civic uses to be substituted in the C-
2 zone without providing any additional off-street parking. If council supports an amendment, we can 
provide the requisite notice to the state and the public and likely have the Gladstone Planning 
Commission consider a text amendment at its July 21, 2020 meeting. Council could then consider a 
recommendation from the planning commission at its August 11, 2020 meeting.  
 

 

13 - 2



14



14 - 1



14 - 2



 
 

CITY COUNCIL  
MONTHLY 
ACTIVITY 
REPORTS 





 MAYOR TAMMY STEMPEL 

MAY 2020 – CIVIC ACTIVITY DETAIL 

MEETINGS  ‐ ACTIVITIES  

5/2/2020  ‐      Food Pantry | Senior Coordination 
 
5/5/2020  ‐       Food Pantry | Pickup Food from Barrels & Deliver to Food Pantry/Stock 
 
5/6/2020  ‐       Food Pantry – Create Food and Produce Boxes for Delivery 

‐ Citizen Meeting – COVID restrictions 
 
5/7/2020  ‐      Mayors and Managers Meeting 

‐ Clackamas County Coordinating Committee Meeting 
‐ Food Pantry Delivery 

5/11/2020  ‐      C4 Executive Committee Meeting 
 
5/12/2020  ‐       Food Pantry | Senior Coordination 

‐ C4 Executive Meeting 
‐ City Council 

 
5/13/2020  ‐     Food Pantry | Food Barrel Pickup and Stocking 

‐ Mayors Update 
 
5/14/2020  ‐      Food Pantry Delivery 

‐ Mayors and Managers Meeting 
 
5/15/2020  ‐     LOC Meeting 

‐ Mayors Check‐in 
 
5/16/2020  ‐    Create and Deliver Emergency Senior Boxes 
 
5/18/2020  ‐    KXL Interview 

‐ Food Pantry | Senior Coordination 
 
5/20/2020  ‐    C4 Metro Subcommittee Meeting 

‐ Parks and Rec Work Plan Review 
‐ Food Pantry – Create Food and Produce Boxes for Delivery 

 
5/21/2020  ‐      Food Pantry Delivery 

‐ Mayors and Managers Meeting 
‐ WES Meeting 

                                       
5/22/2020  ‐     LOC Meeting 

‐ Delivery Emergency Senior Boxes 
 

                               

Council Activity Report - 1



2 

5/26/2020  ‐      Food Pantry | Food Barrel Pickup and Stocking 
 

5/27/2020  ‐     Food Pantry  ‐ Create Food and Produce Boxes for Delivery 
 
5/28/2020  ‐     Food Pantry Delivery 
   
5/29/2020  ‐      Food Pantry – Deliver Emergency Food Boxes 
 
**Throughout the month review of social media, responses to email, Nextdoor Gladstone and direct 
phone calls. 
 

NOTES  

 
 

Council Activity Report - 2



COUNCILOR MATT TRACY 
MAY 2020 – CIVIC ACTIVITY DETAIL 
MEETINGS - ACTIVITIES 

 
05/7/2020  Metro Economic Response Call 
 
05/08/2020  LOC Covid-19 Update Call 
 
05/08/2020  Meeting with CA Betz 
 
05/11/2020  Clackamas County Chamber Reopening Call 
 
05/11/2020  Senator Wyden Conference Call 
 
05/12/2020  Gladstone City Council Meeting 
 
05/18/2020  Meeting with Mayor Stemple and CA Betz, Muni-Court 
 
05/22/2020  State  of Oregon Covid-19 Update Call 
 
05/26/2020  City of Gladstone Work Session 
 
05/27/2020  Ridgegate Property Visit-PW Director Whynot/CA Betz 
 

NOTES 

 

Council Activity Report - 3





 
 

PRELIMINARY 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
PLANNING 
DOCUMENT 





Gladstone City Council Preliminary Agendas 
 
 

 June 23, 2020 
City Council Work Session 

5:30 pm 
Gladstone Civic Center Community Meeting Room 

 

  

5:30 pm Rotator presentation on Development of a Tourism 
Strategy and Brand 

  

6:30 pm Review Parks and Recreation Board Work Plan 
 

  

 July 14, 2020 
City Council Regular Meeting 

6:30 pm 

  

  Financials 
 Legal costs on projects 
 Minutes from previous Council meetings 
 Department Head Monthly Reports (June) 

 

  

6:00 PM DLCD presentation on why we are doing a housing 
code audit, housing needs analysis, and HB 2001 
 

  

 Prospective Ballot Initiatives? 
 

  

 Consider approval of a lease agreement between the 
Gladstone Fire Department for office space. 
 

  

 August 11, 2020 
City Council Regular Meeting 

6:30 pm 

  

  Financials 
 Legal costs on projects 
 Minutes from previous Council meetings 
 Department Head Monthly Reports (July) 

  

 Code amendment to remove off street parking 
requirements for the library project at 525 Portland 
Avenue 

CA Betz 
CA Doughman 

 

  
 

  

 August 25, 2020 
Gladstone Housing Needs Analysis Presentation 

5:30 pm (Planning Commission, City Council, TAC) 

  

  
 

  

 To Be Set 
 

  

 Update the Traffic Signal Maintenance and 
Transportation Engineering Services IGA with 
Clackamas County 
 

PWD Whynot  

Agenda Planning for Council Meetings (P) - 1



Gladstone City Council Preliminary Agendas 
 
 

 

 Oak Lodge Sewer District IGA with City of Gladstone 
 

PWD Whynot  

 Consider approval of a resolution to amend City 
Council Rules to remove “correspondence” from the 
agenda. 

CA Betz  

 Approve collective bargaining agreements between 
City of Gladstone and Professional Fire Fighters 
Clackamas County IAFF. 

  

January 
2021 

Adopt the Housing Needs Analysis   

Agenda Planning for Council Meetings (P) - 2


